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Corporate Profile

DA

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the “Company” or “ZMJ”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRG”) on 28 December
2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability. The Company’s A shares were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 3 August 2010. The Company’s H shares
were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 December 2012.

The Company is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment manufacturer in the PRC. It focuses on the manufacturing and sales of hydraulic roof
supports, and is the largest hydraulic roof support manufacturer in the PRC. The Company is also engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of and servicing for auto parts, as well as the trading of steel and other raw materials. The established operating history, high quality products,
strong research and development capabilities, advanced manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network of the Company and its subsidiaries are the
keys to its success and enable it to maintain its leading position in the coal mining and excavating equipment market and auto parts market.
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Chairman’s Statement EE R REE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased, on behalf of the board
of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited,
to present the annual report of

the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the period
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the “2020 Annual Report”).

Jiao Chengyao
Chairman
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2020, facing the abrupt assault from the Covid-19 pandemic in a complex
and severe industry situation, the Company guided itself under the development
strategy of “international strategic positioning, market-based corporate
governance, high-end industry layout and global human resources”, and
conscientiously carried out the spirit of the important instructions from General
Secretary Xi Jinping during his inspection of ZMJ. It confronted challenges head
on and with strong determination. Equipped with the mind-set of starting afresh
on another entrepreneurial adventure, ZMJ leveraged innovation as the key with
faster transformation towards intelligence, greater technology and management
innovation as well as optimisation of the governance structure, striving to break
new ground in high-quality development. As a result, its key economic indicators
have improved continuously. b

In 2020, the revenue generated by the Group totalled RMB26,519.39 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 3.10%. Net profit attributable to the
parent company amounted to RMB1,239.15 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 19.12%.
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2020 BUSINESS REVIEW

() Strategic Guidance to Keep Driving Corporate
Reform

1.

Advancing the mixed ownership reform and taking the lead
in SOE reform

The Company proactively worked with HNMIC on public
solicitation of transferring 16% of its shares in ZMJ, with the
share transfer completed on 25 February 2021. The equity
transfer represented a critical move for Henan Province to
explore the transition of state-owned assets supervision from
“Management of People, Affairs and Assets” to “Capital
Management”. It also constituted a major attempt for HNMIC
and ZMJ to perform their responsibility as state-owned
enterprises, carry out the “Campaign of Reforming Hundreds
of SOEs” (B8 H778)), transform their operating mechanism
at a deeper level and explore the way of SOE reform in Henan.
The new shareholder structure will tap into mixed ownership
to propel ZMJ in its exploration of the modern enterprise
system with Chinese characteristics. Grounded on a diverse
shareholding structure and market-oriented board composition
after the reform, ZMJ will develop a corporate governance
structure with market-oriented operation to stimulate its
vitality, and lay a solid foundation for ZMJ to establish itself as
a benchmark in the mixed ownership reform of SOEs and the
“Campaign of Reforming Hundreds of SOEs”.

By combining industry and finance, central and local strengths as
well as diverse backgrounds, the strategic investors are set to
introduce effective strategic incremental resources to ZMJ, such
as capital, market, technology and industrial synergy, to assist
the listed company to enhance its industrial competitiveness,
acquire new technologies and markets, enter strategic emerging
fields and expedite industrial transformation and upgrade,
thus amplifying the effect of marrying state-owned capital with
strategic investment capital and realising sustainable high-
quality development for ZMJ.
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Improving central management capability and internal
risk prevention system

We have established robust group management and risk control
systems that align with the Group’s international drive and
multi-industry management. First, we continued to sort out
future development strategies for the Group and its industrial
segments, explore innovation and upgrade approaches to our
principal operations, and study development opportunities from
emerging industries. Second, we leveraged on information-
based management and control for the Group, to keep
advancing its information-based systems. Specifically, we
explored the establishment and improvement of intelligent
reporting system, budget and capital management systems as
well as information-based modules on operations management
for the Group, providing solid support for enhancing group
control. Third, we kept enhancing the development of an
international talent team, by introducing premium talents from
various channels and developing a vertical talent training system
that covers the entire career of our staff. Fourth, we continued
to capitalise on the synergy between our internal auditing and
the work of our board of supervisors and disciplinary inspection
bodies, to fully deliver the overall effect of our supervisory
organs and prevent and control risks.

() Executing Development Strategies in Respective
Business Segments with Stable Operation

1.

Operation and development of the coal mining machinery
segment

In 2020, the Company remained oriented towards “orders
that could generate profit and cash flow with controllable risk
exposure”, captured quality orders, worked harder on payment
collection, and vigorously promoted comprehensiveness and
intelligence. As such, ZMJ sustained the growth of its operating
results, achieving preliminary success with its “comprehensive,
intelligent, international and society-oriented” strategy and
further boosting its core competitiveness.
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(1) Leading industrial iteration and upgrade with stellar

achievements in intelligence and comprehensiveness

First, driving comprehensiveness at a steady pace.
Our comprehensive strategy proved highly effective, as
we enhanced internal cooperation and established the
platform of comprehensive production system and the
system of comprehensive development service. Our
equipment sets work under the “in-house synergetic
deployment model”, which has matured into one of
the competitive edges of the Company. Our first set of
intelligent workface for comprehensive mining formally
commenced operation at Pingdingshan Coal Group No.2
Mine (F-& — &), thus accomplishing a real breakthrough
in ZMJ’s comprehensive workforce “from none to first”.
The Company also passed the inspection and acceptance
of its first proprietary equipment set of comprehensive
mining for Datong Coking Coal Mine, writing another new
chapter on its way to comprehensiveness.

Second, achieving crucial developments in its
intelligent drive. We delved deeper into understanding
the status-quo and intelligent needs of our clients,
expanded our investment in intelligent technology research
and development, and achieved multiple innovation
results. ZMJ collaborated with universities, high-tech
enterprises and mining groups on intelligence, acquired
equity interest in Nanjing Bestway Intelligent Control
Technology Co., Ltd (4 E& 742322 &]) and worked with
Huawei and Siemens to jointly explore deep integration
of modern information technology such as 5G, big data,
industrial internet and the Internet of Things into R&D
and manufacturing. The Company enabled the promotion
and application of its intelligent workface in a number
of coal groups, maintaining the largest market share
within the industry. In its comprehensive advancement in
intelligent manufacturing, ZMJ completed the intelligent
transformation for some of its components production
lines, with a largely completed intelligent technology
software platform and the MES system in trial operation.
In addition, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Shuyun
Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd. (ZF K ik kx5S
sk AR A &) was established to focus on the
intelligent and digital transformation of factories and
accelerate the development of demonstration plants for
intelligent manufacturing.
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Third, intensifying the international strategy.
Amidst the pandemic onslaught abroad, we completed
the contract negotiation and technical support for our
comprehensive project in Turkey, setting the highest
record in contract value for a single project in the
international market. We employed innovative initiatives for
project execution, offered online guidance on equipment
installation and commissioning to our clients, and
managed to complete our equipment certification. A five-
year strategy was prepared to develop the international
market, with efforts to ramp up our process of managing
international aftermarket services. We also successfully
obtained the AEQ Senior Certification of the customs
system, which significantly improved the Company’s
import and export customs management and reduced
logistics costs, laying a solid foundation for expanding our
international business.

Fourth, becoming more society-oriented. A more
professional society-oriented service system will be
established that offers more timely response and better
services. Apart from bolstering the quality and efficiency of
our aftermarket service by information-based approaches,
our technical and aftermarket personnel also provided
onsite guidance to clients on equipment application and
maintenance. As such, our aftermarket service team has
been recognized and praised by mining companies.

Deepening innovation with a digital reform of operation
and management

Firstly, our innovative operation proved effective. In an
optimised organisational structure of internal production,
our oil cylinder company operated separately, relied on
supplying oil cylinders for internal roof supports and
developed premium oil cylinder products and business for
non-coal machinery segments. Our structural component
company simulated legal person operation and assessment
to raise its operational efficiency and quality. Our KPI
indicator system has been ramped up at company,
departmental and primary levels so that responsibilities
and indicators are specified for each level. During the year,
we worked on lean improvement for 15,631 items, which
represented a new record high.

Secondly, we explored reform in our supply chain system.
We developed new materials and channels to improve
procurement quality and the ability to ensure supply. Our
supply chain reform took place steadily, as the group
company started exploring transformation into industrial
internet platform and digitisation. The Group established its
procurement centre and procurement information platform,
to shift its procurement methods to strategic procurement.
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2.

Operation and development of the auto parts segment

(1) ASIMCO capturing opportunities to buck the trend and

achieve growth

2020 saw a moderate decline in domestic automobile
sales and a major uptick in commercial vehicle production
and sales. Firstly, ASIMCO capitalised on the prime
opportunity amidst the upward trend of commercial
vehicles in 2020, by emphasising on technology leadership
and high-end clients. It took the lead in upgrading its
technology in line with the National VI emissions standard,
which generated rapid growth of sales revenue and profit.
Secondly, ASIMCO gravitated towards core products to
build industry benchmarks with its own intellectual property
rights. Thirdly, leveraging the timing of the integration of
the international industry chain, ASIMCO entered the high-
end market and secured high-end projects such as the
engine block and cylinder cap project with Daimler and the
shock absorption and sealing products project with Bosch
Group, in addition to swifter development of the aftersales
market. Fourthly, we selected “high-potential talents”
for prioritised development, enhanced the building of our
talent teams and fast-tracked our international drive.
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(2) SEG confronting industrial downturn with reform and
transformation

Affected by such factors as the on-going Covid-19
outbreak overseas and the downward pressure of the
global automotive industry, while working on Covid-19
prevention and control and work resumption, SEG initiated
its business reform with global resource integration and
better allocation, shifting its production capacity from high-
cost regions to low-cost ones so that it can attain higher
operational efficiency and profitability at lower costs in
multiple dimensions. Firstly, in high-cost regions such as
Western Europe, SEG reduced its costs by downsizing the
staff and production, outsourcing part of its business and
optimising the layout of production capacity. Secondly, the
company transformed its headquarters with streamlined
functions and personnel structure, with some headquarters
functions delegated to regional plants. SEG has also
implemented its policy to make ends meet, as it transitions
from the business division of a large group to a medium-
sized company. Efforts were also made to optimise the
structure of its product portfolio, scale back loss-making
orders and operations to lift profitability. Further, SEG
insisted on technology leadership by actively establishing
its presence in electrification technology products. It
developed and promoted the second generation of 48V
BRM products with better energy-saving effect, which has
already obtained orders from some clients. At the same
time, SEG made a pre-emptive move in the research and
development of high-voltage motors to prepare technology
reserves for future long-term development.

Zhima Street Developing into an Eco-Empowered Smart
Park with “Dual Innovation”

Our wholly-owned subsidiary Zhima Street worked on “Zhima
Street 1958 Dual Innovation Park Project” (Z il 51958
= AIE 18 H), a project mainly engaged in renovating and
improving the Company’s old factories and with “Scientific
Innovation and Cultural Innovation” as its theme to revitalise
idle factory premises. Its first phase was completed, with the
opening ceremony to take place on the first anniversary of
the general secretary’s visit to ZMJ on 17 September 2020.
At present, the project has ushered in a number of well-
known brand enterprises and venture capital incubators.
Its dominant industries have taken shape and been well-
positioned, such as design, medical and environmental, cultural
and creative industries. As an industrial platform for cross-
sectoral integration on the Central Plains of China, Zhima Street
will further integrate resources, create smart spaces, help its
enterprises with transformation and upgrade and optimise
the development environment for industries, empower both
traditional and emerging enterprises, and strive to be a first-
class exemplar in Zhengzhou, Henan Province and beyond.
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() Leading the Market with Technology Innovation, ET% - AR ER

with Fresh Accomplishments in R&D Innovation

1. In the coal mining machinery segment, we sustained our
research and development of intelligent and comprehensive
technology. In relation to expanding the existing product lines,
we took steps to improve our intelligent control technology for
comprehensive workface, completed the development of pump
station and three-machine control system, and beefed up the
comprehensive capacity of our intelligent control system. We
also engaged ourselves in studying the advanced technology
for Intelligent Workface 3.0. In addition, we carried forward the
development of our smart mining system based on industrial
internet platforms, with preliminary research conducted for
frontier technology.

2. In respect of our auto parts business, we kept pushing ahead
the development of such products with new technologies
including EcoC, PVD coating and HPO that meet National VI
and T4 emissions requirements, new engine blocks and 48V
BRM. We also intensified our development of ancillaries for new
models and products that catered to key clients. Accordingly,
we became eligible for developing ancillaries and bulk supply to
a number of clients, which facilitated the growth of our market
share and sales. We enhanced our work on core technologies,
by completing the development of upgraded components for
road National VI and non-road National IV engines, and securing
the leading advantage in the new round of emissions upgrade.

(IV) Enhancing Investor Protection and Performing Social

Responsibility Properly

In 2020, the Company strictly complied with the requirements
of relevant laws, regulations and normative documents such as
the Company Law, the Securities Law and the Code of Corporate
Governance for Listed Companies, in an aim to further improve the
awareness of regulated operation, keep perfecting its corporate
governance structure, and facilitate the sound and sustainable
development of the Company. In addition, it strictly conformed to
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations, and performed
the obligation of information disclosure in a truthful, accurate, timely
and complete manner. In this regard, the Company has an investor
communication system in place that primarily employs official
media for information disclosure, which is supported by multiple
channels such as the Company’s official website, WeChat public
account, investor hotline, email and SSE e-interaction (_-3&e 5 &)
to continuously improve the effect of investor communication and
properly protect the interest of shareholders as well as small and
medium-sized investors.
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Insisting on rewarding investors with cash dividend,
the Company completed the implementation plan of
profit distribution for the year 2019, under which all its
shareholders were paid a cash dividend of RMB1.85 (tax
inclusive) for every 10 shares based on the total share
capital on the record date. Since its listing, the Company
has distributed cash dividends each year to share the
operational achievements of its development with all the
shareholders.

During the reporting period, the Company lost no time
to resume production and work in tandem with epidemic
prevention and control, striving to attain its operational
objectives for the year. Apart from that, ZMJ donated
RMB2 million to epidemic prevention and control agencies,
in addition to individual voluntary donation of RMB580,000
from CPC leaders and staff to medical institutions, and
anti-epidemic supplies such as ventilators and protective
facial masks to Germany and Spain, all in a bid to fulfil its
corporate social responsibility with concrete action.

DEVELOPMENT TRENDS OF THE INDUSTRY

The Central Economic Work Conference has made it clear that in 2021,
China will maintain its overarching basis of seeking progress amidst
stability, the primary path of supply-side structural reform, proactive fiscal
policies and prudent monetary policies, as well as essential support for
economic recovery. The country will also accelerate the establishment of
its “dual circulation” development pattern in which the domestic economy
cycle plays a leading role while the international economic cycle serves as
its extension and supplement. It will step up investment in new types of
infrastructure, strengthen the sustainability of investment growth and keep
the economy operating within a reasonable range. It is expected that the
domestic macro economy will remain steady and regain growth in 2021.
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Situation of the coal mining machinery industry

In 2020, the Covid-19 epidemic exerted considerable socioeconomic
ramifications, bringing about more prominent characteristics of a
changing world that has been evolving at a faster pace. From the
perspective of the coal industry, China experienced slower growth
of coal consumption, as the market supply and demand of coal
shifted from overall balance to more lax conditions. At present, the
coal industry remains confronted by the apparent bottleneck of high-
quality development. In tandem with stable but declining coal prices,
the coal economy saw a weakened momentum of cyclical growth,
leaving downward pressure on its operation. International coal
enterprises displayed deteriorating operational quality, amidst the
waning demand from the international coal mining machinery market.
Domestically, the coal mining machinery market reflected excessive
supply in general. This, coupled with the consolidation, restructuring
and internal protection of coal enterprises in major coal production
areas, will lead to even stiffer completion in the coal mining
machinery industry under the new market landscape in the future.
According to the 2020 Annual Report of Coal Industry Development
(20208 R1T 5 3 R F [E ¥ ) ) published by China National
Coal Association (FP Bl ik T 2177'), by the end of the 14th
Five-Year Plan period, China will have controlled its annual coal
output at about 4.1 billion tonnes, annual coal consumption at around
4.2 billion tonnes, and the number of coal mines at approximately
4,000 from around 4,700 nationwide as at the end of 2020, in
addition to over 1,000 intelligent coal mines established and more
than 90% of coal mining mechanised. In recent years, China has
released successive policies such as the Catalogue of Key Research
and Development on Coal Mining Robots ( (k28 A 5 247
%% H §%)), the National Energy Technology Innovation Action Plan
(2016-2030) (KB LR M7 &% 1T 85t &l (2016-2030
) )) and the Guidelines on Accelerating the Development of
Intelligent Coal Mines ({BEM INIREIZE ELERNIEEE
§.)). Such national policies and the supporting policies from main
coal producer localities are conducive to promoting safe, efficient
and intelligent coal mining as well as clean, efficient and intensive
utilisation of coal, thus pointing out the direction for the development
of intelligent mines. The next 5 to 10 years is expected to be a high-
speed development period for developing intelligent coal mines in
China, as we embrace fresh development opportunities amidst the
further enhanced demand for reliable, intelligent and green coal
mining machinery amongst coal enterprises.
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Situation of the auto industry

Full implementation of the National VI emissions standard and
increasingly rigorous limits on fuel consumption will fast-track
the restructuring of traditional auto markets and products. On the
other hand, the progressive withdrawal of financial subsidies and
adjustment policies such as access conditions have finally taken
place, coupled with a trading mechanism for carbon credit and new
energy credit, which is set to expedite the transformation of new
energy vehicles towards a market-driven industry. As mentioned
explicitly in the Development Plan for the New Energy Vehicle Industry
(2021-2035) (CHree R TB E X ERE A El (2021-2035) ))
issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology in
November 2020, new energy vehicles will have been much more
competitive in the market by 2025, with an approximately 20%
share in new vehicle sales, which will further propel the high-quality
development of the new energy vehicle industry. Electrification,
network connection, intelligence and sharing will become the
development trends of the automobile industry. Published by China
Society of Automotive Engineers, the Roadmap for Energy Saving
and New Energy Vehicle Technology 2.0 ({Ef e BT 8EIR A E
R fi3% 43 B12.0)) states that hybrid new vehicles will account for
more than 50% of conventional energy passenger vehicles in 2025.
Full electrification will drive a high degree of integration between the
industry chains of energy-saving and new energy vehicles.

2021 is the first year of China’s 14th Five-Year Plan. Given the
dwindling impact of the epidemic, economic recovery and epidemic
control will promote the automobile market. It is expected that
automobile sales will embrace further improvement as the automobile
industry bounces back. As an upstream arm of the automobile
industry, auto parts provide the foundation for the development of
the automobile industry. Its overall recovery will be conducive to the
further turnaround of the auto parts market. The Chinese auto parts
industry still enjoys considerable market potential.
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OUTLOOK

As pointed out in the Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan, the world is
undergoing once-in-a-century transformations, with the new technological
revolution and industrial transformation making inroads. Meanwhile, we
are confronted by an increasingly complex international environment with
much more instability and uncertainties, coupled with the far-reaching
impact of the Covid-19 epidemic. Still, the Chinese economy retains its
underlying trend of stability, improvement and long-term positivity. ZMJ will
work under the guidance of Xi Jinping Thought on Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics for a New Era and carried out the spirit of the important
issues addressed by General Secretary Xi Jinping during his inspection
of ZMJ with depth. The Company will advance towards its objectives
by focusing on its development strategies and engaging in change and
innovation with courage. Its work emphasis will be placed on the following
aspects:

1. Reform corporate governance structure and
enhance corporate governance capability

ZMJ will establish a more market-oriented governance structure on
the basis of a more diversified and mixed shareholding structure,
which sets out clear responsibilities and powers for the shareholders’
general meeting, the board of directors, the board of supervisors and
the management, with adequate authority and proper performance
to enhance corporate governance capability and continue to explore
the path for the reform of state-owned enterprises in Henan Province.
Based on a market-oriented board composition, we will enhance the
efficiency of market-oriented decision-making, establish a market-
oriented mechanism for incentives and restraints, stimulate the
vitality of corporate operation, and create more value and returns for
our shareholders.

2. Grow a global perspective and develop into a
manufacturer of high-end intelligent equipment with
global influence

China will develop towards a new landscape, where the domestic
cycle plays the leading role and the international cycle serves as
the extension and supplement, which will bring fresh development
opportunities to domestic industries and enterprises. Against the
backdrop, the Company will grow its global perspective on products,
markets, talents, networks, technologies and supply chains,
regarding China as the base and the world as its extension. ZMJ will
work harder on the existing principal business, explore new industrial
opportunities and promote its high-quality development.
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In respect of the coal mining machinery segment, we will seize
development opportunities when the global coal mining machinery
industry is in its integration period and coal mines expedite their
intelligent development. We will optimise our intelligent equipment
sets and services for comprehensive coal mining, search for
development opportunities from other coal mining machinery
equipment in relation to smart mining, and integrate premium
domestic and overseas resources in the coal mining machinery
industry. We will also enhance our services before and after sales,
while standardising and expanding aftermarket service, all in a bid
to become the global leader in our segments and fast-track the
“comprehensive, intelligent, international and society-oriented”
strategy for our coal mining machinery segment.

In the auto parts business, firstly, we will continue to shift the
production capacity of SEG from high-cost regions to low-cost ones
for lower production costs and higher profitability. Secondly, we will
integrate research and development with markets, new energy and
capital markets more closely. On one hand, we will facilitate the
transformation of our auto parts business to energy conservation,
environmental protection and even new energy. On the other hand,
we will work to master the core technology for more comfortable
and lighter vehicles, and undertake international industrial and
capital transfer. Meanwhile, we will explore the transformation
from machinery to electromechanical integration and from parts to
components and even system integration, striving to develop the
enterprise into a global first-class provider of auto electrification
system solutions.

Initiate institutional innovation and reform for human
resource management, remuneration and incentives

We will establish a talent management system that is more adaptable
to the market. Such a system will combine global resources with
local wisdom, and external introduction with internal cultivation. Our
mechanism will be optimised in relation to talent selection, cultivation,
employment and retainment, as we continue to consolidate our three-
tier talent cultivation system to build our talent portfolio and develop
a hub for talents. In addition, we will further establish and improve
a market-oriented and international mechanism for remuneration,
incentives, appraisal and restraints, to boost the vitality and efficiency
of the Company.
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4. Engage in swift digital transformation of the 4~ RIRHEHE P EH T LA
Company
Going forward, competition is bound to be digital. Hence, the RERMBFF —ERBTHERT + RalEUERP
Company will be customer-centric to develop a digital system that B {ﬁé%}Eﬁ«aI AATIER - EmaRE - H
covers all its processes, ranging from customer demand analysis fEHEHRE - BHeeiiE BB BT RE
and prediction, product design, supply chain coordination, intelligent EHE - ITEERENDEHRTER - U
manufacturing and operation as well as digital services, to empower T BELBECERLEEEE - FHRAH
its high-quality development with digitisation and intelligence. BIER - EREEE RN KM 1S 2%
Application of big data will take place to develop smart mining system Z5¥ e  AEEREEERES %ﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁ P A
platforms as the command centre for intelligent comprehensive FRHEEN AR IR - 2 SRR A B B CHE
coal mining, and provide intelligent support for coal mine safety JEF - BRASEARSR B TE KT o
production. Internally, we will promote data exchange and application
sharing among segments and businesses to ramp up digital strategic
decision-making.

5. Keep enhancing comprehensive risk control 5 FFEE N9 2 A R R B I
The Board of the Company will keep improving our comprehensive NAEFTEHFERETEUNANE - ABAZ
risk control system with internal control and internal audit as the DREELHERETER - IREDEBA
cores. More efforts will be made to develop our internal control and THEER  RECELCESLZERNEESR

legal affairs teams, to ensure that our corporate operations comply
with laws and regulations and that our assets are safe. Additionally,
we will further tap into the functions of our board of supervisors,
internal auditing and disciplinary inspection bodies, so that they can
work as a collective force and ensure our operation in compliance
with laws and regulations.

Strategy determines direction, and success hinges on details. Confronted by
the uncertainties of external economic conditions in 2021, the Board of the

Company

will revolve around its development strategy, unite its leaders and

staff to work with high spirits, strong determination and great confidence. ZMJ
will dedicate itself to high-end equipment manufacturing, continuously deepen
its reform and innovation, and drive its industry transformation and upgrade.
The Company will employ an international perspective to develop into a high-
end equipment manufacturing group with global influence and contribute to the
resounding start of the 14th Five-Year Plan.
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Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere & AARBREREZSRARTNETEET KR ¥
gratitude to the entire staff, shareholders, clients and partners of the Company. FUREREERY  BUAF2NGHE |

Jiao Chengyao RS
Chairman EER
26 March 2021 202143 A26H
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Review of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group achieved sales revenue
of RMB26,519.39 million, representing an increase of 3.10% from the
corresponding period of last year. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
was RMB1,239.15 million, representing an increase of 19.12% from the
corresponding period of last year. Earnings per share was RMB0.07. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had borrowing balances of RMB4,598.90 million.

Overview

The Group is a leading comprehensive coal mining and excavating equipment
and auto parts manufacturer in the PRC. Our established operating history,
high quality products, strong research and development capabilities, advanced
manufacturing processes and extensive sales and service network are the keys
to our success and allow us to maintain our leading position in the PRC coal
mining and excavating equipment market. With the completion of ASIMCO and
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH acquisition, the Group has duly entered the
auto parts market and is engaged in two principal businesses, namely coal
mining machinery and auto parts.
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Results of Operations KeEEE

TREIIAREERAREZE2020F12 431 H IEFERER

ABRERERE -

The following table sets forth a summary, for the year ended 31 December
2020 indicated, of our consolidated results of operations.

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB miillions RMB millions
AREEET AREEETT
Revenue WA 26,519.39 25,721.42
Cost of sales SHE A (19,874.03) (20,923.90)
Gross profit ER 6,645.36 4,797.52
Other income EmUA 262.82 225.18
Other gains and losses Hlzs Mg 1R (393.02) (418.40)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE koA (1,135.19) (1,020.64)
Administrative expenses TERAX (1,289.83) (994.63)
Research and development expenses [rikee =932 (1,224.43) (1,015.03)
Restructuring costs EAEMA (646.95) -
Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets TRt EREERERIE TR (0.34) 157.88
Share of profit of associates FEAG B N FEF 12.01 38.01
Share of profit of joint ventures [EIEEERERET 9.62 3.72
Finance costs, net RUE P A EE (300.16) (243.53)
Profit before tax BRE AR 1,939.89 1,530.08
Income tax expense FriSHi s (561.11) (390.17)
Profit for the year FEREF 1,378.78 1,139.91
Profit for the year attributable to: AR A LG FREF -
Owners of the Company VNN 1,239.15 1,040.25
Non-controlling interests Bl 139.63 99.66
1,378.78 1,139.91
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Results of Operations (Continued)

I 3 {E))

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB millions RMB millions
AR¥EHER AREBETT
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEUKE :
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to TEREEE FIER B
profit or 108s: HH :
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations BT ERINENEE 21.08 4.82
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value NATFEEEREEST AR ME
through other comprehensive income RN emEEATEED (0.94) (1.61)
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AlREEF D EEEEMIEE ¢
Exchange differences arising on translation MEELEMNENERE (119.89) (17.44)
Cash flow hedging REmELF (4.96) 0.52
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of income tax  FAHMEEFES » HKRAER (104.71) (13.71)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZERREE 1,274.07 1,126.20
Total comprehensive income for the year UTALTEAEEREZERSELEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company iN/NET 4 1,134.44 1,026.54
Non-controlling interests FEIERR S 139.63 99.66
1,274.07 1,126.20
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRER
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARES) 71.52 60.04
— Diluted (RMB cents) —HE(ARKES) 71.45 60.04
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A

Our revenue increased by 3.10% from RMB25,721.42 million for the year REFWRABEZ2019F12A3IHEFENARE
ended 31 December 2019 to RMB26,519.39 million for the year ended 31 25721425 & TIE MN3.10% 2 H £2020F 12 831 H IEF
December 2020, mainly because manufacture of coal mining machinery EMARE2651939B & T TE AP ELE KRR
segment’s sales increased for the year ended 31 December 2020. DEBHYSEE RNE 202012 A31 B IEEE B FIEM -

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by product and TREFIANEEIREmREBS DB A DT (EBEAL -

business(in RMB millions):

AREBETT) :

Year ended 31 December 2020
B Z2020F128331 A L EE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture

machinery of auto parts Total
BUERTEMW SERETIHN #Et
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
ARBEET AREEET ARBBEET

Sales of auto parts RETIHREE - 14,914.67 14,914.67
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIEE S ZERSH & 7,213.59 - 7,213.59
Revenue from steel and other materials trading $f#4) fz B R EHE 5 89U A 2,595.29 62.99 2,658.28
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery iR A 14 89 55 & 1,490.46 - 1,490.46
Sales of other coal mining equipment Hib R R EHE 77.05 - 77.05
Other revenue HA 118.58 46.76 165.34

11,494.97 15,024.42 26,519.39

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F12A318 LFE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERIERE,  BUETETEMT HET
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

ARBBEST ARBBST ARBEET

Sales of auto parts EETEM RN E - 16,041.03 16,041.03
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIEE S ZER SR & 6,269.02 - 6,269.02
Revenue from steel and other materials trading #58) & E b R K2 5 89U A 2,118.02 128.80 2,246.82
Sales of spare parts for coal mining machinery BERE#Em R (4 B9 $H & 1,002.43 - 1,002.43
Sales of other coal mining equipment Hih R R EEE 86.53 - 86.53
Other revenue HApA 75.59 - 75.59

9,551.59 16,169.83 25,721.42
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Cost of Sales

As the Group recorded an increase in our revenue, our cost of sales decreased
by 5.02% from RMB20,923.90 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB19,874.03 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross Profit

Driven by the above factors, our gross profit increased by 38.52% from
RMB4,797.52 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB6,645.36
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The change in gross profit during the year primarily comprised of two parts.
The gross profit margin of the coal mining machinery segment increased from
28.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 36.4% for the year ended
31 December 2020. As of 31 December 2020, the gross profit margin of the
auto parts segment of the Group increased from 12.7% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to 16.4% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Therefore, the overall gross profit margin of the Group increased from 18.7% for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to 25.1% for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Other Income

Our other income increased by 16.72% from RMB225.18 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB262.82 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, mainly because the Group gained more government grants
and interest income.

Other Gains and Losses

Our other losses decreased by 6.07% from loss of RMB418.40 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to loss of RMB393.02 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, mainly due to less losses from fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses increased by 11.22% from RMB1,020.64
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB1,135.19 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which was align with the increase of revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 29.68% from RMB994.63 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB1,289.83 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, mainly due to the increase from the long-term super profit
incentive scheme.

SHERA

ARAAREBRAGRTEI - AREEHEEKAREZE2019
F12A31 B IEFEMHARY20,923.90 & & JT i E R
5.02% % & £ 2020912 A31 H [F FE ) AR #19,874.03

e —

BEBTT°
EF

Z PR RS - AEBEFBEHZ2019F12A318 1
FEMARMES797.528 & Ui IN38.52% = & £ 20204F
128318 IEFERNARKEG,645.36 5 BT ©

AEETHNESHEED AMBY « FEERD BOHTF=E
FREIE 2019912 A31 B IEFE #928.7% = F+ = # £22020
F12A31H 1L FERI36.4%  MELE2020F12 318 1 -
AEER BTG EFNEHBEZE2019F12 731
HIEFEM127% EAZEZ2020F12 A31H IEFER
16.4% °

Hit - AEEEEEFERHEE2019F12A831H EF
JERI18.7% _EFH 2 & E 2020512 A31H I FEHI25.1% ©

H WA

AEBFBHMKA BEHE2019F12831HILFEHARE
22518 F & LI NN16.72% 2 &, £ 2020F 12 A31 B L F[Z
MARB262.82F 8T © E2HRAEBUWEE % BT
R RFBULA -

HttW K& &8

AREBEMEESEE2019F12A31 B IEFERNEIEA
RE418408 BT A 6.07% =& E20205E12 A31H IF &
EHEEARE93.028ET  FEHENKREITEESR
TERAFEBENEERDER

HER 2 #HAX

AEEHEENDHEB Y BEZE2019F12A31 B ILFER
AFRH1,020.64 8 8 T AN11.22% 2 & Z 2020412 A 31
HIFEEMARE135.198 87T B AIE I — -

ITHEX
AEBTHHAXGEE2019F12A31BILFEFENARKE

994.63F & T h129.68% =& £ 2020F 12 A31H L F &
MAREE1,28083E &0 EEZHNRIEFEZE A

R IATE -
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Staff Costs and Remuneration Policy

Our staff costs increased slightly by 2.54% from RMB3,601.97 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB3,693.39 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The staff remuneration of the Group comprises of basic
salary and bonus payment, which is determined with reference to the operating
results of the Group and results of performance assessment on the employees.
The Group adheres to the orientation towards efficiency and results as well as
the focus on top-tier staff. It also strives to ensure scientific and reasonable
allocation of income.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development expenses increased by 20.63% from
RMB1,015.03 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB1,224.43
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to more research and
development activities incurred from manufacture of auto parts segment during
the year.

Finance Costs

Our finance costs increased by 23.25% from RMB243.53 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB300.16 million for the year ended
31 December 2020, mainly due to more borrowings for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Profit Before Tax

Being affected by the factors referred to above in aggregate, our profit before
tax increased by 26.78% from RMB1,530.08 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB1,939.89 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Income Tax Expense

Our income tax expense increased by 43.81% from RMB390.17 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB561.11 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, primarily as a result of the increase in taxable income. Our
effective tax rate increase to 28.92% for the year ended 31 December 2020
from 25.50% for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Total comprehensive income for the year

In view of the combined effect of the above factors, our profit for the year
and the aggregate of comprehensive income increased by 13.13% from
RMB1,126.20 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to RMB1,274.07
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

ETHARFMBUER

ANEEE TRABEE2019F12831BILFENARE
3,601.97 & & JTURE Ik _EF2.54% 2 E E2020F12 A31H 1E
FEMARKEI69339HET - AEEETHMAEAR
TEMBETEMIPDMERK - BRI TERBEASELE
¥ENEEBEIEZITRAMEE - NEBERFAMEME
ERER - BiFR—RETHER  BhBREKASER
BLIE o

HREH
NEBFRERAET2019F12831BIEFEENARE

1,015.03 F & 08 I120.63% E & £ 202012 A31H I F
EARE122443687T 0 TEENFERNTES I

BUED B EVFT ER B NPT ©

& R AN
AREBRMEKANEEHE2019F12831BILFEMARE
243.53'F & UL IN23.25% = & £ 202012 A1 B I FE
HIARE30016BE T EZMAEHZE20209F12H318
IEFEEEINETER o

BRBL AT A

SZRMAZRMEETE  AEENRBINEN BEE
201912 A3 B IEFE M AR MEA1,530.08 8 B L £ 7
26.78% E E, E 20205 12 A31 B IF FE H) AR %1,939.89
BET -

FRiBim

NEEMAEHREST AEHE2019F12831BILFEHA
R#39017 8 BT N43.81% = £ 22020512 A31 8 1E
FEMARBINEEL T2 E2HNERTUAL
e AEBEBEBRREEEE2019F12A31 B ILEEN
25.50% - F+ = A E2020512 831 B 1FFE #928.92% ©

FREE WA

SZHMAENGETE  AEENFREF R EERE
MEEAEHE2019F12A31 B IEFENARE1,126208
BT EFH13.13% 2 E E2020F 12 AT HIEFEN AR

e —

1,27407TEH BT °
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Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Based on the factors referred to above, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by 19.12% from RMB1,040.25 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to RMB1,239.15 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Trade and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, trade and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB6,991.91 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB1,155.71 million as compared to approximately RMB5,836.20 million as
at the end of 2019, mainly due to the increase of revenue from manufacture of
coal mining machinery segment.

Liquidity

The Group’s net current assets were approximately RMB10,275.74 million (31
December 2019; RMB7,525.40 million) and the current ratio was 1.69 as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 1.59). The increase in current ratio
was mainly attributable to the increase in trade and other receivables and bank
deposits.

Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had RMB2,978.73 million in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of
cash and bank deposits.

ZSNGI) &

AR P FEARER - AR RRREELGEF B EZE2019F
12A31BIEFEMARE1040256 &0 EF19.12% %
HZE2020F12A31 B IEFEMAREN 23015887 ©

5 R HMEWRRKIE

202066128318 - ES REMERKIESELNRBAR
56,991.91BE T © B2019F K4 ARKS5,836.205 &IT
EMOARBIIBTEEL  TEZRRBERERER
BREYU AL AN -

RBEE

AEBRBEEFELNBSARE10,275.748 &L (2019
F12A318 + AR¥T7,525408E7T) @ MH2020912 8
3TEBREILL R A1.60(2019412 A31H © 1.59)  #E)
LR FAREZHNE S R EAMERGIEA KR TIER
HINFTER

RERREAZH

HZE2020F12A31H - A5EHEERERRESEEMA
REE2978. 738 &E L - A5EBH e MRS EEBYMETER
IR S RIRITIFR -

2020 2019

2020 20194F

RMB millions RMB millions

AREBETR ARBEETT

Net cash from operating activities RSB SIR & R ER 2,123.41 3,257.41
Net cash used in investing activities REEBATAE S R (4,345.53) (2,158.53)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BEEEATE (TR LFE 1,503.38 (18.63)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents HEREEZEEWORD), /L

FEE (718.74) 1,080.25

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXRESBH L (165.97) 37.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year RENNIRE RIRSEED 3,863.44 2,746.04
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year NERNIRE RIRESEEY 2,978.73 3,863.44




SR KRR A SR B AR 19 B R A F) 20205 3%

Management Discussion and Analysis & g 51ia B2 #7

Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities in 2020 was RMB2,123.41 million. Cash
inflow primarily comprised profit before taxation of RMB1,939.89 million,
primarily adjusted for: (i) finance cost of RMB300.16 million; (i) depreciation
of property, plant and equipment of RMB716.11 million, (iii) increase in
inventories of RMB921.11 million, (iv) increase in trade and other receivables of
RMB2,034.08 million, (v) increase in trade and other payables of RMB1,419.29
million, (vi) decrease in notes receivable of RMB397.93 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash outflow in investing activities in 2020 was RMB4,345.53 million,
primarily comprising: (i) payment of RMB1,020.67 million for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment; (i) payment of RMB261.25 million for the
purchase of other intangible assets; (i) payment of RMB2,744.01 million for
structured deposits; (iv) proceeds of RMB1,393.00 million from structured
deposits; (v) payment of pledged bank deposits of RMB973.55 million; (vi)
withdrawal of pledged bank deposits of RMB826.87 million. (vii) placement of
bank deposits with original maturity over three months and restricted cash of
RMB1,789.74 million.

Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities in 2020 was RMB1,503.38 million, primarily
consisting of (i) cash inflow from borrowing of RMB1,961.52 million; (i) cash
outflow from the repayment of borrowings in the amount of RMB561.44 million;
and (jii) cash inflow from the proceeds received from the equipment leasing
companies in the amount of RMB813.97 million.

Capital Expenditures

We incurred capital expenditures of RMB1,281.92 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, for purchase of property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets.

REEE

2020 - LEFEFBHRSFEAARE2123418
BT BERAETZRIERTANEMARE1,939.808
B XEART - (BENAAREI016EETT
[i)Z - BERREBNEARE6HEET  (ifFE
HIMARBINMEET (V&S kE A EIGRIEE I
ARM2,034.08BE T - VB S M E A ER FIREL A
REE1,419208 87T Vi)EREER D> ARKES7.935E
5T o

REEH

2020 - WEEEIR SR H FEAARKL34553H
B XEZEE(EBEYE  BERREmMITA
R¥1,0206788 T (\(AEEBEMEFEEMTA
R¥261.25A 8T : (i) T EBETRARE2744018
BT (WAEBETFRAMEFIEARE1,393.006 87T ;5 (v)
T BEFRITERARKISHEE T : (VijIeEEE
HIRITFRARYES2687EE T  (i)FHRHEHAR A=
AN EMIRITERARZRHIRS ARKE1780748 8
5o

MEEE

MR20204F - REBIVEBIFTS IR & FEAARKE1,503.388
B FEEE  (EENBESRAFEARE961.52
BET: ((EEEENRSREAREG M4EET
LB B EEERAMBREBENRSTEAARE

e —

BIBITEBT °
BEARXH

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE - AEERREEYE - W
EREHEAREREENEARAT HAARK1281.928

B
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Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2020, our commitments consisted of capital commitments
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that have been authorized
and contracted for in the amount of RMB478.79 million; and capital
commitments for incorporation of an investment in an associate in the amount
of RMB4.00 million.

Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment
of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these endorsed and derecognised
notes receivable at the end of each Reporting Period is as follows:

Outstanding endorsed bills receivable with recourse
FEME &

AERBRARERE
BN HHE

HZE20206F12A318 - AEBERAERBIEYE - BE

BRENERERCFTONELREAEARKIBIIEE
JC  MAEMES — B S A RIS E R E AR EE AR
400B8TT -

HRBIE
RAEE  AEEEBHERRILHERE TRKERE - A
REAZEERENE S REMENTUR - KRARES
RE - HRECEERKERHBERFHFEIRTT
BHHRREHER  SRNDEEREEBENRRTK
REREHR  AEBTREEARNZES SRR ILHER
BN R IE M AR RARRBIAT -

BERBENHAEEDEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB millions RMB millions
AR¥EBET ARBEETT
2,694.30 1,544.54
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gEEEREE®
TREHEZE2020F 12 ASIHAEERBEEMEEH

Working Capital and Indebtedness (Continued)

The following table sets forth details of our current assets and liabilities as of 31

December 2020 (in RMB millions): B8 : ARBBESET) :
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB miillions RMB millions
AREEET AREEETT
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion BRETEEIWRIE e D 122.83 26.08
Long-term receivables, current portion EfEWETE - REEs 156.94 239.51
Loan receivables from associates and a joint venture JEUEE AR R — A EhEN
g% 6.50 10.00
Inventories e 4,531.79 3,631.70
Trade and other receivables B 5N H b E I 6,991.91 5,836.20
Transferred trade receivables BEENE 5 EUGRIE 830.94 158.76
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss WAFEETE AHEEHA
BammemEE 2,857.31 1,394.30
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income A AFE(EEHE B & BT A
Hibh2mPmmemEE 3,780.07 4,246.82
Derivative financial instruments THESRI A 40.41 13.95
Tax recoverable BERE) 34.70 38.58
Contract related assets, current portion SRMEEECREED) 8.80 30.46
Bank deposits RITER 2,763.29 858.14
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 2,978.73 3,863.43
25,104.22 20,347.93
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAE A 8,523.82 8,005.54
Contract liabilities ARAaE 1,625.44 1,699.34
Income tax liabilities e asE 231.90 156.37
Borrowings BE 974.00 1,395.61
Lease liabilities HEAaE 114.98 140.14
Redemption liabilities BLEaE 1,420.88 720.00
Provisions BE 1,092.79 543.14
Liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables MBS E FEKFIER BN
aE 830.94 158.76
Derivative financial instruments PTHEESRTA 13.73 3.63
14,828.48 12,822.53
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZRE 10,275.74 7,525.40

B ZE2020512A31  AEERHEEFEHNRARE
10,275.74 A &L (2019512 A318 : ARKE7525.406 8
TT) 0 MmN R A1.69(20195E12 3318 : 1.59) © 7 E)
b FAEBEHNE S REMERGIE  RITFEREA

NHEHEREZB T ABENSREEL TR

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB10,275.74 million (31 December 2019: RMB7.525.40 million) and current
ratio of 1.69 (31 December 2019: 1.59). The increase in current ratio was
mainly attributable to the increase in trade and other receivables, bank deposits
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Working Capital and Indebtedness (continued)

As of 31 December 2020, the balance of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
was RMB4,598.90 million, of which RMB974.00 million are current portion (31
December 2019: outstanding borrowings was RMB3,137.49 million, of which
RMB1,395.61 million was current portion).

As of 31 December 2020, our available credit line from various financial
institutions amounted to RMB23,874.00 million. As of 31 December 2020,
approximately RMB20,202.00 million of our credit lines from various domestic
and foreign financial institutions remained unused.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Debt to capital ratio is calculated by dividing the total liabilities at the end of the
year by total equity at the end of the year and multiplying by 100%.

As of 31 December 2020, our debt to capital ratio was 146% (31 December
2019: 127%).

EEESREE®

HE2020F12A318 - AEEREEEEREAAR
#4598.00E BT - HRRBHD ABARKI40E5E
L(2019F12A31H « REBEEAARKE31374988
7T EFRREEs AARE13956188T) °

BHE20206F12A31H - AEBEBREZ XS Al
RIEERAEARE23874005 87T » I E2020912 A 31
B AEBEREZRERIISBIEBEHEEREENAR
#20,202.00B BITARER °

BEXRTRLER
75 B A L Ty RO R A (AR A S RS 0

BIE100%:1E »

HZE2020F12A31H - AEBEEHEE A K A146%
(20195F12 A31H : 127%) ©

Liquidity Risk BN E E R
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to 1yearto 2yearsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 5years cashflows amount
T ERE KBRS
FE  SWMER  EREIE 1552% 2EZHE e IREE
RMB milions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmilions ~ RMBmillions ~ RMB millons ~ RMB millions
ARXEET ARBEER AREBEL ARKAET ARXEER AREKAER
The Group AE£E
As at 31 December 2020 20208124313
Non-derivative financial liabilties FEiEeRER
Trade and other payables B S REMENTIE - 75009 10228 - - 85238 85238
Liabilties associated with transferred 2 2|58 5 Y Z0E
frale receivables BENER - 8.0 8228 - - 830.9 830.9
Borrowings BE 24 4436 6403 857.4 2,881.0 48224 45989
Lease liabilities REaR 37 36.3 93.2 1312 704.8 965.6 805.2
Redemption liabilties (Note 44) BEAE(MF) 10 14208 - - - 14208 14208
Derivative financial liabiiies iTEeBEE
Designated as hedging instruments  JETE BRI A - 42 1.9 - - 6.1 6.1
Not designated as hedging instruments Mg AT A - 6.9 06 - - 75 75
- 94210 2,581.8 988.7 35859 16,577.4 16,1934
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative assets, loan receivable
from associates and a joint venture, bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group placed them in or entered
into the contract with the banks with high reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to reputable and
creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and an appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorization of credit limits
to individual customers and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business of manufacture of coal
mining machinery, the Group generally receives advances in the form of notes
receivable or cash from customers (which approximate 30% of the contract
price) before delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts, normally a
credit period of O to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognized certain notes
receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full recourse. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the default in payment of
the endorsed notes receivable is low because all endorsed notes receivable are
issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate borrowings (see Note 34 for details). Currently, the Group does not have
a specific policy to manage its interest rate risk, but management will closely
monitor interest rate exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statements prepared under IFRSs for
more quantitative information about the Group’s credlit risk.

Currency Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various non-functional currencies. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is primarily with
respect to non-functional currency bank balances, and receivable (collectively
“Non-Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
certain foreign currency exposure by using foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk between USD/RMB,
EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB. Please refer to Note 3(a) of the financial statement
prepared under IFRSs for more quantitative information about the Group’s
currency risk.
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Jiao Chengyao (57 2), male, was born in May 1963 in Gongyi County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a professor-level senior engineer with
postgraduate qualifications. He graduated from China Institute of Mining and
Technology (4 Ea#E 2 £2B5%) (now known as China University of Mining and
Technology (7P B A% £ K £2)), majoring in mechanical design, manufacture
and automation, and obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1985.
He obtained a master’s degree in engineering from China University of Mining
and Technology in December 2003, and a doctoral degree in economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (2 A2 #1452 K £2) in December
2007. From July 1985 to May 1992, he served as a technician, a production
dispatcher and an engineer of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From May 1992 to May 1993, he was the
manager of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station (£F7 3 O j9E8 4 (&
). From May 1993 to January 1998, he was the deputy plant manager and
plant manager of the No. 1 machinery sub-plant of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From January 1998 to July 2000, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to
October 2002, he was the plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to December 2008, he served as the chairman and
general manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (ZCMM).
From July 2015 to May 2020, he acted as the chairman of Henan Machinery
Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since December 2008, he has been the chairman of
the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Jiao Chengyao held 2,901,964 A
Shares of the Company, representing approximately 0.195% of all its A Shares
and approximately 0.168% of all its Shares.
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Xiang Jiayu (B2 /), male, was born in August 1965 in Guangshan
County, Henan. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate
qualifications. From September 1980 to July 1984, he studied at the
Department of Electrical and Mechanical Engineering of Jiaozuo Mining
Institute (5 {ERE 3£ £255%), majoring in mechanisation. He studied at the China
University of Mining and Technology, Master's Department (Beijing) (#° Bl 52
2K 2L AT A EB) from September 1988 to January 1991, majoring
in mining mechanical engineering and obtained a master’s degree. From July
1984 to August 1988, he lectured at Yima Mining Technical School (£ 55 1%
S BREAR). From May 1991 to December 1992, he was a designer at the
research centre of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December
1992 to July 1995, he was the executive officer of the No. 2 research centre
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From August 1995 to November
1998, he was the deputy plant manager at Huanghe Electric Vehicle Plant (&
A E ENEH) of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From November
1998 to July 2000, he was the executive officer of the hydraulic project centre
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002,
he served as the deputy plant manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From October 2002 to October 2008, he was the deputy general
manager and standing deputy general manager of ZCMM. From October 2008
to December 2008, he was a director and the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Company. From December 2008 to February 2015, he
was a director and the general manager of the Company. From February 2015
to February 2018, he has been the vice chairman of the Company. From July
2015 to December 2020, he was a director of Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd. He has been the secretary to the Party Committee of the
Company since December 2014 and a Director of the Company since February
2018. Mr. Xiang has been the vice chairman of the Company since March
2021,

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xiang Jiayu held 1,895,120 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.127% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.109% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Jia Hao (Z %), male, was born in March 1970 with Han ethnicity. He holds
the qualification of a master’s degree. Mr. Jia graduated from University of
Shanghai for Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
manufacturing technology and equipment in 1991. In 2001, he obtained a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School. He successively served as an engineer and an assistant to the
director of Guangzhou Electrical and Mechanical Scientific Research Institute
of China National Machinery Industry Corporation. He also served as a sales
manager of Parker Hannifin Motion & Control (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a standing
deputy general manager of Shanghai Ziyan Mould Industry Co., Ltd. of Zijiang
Group, a general manager of the investment department of Salim Wanye Group
(China) Co., Ltd, the president of Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited and
the chairman of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Face Machinery Co., Ltd.
From March 2014 to February 2018, he was the deputy general manager of the
Company. From February 2018 to March 2021, Mr. Jia was the vice chairman
of the Company. He has been the general manager of the Company since
February 2018 and an employee Director of the Company since March 2021.
He has also served as the chairman of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan)
Limited (Aha1> 2B 2 AR ) AR A R]) since January 2021.

Fu Zugang ({3%E &), male, was born in November 1965 in Gong’an County,
Hubei. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with undergraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at Wuhan
Technology College ()% T 2Ft) (now known as Wuhan University of
Technology (E;Z 8 T K £2)), majoring in casting, and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. From July 1985 to July 2000, he served as a technician,
an assistant engineer, an engineer, a senior engineer, a team leader of
technology team, an assistant to the plant manager, a deputy plant manager
and a plant manager of the sub-plant of casting of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to October 2002, he was the deputy plant
manager of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From October 2002
to November 2006, he was the chairman of labour union of ZCMM. From
November 2006 to December 2008, he was a director and a deputy general
manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2012, he was a deputy
general manager of the Company. From February 2012 to February 2015, he
was a director and a deputy general manager of the Company. From February
2015 to February 2018, he served as the general manager of the Company.
Since February 2018, he has been a Director of the Company and the general
manager of the coal mining machinery segment.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Fu Zugang held 2,526,720 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.170% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.146% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Wang Xinying (£ $7%8), male, was born in October 1965 in Xin'an County,
Henan. He is a CPC member and a senior engineer with postgraduate
qualifications. From September 1981 to July 1985, he studied at the
Department of Mining Engineering of Chongqing University (25 & K £2),
majoring in mining machinery. From September 2004 to July 2007, he studied
at the School of Mechanical Engineering of China University of Mining and
Technology and obtained postgraduate qualification and a master’s degree
in engineering. From July 1985 to October 1992, he was an engineer of
the equipment division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory, and
worked and studied in Toyota Motor Corporation between January 1991 and
January 1992, From October 1992 to July 1994, he was a deputy manager
of Zhengshen Import Vehicles Repair Station. From July 1994 to December
1996, he was a deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of machinery repair
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory. From December 1996 to July
2000, he was a deputy director of the production division of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Factory. From July 2000 to January 2005, he was the head
of corporate planning department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Factory.
From January 2005 to December 2008, he was a deputy general manager of
ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2015, he was a director and deputy
general manager of the Company. Since February 2015, he has been a Director
of the Company. He has been the chairman of Luoyang LYC Bearing Co.,
Ltd. since June 2016. Since May 2020, he has been a member of the Party
Committee and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wang Xinying held 1,895,040 A Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.127% of all its A Shares and
approximately 0.109% of all its Shares.
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive Directors

Cui Kai (% g]), male, was born in September 1974 in Jincheng City, Shanxi.
He holds postgraduate qualifications, CPC membership and the title of senior
economist. Mr. Cui graduated as a finance major from Henan University of
Economics and Law (JA] FF B 48 Bt 7% KX £) with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1997, and as a finance major from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (F m9 B 4% B & A E2) with a master’s degree in
economics in 2001. He successively worked for Henan Provincial Investment
Company (JA] /@ & % 3% 3% & 42 A |]), Henan Venture Investment Co.,
LTD (n] /9 &l 2 3% & | 19 B R 22 71) and Henan Investment Group
Company Limited (i 7 & & & B & R 2 7)) from August 1997 to
September 2017. He served as the vice president of Henan Asset Management
Co., Ltd (7] 73 & 7= & I8 A [R A 7)) from September 2017 to December
2019. Since December 2019, Mr. Cui has become the president of Henan Asset
Management Co., Ltd. Since May 2018, he has also served as the chairman of
Henan Asset Fund Management Co., Lid (A B B EE S EEBR A
a]). Since December 2020, Mr. Cui has also been the legal representative and
general manager of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (54 &
DEESIEOTE)A R A 7). Since March 2021, he has been a Director
of the Company.

Yang Dongsheng ( # 3 7t ), male, was born in March 1968 with Han
nationality in Xuzhou City, Jiangsu. He, a Chinese national without the right of
permanent residence abroad, is a CPC member and a senior engineer with
undergraduate qualifications and a master’s degree. From August 1989 to
September 2000, he successively served as a technician, an assistant engineer,
a director of the transmission department ( & &) = ), a deputy head of the
engineering department, an assistant to general manager, a deputy general
manager and deputy secretary to the CPC Party Committee of the scraper
branch (§E:E #4572 7)) of Xuzhou Construction Machinery Co. Ltd (%41
T2 A% 1D B BE A 7). From September 2000 to March 2002, he was
a deputy general manager of the road construction machinery branch ( & &
#e % 5 A 7]) of Xuzhou Construction Machinery Co. Ltd. From March 2002
to January 2009, he was a deputy general manager of Xugong Construction
Machinery Science & Technology Co., Ltd (15 )N T 52 # i B B K10 B IR
N |l ). From January 2009 to November 2009, he was the deputy general
manager and deputy secretary to the CPC party committee of the technology
branch (4 2 7)) of XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd (& T =&
T2 AR 15 A BR 2 7). From November 2009 to April 2017, he was a
vice president of XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. From April 2017 to
February 2021, he has been the general manager and deputy secretary to the
CPC party committee of Xuzhou Construction Machinery Group Co., Ltd. (&
T i2 ik &= E 5 FR 2 7)) and XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd (& T
EF T2 B PR A ), as well as the deputy secretary to the CPC party
committee of XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd (15 T 5 B T 2 #A i%
> APBR A ®]). Since July 2017, he has served as a non-independent director
of XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2021, he has worked
as the general manager of Xuzhou Construction Machinery Group Co., Ltd. and
XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. Since December 2020, he has been a
director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited (54 1> 3 & 38 (JA]
) B BR /A ). Since March 2021, he has been a Director of the Company.
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Cheng Jinglei (2 ), male, was born in September 1967. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a master’'s degree in
business administration. Mr. Cheng served for SAIC VOLKSWAGEN as an
engineer in logistics and industrial engineering, head of the planning and
logistics department, head of the production planning department and head
of the product engineering department, and served at SAIC Motor as the
general manager of its technology and quality department, president of the
engineering academy, as well as general manager of the strategy and business
planning department and chief engineer. Mr. Cheng was also the chairman
of SAIC Silicon Valley Venture Capital (3£ B 2% & A =)), Dalian
Sunrise Power Company (Fuel Cell) (AR ARl (JAEEM) ) and
DIAS Automotive Electronic Systems Co., Ltd. (B &;REE T AR A 7)),
a director of SAIC VOLKSWAGEN and SAIC GM, the vice president of China
Society of Automotive Engineers, and the president of Shanghai Society of
Automotive Engineers. From June 2018 to April 2020, he served as the partner
and president of AGRC. He has been the founder and chairman of Shanghai
Shengshi Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (F/8 R & EIRERAER A7)
since January 2020. From April 2018 to January 2020, he was an independent
director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited. He has been an independent
director of Shanghai Carthane Co., Ltd. (/@SB M R RHIRMD AR A F)
(603037) since August 2019. Since October 2019, he has been a Director of
the Company.

Ji Feng (Z=%), male, was born with Chinese nationality in 1970. He is a
certified public accountant and a certified appraiser with a master’s degree in
accounting. In July 1992, he graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade
(5 #RBFZ E2B5%) (now Jilin University of Finance and Economics) and obtained
a bachelor’s degree in accounting. In December 2010, he obtained a master’s
degree in accounting from the Business School of Jilin University. From July
1992 to December 1992, he served as a staff member of the First Division
of Industry and Finance (T_Bf—J&Z) of the Bureau of Finance of Changchun.
From January 1993 to March 1995, he served as the financial manager of both
Dalian Company and Jilin Company of China National Chemical Construction (77
BA/b, T 322%). From March 1995 to December 2001, he served as the deputy
general manager of Jilin Zhaoxian Qiushi Accounting Firm (F MEBE K E
2T =5FT). Since January 2002, he has been a partner, a managing
partner, and a quality control managing partner of Dahua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership). Since 26 March 2015, he has been
an independent director of Beijing Municipal Road and Bridge Co., Ltd. From
20 April 2020, he has been an independent director of Beijing Tieke Shougang
Railway-Tech Co., Ltd. He has been an independent non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2021.
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Directors (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Guo Wenging (383X &), female, was born with Chinese nationality in Beijing
in 1967. He possesses postgraduate qualifications and professional lawyer
qualifications. In July 1990, he graduated from the Law School of Renmin
University of China and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. He obtained a
master’s degree in economics from Renmin University of China in January
1996 and an EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School
in August 2011. Since August 2010, he has been a chief legal counsel of the
private banking department of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. He served as
a partner and lawyer of Beijing Dentons Law Firm (1 52 7 A% 22 Bl S5 75 )
from 1994 to 2001, a partner of Beijing Tongwei Law Firm (1t 5 77 [R) 4& 22l
E7%FT) from 2001 to 2005, and a partner of Beijing Kangda Law Firm from
2005 to 2010. He also served as independent director of Shanghai Phichem
Material Co., Ltd., from March 2011 to March 2017, and an independent
director of Beijing Ctrowell Technology Corporation Limited from October 2011
to September 2017. She has been an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since March 2021,

Fang Yuan (J5%), is the founding managing partner of Starquest Capital,
a China-based private equity investment firm with its investment strategies
focused on consumer, healthcare and technology sectors. Prior to founding
Starquest Capital in 2018, Mr. Fang served as the head of LGT Capital Partners
in China for 12 years. Before joining LGT Capital Partners in early 2007, Mr.
Fang worked for AXA Private Equity Group in Singapore, focusing on fund
investment and direct investment in the Pan-Asia region. Mr. Fang has a total
of 20 years of experience in the financial sector. Mr. Fang holds a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, a MBA degree from
INSEAD Business School and an EMBA degree from Tsinghua University PBC
School of Finance. Mr. Fang also holds the Chinese certified public accountant
qualification. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
VCREDIT Holdings Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; stock code:
HK02003) on 19 August 2020. He has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2021.
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Supervisors

Liu Qiang (235%), male, was born in June 1969 in Yongcheng City, Henan. He is
a CPC member and a senior auditor. From September 1986 to July 1990, Mr.
Liu studied at Nankai University, majoring in economics management and law,
and obtained bachelor’s degrees in law and economics. From September 2001
to July 2004, he studied at Wuhan University, majoring in world economics, and
obtained a master’s degree. In July 2009, he graduated from Henan University,
majoring in regional economics, and was admitted as a doctoral candidate. He
obtained a doctoral degree in economics in December 2009. From July 1990
to November 2002, he successively worked at the agriculture audit division,
general office and division of legal affairs under the Department of Audit of
Henan Province, and his last position was the department-head-level officer.
From November 2002 to July 2012, he was the deputy section-level supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by
Henan Provincial Government (Al & & & B A (D2 EEES). From July
2012 to November 2012, he served as the department-head-level supervisor
of the Supervisory Committee for the State-owned Enterprises Administered by
Henan Provincial Government. From November 2012 to September 2014, he
was a researcher of Provincially Administered Medium and Small Enterprise
Department (‘& B F/)\EEBZ) of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government. He also
served as a researcher of Economic Cooperation Department of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government from September 2014 to December 2014. Since December 2014,
he has been the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Company. From
February 2015 to February 2018, he was a Director of the Company. Since
February 2018, he has been the chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the
chairman of the Labor Union of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Liu Qiang held 11,500 A shares of the
Company, which accounted for approximately 0.0008% of all the A shares of
the Company and approximately 0.0007% of all the shares of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Cheng Xiangdong (F2#8 5), male, was born in December 1973 in Qixian
County, Henan. He is a CPC member and a political analyst with a master’s
degree in management. From September 1993 to July 1995, he studied at
the History Department of Shangqiu Teachers College (75 - R&i ==
FIEF). From July 1995 to September 2000, he was a staff member of the
Office of the Bureau of Materials of Shangaiu (75 £ ¥ & B #E A Z). From
September 2000 to December 2002, he was a deputy director of the Office of
the Party Committee of the Bureau of Materials of Shangqiu. From December
2002 to June 2008, he was a deputy director of the Office of Shanggiu Material
Circulation Centre (7 Fr 40 & /7R 8 AR /0182 =) (during which, he studied
at Zhengzhou University with undergraduate qualifications from September
1996 to June 2000, majoring in administration management). From June 2008
to August 2008, he worked at the human resources department of Yongcheng
Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd. From August 2008 to December 2009, he
worked at the Beijing Office of Yongcheng Coal and Electricity Group Co., Ltd.
From December 2009 to October 2010, he was a general manager assistant
and a sales director of Shangqiu Longyu Chemical Co., Ltd. From October
2010 to January 2011, he was a deputy general manager of Shanggiu Longyu
Chemical Co., Ltd. From January 2011 to September 2013, he was a director
of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary Commission (42 2 Z {442
& =) of Henan Coal Chemical Industry Group. From September 2013 to
August 2015, he was a director of the Case Inspection Office of the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Energy and Chemical Industry Group (during which, he
enrolled in EMBA studies at Beijing Jiaotong University from December 2012
to January 2015 and obtained a master’s degree in management). From
August 2015 to November 2017, he was a director of the Case Supervision
Office of the Disciplinary Commission, a member of the Party Committee and
the secretary to the Disciplinary Commission of the Sales Company of Henan
Energy and Chemical Industry Group. From November 2017 to May 2020, he
was a member of the Party Committee and the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. Since May 2020,
he has been a member of the Party Committee, the secretary to the Disciplinary
Commission, and a director of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Wang Yue (E ), was born in July 1970 in Nanyang County, Henan. He is a
CPC member and a certified public accountant with a master’s degree. In July
1993, he graduated from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (7] & B/
4L E057) and obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, majoring in industrial
economics. In July 2006, he obtained an MBA degree from Zhengzhou
University (&8N A £2). From October 1993 to October 1998, he was an
accountant in Zhengzhou Running Water General Corporation (ZB/M 1 & 2&
7K 48/ 7). From November 1998 to March 2001, he was the deputy head
of the department of accounting and finance of Zhengzhou Dongzhou Water
Supply Company Limited (255 7 5 /& {2k A BR 2 &1). From June 2004 to
December 2009, he was successively the deputy head and head of the finance
department and the financial controller of Zhengzhou Running Water General
Corporation. From December 2009 to November 2013, he was the chief
accountant of Zhengzhou Running Water Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (ZF)
B KR EIZE I A R A 7). From November 2013 to September 2015, he
was the deputy general manager of Zhengzhou Development Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (EB)N 3R E K E AR A F)). Since September 2015, he has
been the deputy general manager of Henan Machinery Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. Since February 2018, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Zhang Yonglong (3R 7K 8€), male, was born in January 1980 in Chaohu City,
Anhui. He, with Chinese nationality but without the right of permanent residence
abroad, is a senior accountant with qualification of Chinese certified public
accountant and a master’s degree. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Shenzhen University in 2003 and a master’s degree in
business administration from Xiamen University in 2017. From February 2002
to January 2004, he served as the information manager of Shenzhen Maoyu
Watch Factory (JZ 31|15 #4 § 8% [57). From February 2004 to March 2007, he
was an operation management engineer of Fuzhun Precision Industry (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. of Foxconn Group. From April 2007 to June 2012, he served as an
accountant of Han’s Laser Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd and the financial
director of its subsidiary. From July 2012 to December 2017, he has been a
financial manager and chief financial officer of Han’s Holding Group Co., Ltd..
Since January 2018, he served as the vice president of Han’s Holding Group
Co., Ltd.. Since December 2020, Mr. Zhang has concurrently served as a
director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan) Limited ( J5i & 1> 2 &
3B (A ) AR A A]). Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the
Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Zhang Minglin (3R d5#%), male, was born in January 1963. He is a CPC
member and a professor-level senior engineer with a doctoral degree. From
September 1979 to July 1983, he studied at Huainan Mining Institute (g
T 2 2205%), majoring in mining. He obtained an EMBA degree from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (22 #H% K £28) in December 2004
and a doctoral degree in economics in December 2007 from that university.
From August 1983 to August 1987, he was a section member of Henan Coal
Mine Supply Company ()r] & & B AL & A &]). From August 1987 to May
1996, he worked as a section member, a deputy senior section member and
a senior section member of Henan Coal Industrial Department. From August
1995 to February 1996, he went to Zhenggiao Village, Huzu Town, Gushi
County in Xinyang to participate in the party construction in rural areas which
was organised by Henan Provincial Committee of Chinese Communist Party.
From May 1996 to May 1999, he was the deputy general manager of Henan
Coal Mine Supply Company. From May 1999 to April 2004, he served as the
general manager and the secretary to the Party Committee of Henan Coal Mine
Supply Company. From October 2000 to November 2004, he served as the
general manager of Henan Coal Sales Company Limited (JA] & (iR 5 &
BPR E A ). From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as a
deputy general manager of ZCMM. From December 2008 to February 2018, he
has been the deputy general manager of the Company. Since February 2018,
he has been a researcher of the Company. Since March 2021, he has been a
supervisor of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Zhang Minglin held 100,000 A shares
of the Company, which accounted for approximately 0.0067% of all the A
shares of the Company and approximately 0.0058% of all the shares of the
Company.

Bao Xueliang (#2Z R ), male, was born in March 1963 in Jiangyin City,
Jiangsu. He holds undergraduate qualifications. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology (H E#% £ X £2), majoring in mechanical
design and automation. From August 1985 to June 1998, he successively
served as a technician, engineer and deputy plant manager of the sub-plant of
Tianjin Coal Mine Specialised Equipment Factory (<% 7% = F3 2% 55 ).
From July 1998 to December 2000, he successively served as an investment
manager and a deputy director of the project investment department of Tianjin
Science and Technology Development Investment Corporation (= #k 3 %
R % & 422 7)), From January 2001 to May 2007, he successively served
as the administrative director and standing deputy general manager of Tianjin
Bohai Venture Capital Investment Management Company (K;23& 28 8l %
1&°& & 38 2 @), From June 2007 to October 2008, he served as the assistant
to the chairman of ZCMM. From October 2008 to December 2008, he served as
the board secretary (deputy general manager level) of ZCMM. From December
2008 to February 2015, he severed as the board secretary of the Company.
Since February 2015, he has been a researcher of the Company. Since March
2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.
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Supervisors (Continued)

Cui Zonglin (2= #K), male, was born with Han nationality in May 1963. He,
with Chinese nationality but without the right of permanent residence abroad,
is a CPC member, a senior economist and a human resource manager. In July
1983, he graduated from Zhengzhou Coal Management Institute, majoring
in labour economics. In July 1986, he graduated from Zhengzhou University,
majoring in law. In December 1995, he graduated from the Party School of CPC
Central Committee, majoring in economic management. He has been working
in the Company since 1983, successively serving as a principal staff member,
section chief, an assistant to the head and a deputy head of the human
resources department, and a deputy head (in charge of work) and the head of
the legal affairs department. He has been a special expert of the Company since
February 2018. Since March 2021, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Senior Management

Mr. Jia Hao (E %) is a general manager of the Company. Please refer to
“Directors” of this section for his biography.

Fu Qi ({33), male, was born in November 1969 in Biyang, Henan. He is a
member of the Chinese Communist Party and a senior engineer. He is a deputy
general manager of the Company. From September 1988 to July 1992, he
studied at China University of Mining and Technology, majoring in mechanical
design and theories. From July 1992 to September 1995, he was a section
member of the first development division of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Factory. From September 1995 to May 1996 and from May 1996 to December
1996, he was a senior section member and the deputy head of the first
development division, respectively. From December 1996 to January 2006, he
was a section officer and the deputy head of the sales planning division, the
deputy head of the marketing department, and the deputy head of the sub-
plant of installation of the Company. From January 2006 to March 2008, he
was the head of the production and manufactory department of the Company.
From March 2008 to April 2010, he was the general manager of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Material Trading Co., Ltd. From April 2010 to
February 2012, he was the chairman and the secretary of the Party Committee
of Huainan ZMJ Shun Li Machinery Co., Ltd. Since February 2012, he has been
the deputy general manager of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Zhang Haibin (5&Z5&), male, was born in September 1981 in Xinmi, Henan
and is a member of the Chinese Communist Party. He is the secretary to the
Board and company secretary of the Company. He graduated from China
University of Mining and Technology and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law in
July 2005. From July 2005 to March 2007, he was a secretary of the general
office of ZCMM. From March 2007 to December 2008, he served as the chief
secretary of the general office of ZCMM. From December 2008 to March
2010, he was the chief secretary of the general office of the Company. From
March 2010 to September 2010, he served as an assistant to the head of the
general office of the Company. From September 2010 to January 2012, he
served as the deputy head of capital operation department and representative
for securities affairs of the Company. From January 2012 to February 2015,
he was the head of general office, head of capital operation department and
representative for securities affairs of the Company. From July 2012 to February
2015, he was the head of division of party and masses’ affairs. From February
2015 to February 2018, he has been the deputy general manager and the
board secretary of the Company. From July 2017 to February 2018, he has
concurrently been the chief financial officer of the Company. Since February
2018, he has been the board secretary of the Company. Since January 2021,
he has also served as the director of Hong Qian Business Management (Henan)
Limited (A= {23 & 32 GG ) AR A 7).

Huang Hua (E1¢), female, was born in January 1969 in Zhongshan,
Guangdong. She is a chartered financial analyst (CFA) and an engineer. She is
the chief financial officer of the Company. In July 1987, she graduated from
Central South University majoring in metal physics and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in science. In August 1990, she obtained a master’s degree in
engineering majoring in inorganic non-metal materials granted by the Institution
of Metal Research under Chinese Academy of Sciences. In December 2000,
she obtained a master of business administration (MBA) degree from China
Europe International Business School. From August 1990 to November 1991,
she served as an assistant researcher at the Institution of Metal Research
(Shenyang) under Chinese Academy of Sciences. From December 1991 to
April 1999, she served as the plant manager of sub-plant, manager of the
corporate management department, chief engineer and assistant general
manager of Shenzhen Jinke Special Materials Co., Ltd. From September 2000
to May 2001, she served as a senior project manager at the capital operation
department of China Online (Bermuda) Company Limited (F B4 (B 5
K) BFRAF]). From August 2001 to July 2003, she served as investment
manager of Shenzhen Innovation Centre Co., Ltd (&Y BIFTEHEZE B R A
aJ). From August 2003 to March 2005, she served as the general manager
and director of Shenyang Jinchangpu New Materials Company Limited (&[5
% BB BE A F). From May 2005 to December 2006, she served
as the general manager of Jinco Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. From January
2007 to June 2008, she served as a project manager and senior analyst at
VALE INCO LIMITED (formerly the headquarters of Inco Ltd. (12 KBBR8 2
Zxa)). From July 2008 to September 2017, she served as the treasurer and
risk officer of Vale Minerals (China) Co. Ltd. (&K A A MEE BT EER A
aJ). From October 2017 to February 2018, she has been the consultant for the
acquisition of Bosch by the Company. Since February 2018, she served as the
chief financial officer of the Company.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Li Weiping (Z=4 ), female, was born in February 1974 in Hengshan,
Hunan. She is a deputy general manager of the Company. From October
2003 to June 2005, she studied under the MBA programme in the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. From September 1995 to August 2002, she
served as the human resources commissioner/supervisor/manager of ABB
Xinhui Low Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd. (ABB ¥1= KB EHE R A 7).
From September 2002 to September 2004, she served as the senior human
resources manager of Bosch Heating System Co., Ltd. (Bt R8E 4B R
Zxal). From September 2004 to September 2008, she served as the director
of human resources at Bosch Automotive Diesel Systems Co., Ltd. ({& ;55
LESH Z 4 A FR A 7). From July 2008 to December 2009, she served as the
director of Asia-Pacific human resources at the German headquarters of Bosch
Rexroth (Rohr, Germany). From January 2010 to March 2012, she served as
the director of human resources at Bosch Rexroth Hydraulic (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
(B h+ 4655 B (4L 5) BBR A 7). From January 2012 to August 2018,
she served as the director of human resources and chief business officer of
Bosch Automotive Components (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. ({# tH 3588301 (R N)
AR 72 7). Since October 2018, she has been the deputy general manager of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.

Company Secretary

Mr. Zhang Haibin is the company secretary. Please refer to “— Senior
Management” of this section for his biography.

Ms. Chan Yin Wah ([ %), aged 45, is the assistant to the company
secretary. Ms. Chan is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. She has over 20 years of professional experience
in handling the corporate secretarial, compliance and share registry matters
for listed companies in Hong Kong. She has worked for various internationally
well-known professional firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan
holds a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in professional
accounting. She is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom. She is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Corporate Governance

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential to the development of the Group and can safeguard and
enhance the interests of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Review Period”), the
Company complied with the requirements in the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Board of Directors
Responsibilities and Delegation to the Management

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the Company in
a responsible and effective manner, being responsible for execution of the
resolutions passed at general meetings, deciding on the Company’s operating
plans, investment proposals and the establishment of its internal management
units, preparing the Company’s annual financial budgets, final accounts and
profit distribution plans, and appointing members of its senior management.
Meanwhile, the Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Strategy Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration and Assessment Committee. These Board committees are
assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of reference.

The Board delegated the authority and duties to the senior management to carry
out the daily management, administration and operation of the Company. The
general manager is accountable to the Board.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in the best interests of
the Company and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and act in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which at least include the following:

e 1o develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

e 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Company’s annual report.

Board Meetings

The Board will convene at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board meetings will involve the active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors entitled to be present. A written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors 14 days prior to the regular Board meeting.
For the extraordinary meetings of the Board, the written notice should be sent
to all the Directors and Supervisors five days prior to the meeting. When an
extraordinary meeting of the Board needs to be held as early as possible in
case of an emergency, the meeting notice is allowed to be given by telephone
or in other verbal forms at any time provided that the convener explains at the
meeting. A written notice of meeting shall at least include the business to be
considered and the meeting information as necessary for the Directors to vote.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a Board meeting
have connected relations, such Director shall not exercise his/her voting rights
on such proposal, nor shall he/she exercise any voting rights on behalf of other
Directors.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board meetings should be sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is concluded. The participating Directors shall
sign the meeting minutes and resolutions records for confirmation on behalf of
themselves and the Directors who authorise them to attend. Any Director who
has different views on the meeting minutes or the resolutions records can make
a written explanation when signing the name; when necessary, he/she shall
report such views to the regulatory authorities timely; he/she can also make a
public statement regarding such views.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Board convened 9 meetings in total, one on each
of 14 February 2020, 9 March 2020, 27 March 2020, 28 April 2020, 15 June
2020, 31 July 2020, 28 August 2020, 28 October 2020, 25 December 2020.

Attendance of meetings by each Director during the Review Period is recorded as

follows:

Name of Directors

BEps

Mr. Jiao Chengyao
Mr. Xiang Jiayu
Mr. Jia Hao
Mr. Fu Zugang
Mr. Wang Xinying
Mr. Wang Bin
(Resignation effective from 31 March 2021)
Ms. Liu Yao
(Resignation effective from 5 June 2020)
Mr. Li Xudong
(Resignation effective from 31 March 2021)
Mr. Jiang Hua
(Resignation effective from 31 March 2021)
Mr. Cheng Jinglei
Mr. Cui Kai
(Appointed on 31 March 2021)
Mr. Yang Dongsheng
(Appointed on 31 March 2021)
Mr. JiFeng
(Appointed on 31 March 2021)
Ms. Guo Wenging
(Appointed on 31 March 2021)
Mr. Fang Yuan
(Appointed on 31 March 2021)
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(20213 A3 BEZRT)
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(20213 A3 BEZRT)
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Board of Directors (continued) EEg®m)

General Meetings RRRE

During the reporting period, the Company convened a total of one general WERN - ARFHBRATIARERS - HHEE -

meeting, which was attended by some of the Directors, Supervisors and senior EENSHREBAEBLEETHRRAE - U TAESEHE
management. Attendance of general meetings by the Directors is recorded as RERAEER

follows:

2019 Annual

General Meeting

(2020 First

A Shareholders

Class Meeting,

2020 First
H Shareholders Attendance Actual Attendance
Class Meeting) required attendance rate

WIIFFE

RRAE (2020F

E—RARER

BRRAE - 20205

Name of Directors E—RHRER
Bxps REAE) ELRERE BEREERE £
Mr. Jiao Chengyao EAELE | 1 1 100%
Mr. Xiang Jiayu ARAEE V 1 1 100%
Mr. Jia Hao Biis | 1 1 100%
Mr. Fu Zugang fHER L& V 1 1 100%
Mr. Wang Xinying THags V 1 1 100%
Mr. Wang Bin (Resignation effective from 31 March 2021) ST &2 (20213 B 31 HEET) | 1 1 100%
Ms. Liu Yao (Resignation ffective from 5 June 2020) Bl L+ (R0NECASABIT) NA &R NA TR NA REFR NIA TE R
Mr. Li Xudong (Resignation effective from 31 March 2021) ZIRR A (02153 B3 B EET) | 1 1 100%
Mr. Jiang Hua (Resignation effective from 31 March 2021) ST 24k 4 (20213 B 31 HEET) V 1 1 100%
Mr. Cheng Jinglei REZRE V 1 1 100%
Mr. Cui Kai (Appointed on 31 March 2021) EYLE(RNNEIRNAERE) NA @R NARER NAER N/A 7R iE R
Mr. Yang Dongsheng (Appointed on 31 March 2021) BEAEA(R0NEIANAREE) NA &R NA TR NA R NIA TE R
Mr. Ji Feng (Appointed on 31 March 2021) FOEA(RANEFIRINAERE) NA @R NARER NAER NA 7R iE R
Ms. Guo Wenging (Appointed on 31 March 2021) BRALT(RNEIANARE() NA &R NA TR NA R NIA TE R

Mr. Fang Yuan (Appointed on 31 March 2021) FELE(RANEIRINAEZRE) NA @R NARER NAER NANiE R




Board of Directors (continued)
Board Composition

During the Review Period, from 1 January 2020 to 4 June 2020, the Board
consisted of ten Directors, comprising six executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors; and from 5 June 2020 to 31 December
2020, the Board consisted of nine Directors, comprising six executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. One-third of the members of
the Board of the Company are independent non-executive Directors.

The executive Directors possess extensive experience in coal mining machinery
and auto parts industries, and the independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications in law and accounting as well as financial
management expertise. In accordance with the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

As at the end of the reporting period, the members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Jiao Chengyao (executive Director and Chairman), Jia Hao
(executive Director and Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (executive Director), Fu
Zugang (executive Director), Wang Xinying (executive Director) and Wang Bin
(executive Director).

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Li Xudong, Mr. Jiang Hua and Mr.
Cheng Jinglei.

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Board were:

Executive Directors: Jiao Chengyao (executive Director and Chairman), Xiang
Jiayu (executive Director and Vice Chairman), Jia Hao (executive Director and
employee Director), Fu Zugang (executive Director) and Wang Xinying (executive
Director)

Non-executive Directors: Mr. Cui Kai and Mr. Yang Dongsheng.

Independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Cheng Jinglei, Mr. Ji Feng, Ms. Guo
Wenging and Mr. Fang Yuan.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report. Save as disclosed in such
section, there is no other material relationship among the members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships).

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from all
the independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmation, the
Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.
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Chairman and General Manager

The roles of the Chairman and the General Manager of the Company have
been separated and performed by different individuals. During the Review
Period, Mr. Jiao Chengyao was the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Jia
Hao was the General Manager. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant
and key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board timely
and constructively. The General Manager is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to manage the Company’s day-to-day business in all aspects
effectively, implement major strategies and coordinate the overall business
operation.

Internal Control

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives. In accordance with the requirements set out in paragraph C.2 of
the CG Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the Board has established a
risk management and internal control system, and has continuously supervised
and reviewed the effectiveness of the system’s operation. The system is
aimed at managing, instead of eliminating, the risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, fostering effective and highly efficient operation, and
offering reasonable assurances as to the reliability of the financial reports and
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding the
Group’s assets.

Structure of risk management and internal control functions

To ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training courses and the related budget available to the Company in respect
of risk management and internal audit, the Company has established a sound
organisational structure of risk management and internal control that includes
the Board, the Audit Committee, the management of the Company, the Audit
Department and various departments of the Company.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal control
of the Company by determining the overall risk preference and risk tolerance
of the Company based on the strategic development objectives and ensuring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. The
Audit Committee under the Board monitors the operation of the Company’s
risk management and internal control system, advises the Board and makes
recommendations on major decisions regarding the building of the risk
management and internal control system. The management of the Company is
responsible for laying down the risk management and internal control structure
and basic requirements, and continuously improving the scope, substance,
methodology and procedure of work of the structure. The Audit Department of
the Company conducts internal audit and supervision for risk management, and
is responsible to the management of the Company. As the first line of defence
in risk management and internal control, various departments of the Company
organise and carry out the daily work in risk management and accept the
organisation, coordination, guidance and supervision by the management and
the Audit Department of the Company in doing their part of risk management
and internal control in their respective professional areas.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of risk management and internal control functions
(Continued)

Commencement of risk management work

Risk prevention determines the course in building the Company’s system and
internal control structure. During the Review Period, based on the methodology
of risk management covering risk identification, risk assessment, risk response,
risk reporting and monitoring, the Company focused on its overall operating
objectives, combined the internal and external circumstances, as well as the
management conditions of the Company, fully reorganised and identified the
possible risks from different aspects, such as strategy, operation, finance,
market, law and others, and thereby built up a risk incident database that was
unique to the Company.

On the basis of risk identification, each responsible department for risks
performs an in-depth analysis of the risks identified from two perspectives,
namely vulnerability to the occurrence of risk and the extent of impact from
the occurrence of risk, in order to determine the different levels of risk and,
through evaluation, ascertain the major risks the Company is faced with.
This is to ensure that appropriate management resources are allocated to
the management of major risks in an effort to step up the risk prevention and
control in key areas.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for internal audit in risk
management. By organising and commencing the supervision and assessment
of risk management, the Audit Department of the Company continuously
monitors and controls the major risks and information on changes in risks in the
course of operation and management of each responsible department for risks,
supervises and assesses whether each department is able to commence risk
management work in accordance with the relevant regulations and the results
of the work, and makes recommendations on improving the effectiveness of
implementing risk management work.

Operation of the internal control system

The building and improvement of internal control is an effective response
to risks. Every year, the Company reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, and evaluates all the key areas of
control, including financial control, operations control and compliance control.

On the basis of adequately identifying and evaluating risks, the Company
implements the basic response measures to risks for internal control through
specific business processes. In view of the management and business
processes involved in major risks, the Company has formulated whole-process
control measures covering every stage, including management procedures and
internal control measures for important processes, such as the preparation
and disclosure of financial reports, as well as the handling and dissemination
of inside information. Through gradual formation of a sound internal control
environment, characterised by well-defined powers and responsibilities, effective
checks and balances, and coordinated operation, the Company has laid a solid
foundation for enhancing the level of internal control and risk management.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Structure of risk management and internal control functions
(Continued)

Operation of the internal control system (Continued)

Risk management and internal control for the Review Period was reviewed at
the Board meeting on 26 March 2021. The results of the commencement of
risk management and internal control work in 2020 indicated no control failure
for major risks in the Company and revealed no weakness in major risk control.
The Company has been in strict compliance with the requirements about risk
management and internal control in the CG Code. The Board has assessed
the Company’s risk management and internal control system as effective and
adequate.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s corporate documents such as
the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). In
accordance with Article 153 of the Articles of Association, the Directors of the
Company shall be elected or replaced at the general meetings and the terms
of office of all Directors (including executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors) shall be three years. Upon the expiry of the terms, the
Directors will be eligible for re-election and re-appointment. Subject to the
compliance with relevant laws and administrative regulations, the general
meeting may dismiss any Director during his/her service term by way of an
ordinary resolution (except that any claim for compensation pursuant to any
contract shall not be prejudiced thereby).

The Company has not entered into any service contract (except for any contract
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation) with any of the Directors/
Supervisors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction after his/her initial appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and relevant statutory requirements.

The Directors also reviewed the amendments to or up-to-date version of the
relevant laws, rules and regulations regularly. In addition, the Company has
been encouraging the Directors and executives to enroll in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance/act and corporate governance practices organised by
professional bodies, independent auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so
that they can continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the Directors are provided with written training
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills.
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Internal Control (Continued)
Directors’ Training and Professional Development (Continued)

Il the Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional development so that their relevant knowledge and skills can be
improved and updated. The Company has arranged internal training for the
Directors by seminars and provision of training information.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all the Directors had been given
relevant guideline materials and attended trainings regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, as well as the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors.

Insurance for Directors

To mitigate the exposure to liabilities of the Directors, at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2013, the Company resolved to take out an insurance
plan at a total premium of not more than US$30 million for the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives to cover their liabilities (the “Liability
Insurance”) and confirmed that arrangements regarding the Liability Insurance
had been completed. The Liability Insurance covered the periods from 19 July
2014 t0 18 July 2015, from 19 July 2015 to 18 July 2016, from 19 July 2016
to 18 July 2017, from 18 July 2017 to 17 July 2018, from 18 July 2018 to 17
July 2019, from 18 July 2019 to 17 July 2020 and from 18 July 2020 to 17
July 2021,

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

The Gompany has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and the Supervisors. The Company has made
specific enquiries with all the Directors and Supervisors, who have confirmed
their compliance with the Model Code during the Review Period.

Remuneration Policy

The Company has endeavored to improve its remuneration management
measures for its Directors, Supervisors and senior management under the
guidance of relevant policies of the PRC. The Company’s remuneration system
for Directors, Supervisors and senior management is based on the principle
of combining incentives and disciplines, and market-oriented adjustment and
governmental regulation.

The Directors receive remuneration in different forms, including salaries,
allowances, benefits in kind, discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme
contributions made on their behalf.

During the Review Period, there was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.
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Internal Control (Continued)

Responsibility Statement of Directors Regarding Preparation
of Account

All the Directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibilities to the
preparation of the Company’s account for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and the Board prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four committees, namely, the Strategy Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
and Assessment Committee, in accordance with the CG Code. These Board
committees are assigned respective responsibilities according to their terms of
reference. The composition and main functions of these committees and their
work during the Review Period are set out as follows:

Strategy Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Strategy Committee
comprised Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu, Mr. Yang
Dongsheng, Mr. Jia Hao and and Mr. Cheng Jinglei.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to study and
comment on our long-term development plans and significant investment
strategies, including: (i) reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies; (ii) reviewing and commenting on the Company’s significant capital
investment and financing proposals that require approval of the Board; (iii)
reviewing and commenting on the significant capital expenditure and assets
management projects that require approval of the Board; and (iv) exercising
other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not convene any meeting during the year.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Audit Committee
comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Cui Kai and Ms. Guo Wenging. The Audit
Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director and comprises
a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the Company’s financial reports and auditing work, including: (i)
proposing appointment and replacement of the Company’s independent
auditors; (i) supervising the Company’s internal auditing policies and their
implementation, supervising the financial statements and annual reports and
accounts of the Company, and reviewing material opinions regarding financial
reporting as stated in financial statements and reports; (i) coordinating the
communication between our internal Audit Department and the independent
auditors; (iv) reviewing the Company’s financial information and disclosure
of such information; (v) reviewing the Company’s internal control system and
auditing on the material connected or related party transactions; (vi) reviewing
the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems
and to evaluate whether there is material failure or weakness in the risk
management and internal control of the Company; (vii) discussing the risk
management and internal control system with the management to ensure that
the management has performed its duty to establish such effective systems; (viii)
researching on major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and the management’s response to these findings as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative; (ix) evaluating the changes in the nature
and extent of significance of the material risks the Company faces after the
previous year and its ability to respond to the changes in the business and the
changes in external environment; and () exercising other functions and duties as
authorised by the Board.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee convened four meetings, with
full attendance of the entire committee:

(1

On 23 March 2020, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its first meeting in 2020, where it considered and approved the
Proposal on 2019 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial Report of
the Company, the Proposal on 2019 Annual Report and Summary of the
Company, the Proposal on the 2019 Report on Internal Control Assessment
of the Company, the Proposal on the 2019 Report on Internal Control Audit
of the Company, the Proposal on the 2019 Report on the Performance of
Duties of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company, the Proposal
on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and Internal Control Audit
Institution for 2020, the Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of
the Company in 2019 and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of
the Company in 2020, and the Proposal on the Provision for Impairment of
Goodwill;

On 28 April 2020, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the Board
convened its second meeting in 2020, where it considered and approved
the Proposal on the 2020 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited;

On 24 August 2020, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the
Board convened its third meeting in 2020, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on 2020 Interim Report and Summary thereof,
Interim Results Announcement and Interim Report of the Company, and
the Proposal on the 2020 Unaudited Interim Financial Statements of the
Company;

On 28 October 2020, the Audit Committee of the fourth session of the
Board convened its fourth meeting in 2020, where it considered and
approved the Proposal on the 2020 Third Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Nomination Committee
comprised Ms. Guo Wenging (Chairman), Mr. Xiang Jiayu and Mr. Cheng
Jinglei. The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
Director and is composed of a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to: (i) advise
on the size and structure of the Board in accordance with the position of
the Company’s operation, scale of assets and shareholding structure; (ii)
formulate the selection criteria and procedures for candidates of the Company’s
Directors and management personnel; (iii) search for qualified candidates of
Directors and management personnel; (iv) review the qualifications and other
credentials of the candidates of Directors and management personnel; (v)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; (vi) make
recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of the Company’s
Directors; and (vii) exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the
Board.

During the Review Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board. Given its view that the Company had no
reason for urgency to change the structure, size and composition of the Board,
the Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during the reporting period.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Remuneration and
Assessment Committee comprised Mr. Ji Feng (Chairman), Mr. Jia Hao and
Mr. Fang Yuan. The Remuneration and Assessment Committee is chaired
by an independent non-executive Director and is composed of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
are to: (i) formulate the remuneration and compensation policies and schemes
for the Company’s Directors and management personnel; (ii) evaluate the
performance of the Company’s Directors and management personnel and
assess the appropriate remuneration package for such Directors and officers;
(iii) supervise the implementation of remuneration policies and schemes; and (iv)
exercise other functions and duties as authorised by the Board.

During the Review Period, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee
convened one meeting, with full attendance of the entire committee:

(1) On 22 January 2020, the Remuneration and Assessment Committee of
the fourth session of the Board convened its first meeting in 2020, where
it considered and approved the Proposal on Rewarding Personnel with
Special Contributions to 2019 Performance of ZMJ.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration and Assessment Committee (Continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)
AR (ANR¥TT)

0-500
500-750
750-1,000
>1,000
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Number of individuals

Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

With a view to achieving sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees the increasing diversity of the Board as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and maintaining its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Candidates for the Company’s Directors will be selected based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender and age) will be disclosed in the annual report of
the Company each year.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review annually on the Board’s composition
in respect of diversity, and monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy.

AE
1
0
2
7
ESEZULEE
Ea=]

REPAFHENIEER  ARRRESFTERRRS
T AR EER B B IR M A RHE RV TT
R ARRERTEFEXNBEAR SRS EITEE
BEZEKEZILL  BRETERMER  Fi& - XXt
REEES Bk FELR - R ARMRBE
B BFEMBELZEOUAARS BRA - XEZBA
ERAEBGRE RO BEREFEKRE S LM -

DRE L
DRERRENE{R RIS TTCBEREE - B

BRRRER - Fik - MERBEER - Bk - BEK
B e MBRRBED - REBRAENRER

AREFERUNEBMIERE - EFSHK(R2EN
Bl FER)BEFEARFHRARE -

Ba R E R
REZESFFRINEEFSAESILCEEMAERK - 1
RERSZILLBERMAIT



Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers and BDO China Shu Lun
Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as the international and domestic auditors
of the Company, respectively. Details of fees paid or payable to the auditors by
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Services rendered

FriZEBRTE

2020 annual audit
Non-audit services
Total wast

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Zhang Haibin (“Mr. Zhang”),
who also acts as the Board secretary of the Company, is an employee of the
Company and has knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs.

In addition, the Company appointed Ms. Chan Yin Wah (“Ms. Chan”) as the
assistant to the company secretary, to work closely with Mr. Zhang and to
provide assistance to Mr. Zhang to discharge his duties and responsibilities as
company secretary such as organising meetings of the Board and meetings
of holders of the H Shares and gaining the relevant experience as required
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Chan is an
associate director of a corporate service provider, SWCS Corporate Services
Group (Hong Kong) Limited. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Zhang, whom Ms. Chan will contact on matters relating to
corporate governance, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong as well as other laws
and regulations which are relevant to the Company and other affairs of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang and Ms. Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period, respectively.
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Investor Relations, Communication with Shareholders
and General Meeting

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information.
Information of the Company is communicated mainly through the Company’s
corporate communications including interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars, etc. These publications are sent to the shareholders in a timely
manner and are also available on the website of the Company (http://www.
zmj.com). The means of communication between the Company and the
shareholders also include general meetings, analysts meetings or seminars,
one-on-one meetings, telephone consultation, advertisements, media interviews
and coverage, site visits and roadshows, etc.

Shareholders’ Rights

According to the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) individually or in
aggregate holding 10% or above of the shares of the Company shall have the
right, by written requisition to the Board to propose an extraordinary general
meeting to be called. The Board shall, in accordance with laws, administrative
regulations, and the Articles of Association, make a response in writing on
whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting, within
ten days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice convening the extraordinary general
meeting shall be issued within five days to all shareholders after the Board
resolves to do so. If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or does not reply within 10 days upon receiving the request,
shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or above of the Company’s
shares shall have the right to propose to the Board of Supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting by way of written request. If the Board of
Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon receiving the request. Should there be alterations to the original proposals
in the notice, consent has to be obtained from the related shareholders. If the
Board of Supervisors does not issue a notice of the general meeting within the
required period, it will be considered as not going to convene and preside over
the general meeting, and shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or
above of the shares of the Company for over 90 consecutive days shall have
the right to convene and preside over the meeting on their own. All reasonable
expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Board and the Board of Supervisors to convene a meeting as
required by the above request(s) shall be borne by the Company, and any sum
so compensated shall be set-off against sums owed by the Company to the
defaulting Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

When a general meeting is convened, shareholder(s) individually or jointly
holding 3% or above of the Company’s shares shall have the right to submit
proposals to the Company. Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 3%
or above of the Company’s shares can submit a temporary proposal to the
convener 10 days prior to the general meeting.

Shareholders have the right to make enquiries and copies of the minutes of
general meetings, resolutions of Board meetings and resolutions of the Board of
Supervisors.

Shareholders may make enquiries about the Company’s affairs through our
investor relations consultant of the Company:

Strategic Development Department of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited

Address: No. 167, 9th Street,
Econ-Tech Development Zong,
Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC
Telephone: (86 371) 6789 1199
Fax: (86 371) 6789 1000
Postal Code: 450016

Amendments to the Articles of Association

During the Review Period, the Articles of Association of the Company has been
revised once. The amendments were considered and approved at the 2019
Annual General Meeting, the 2020 First A Shareholders Class Meeting and the
2020 First H Shareholders Class Meeting held on 15 June 2020. Please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 27 March 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 22 May 2020 respectively for details.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the Company
may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits and the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth (the “Dividend Policy”).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Dividend Policy is as follows:

() Profit distribution of the Company shall reflect reasonable investment
returns to the investors and, by giving considerations to the reasonable
capital demands of the Company, work out a profit distribution plan in
conformity with the sustainable development requirement and profit
optimisation principle of the Company by referring to factors such as the
size of share capital, development strategies, investment plans, profit
growth and cash flows.

() The Company may pay dividends in the form of cash or shares and may
conduct interim dividend distribution in the form of cash. If the cash flow
allows, profit distribution should be conducted in the form of cash dividend.

(Il - The conditions of cash dividend of the Company: when the Company
records a profit for the year and the cumulative undistributed profit for the
year, after making up for losses in previous years and allocation to the
common reserve fund in accordance with laws, is positive in value, and
where the auditing firm issues an unqualified audit opinion on the financial
report of the Company for the year, the Company may prioritise distribution
of dividend in cash. If the Company distributes dividend in cash, it shall
follow the rules below:

1. If the Company is in a mature development stage without significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 80%;

2. If the Company is in a mature development stage with significant
capital expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend
in profit distribution shall be 40%;

3. If the Company is in a growth stage with significant capital
expenditure plans, the minimum percentage of cash dividend in profit
distribution shall be 20%;

If it is difficult to determine the Company’s stage of development while it has
a significant capital expenditure plan, the profit distribution may be dealt with
pursuant to the rules applied in the previous distribution. Major investment or
significant cash expenditure refers to the proposed external investment by the
Company within the next twelve months, asset acquisition (including land use
rights) or facilities procurement with accumulated expenditure amounting to or
exceeding 10% of the latest audited net assets of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

)

(v

Specific conditions for share dividend distribution: provided that the
Company’s business is in a sound condition and the reasonable scale
of share capital of the Company is ensured, and when the Board of the
Company believes the share dividend distribution will be in the interests of
all shareholders of the Company, the Company may propose to distribute
the share dividend and implement upon the consideration and approval at
the general meeting.

The profits of the Company to be distributed shall not go beyond the scope
of cumulative distributable profits.

When profits are recorded in the current year and after the Company has
sufficiently allocated to the statutory reserve fund, the cumulative profits
distributed in cash for the last three years shall not be less than 30% of
the average distributable profits realised for the last three years.

Where there is a change in the Company’s control resulting from securities
issuance, material asset reorganisation, merger, division or acquisition,
the Company shall disclose in details the cash dividend policy and relevant
arrangements after such offering, issuance, reorganisation or change in
the control, as well as the Board’s explanation of the aforesaid, in the
prospectus, offering proposal, material asset reorganisation report, report
of change of interest or acquisition report.

(VIll) On the premise that the returns to shareholders has been thoroughly

considered and the legitimate rights and interests of the public
shareholders are guaranteed, if the Company realises profits at the current
year, the Board of Directors shall bring forward scientific and reasonable
profit distribution suggestions and proposal and submit them to the
shareholders’ general meeting for voting. The Company shall practically
secure the right of public shareholders to attend the shareholders’
general meeting; and the Board of Directors, independent Directors and
shareholders meeting certain conditions may solicit the right to vote at the
shareholders’ general meeting from shareholders of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(IX) Decision-making processes and mechanisms for profit distribution of the

Company:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company shall devise a reasonable
dividend distribution recommendation and proposal based on the
profitability, capital requirements and shareholders’ returns plan of
the Company and implement after the consideration and approval
at the general meeting upon the consideration and approval by the
Board. Any adjustment thereof shall go through the procedures above
again. The independent Directors of the Company shall examine the
profit distribution proposal and issue independent opinions thereon;
independent Directors may solicit opinions of minority shareholders,
prepare a dividend distribution proposal and submit it directly to the
Board for consideration.

The Company shall strictly implement its cash dividend policy as
determined in the Articles of Association and the specific cash
dividend proposal as considered and approved at the general
meeting. If the Company needs to adjust or change the cash dividend
policy as determined in the Articles of Association, it is required to
satisfy the conditions under the Articles of Association and execute
appropriate decision-making procedures after substantiation. The
adjustment or changes shall be passed by shareholders representing
not less than two-thirds of voting rights held by all shareholders
present at the meeting; the independent Directors shall give
explicit opinion on matters such as the truthfulness, adequacy
and reasonableness of the reasons for adjustments and changes,
truthfulness and validity of the approval procedures as well as its
compliance with the conditions required in the Articles of Association,
and communicate and exchange ideas with minority shareholders
before the general meeting and give timely reply to issues that
concern minority shareholders. Independent Directors may collect
opinions from shareholders through the online voting system, if
necessary.

Specific conditions for the Company to adjust the cash dividend
policy: (1) the Company suffers from losses or has issued a loss
warning announcement; (2) the balance of cash, excluding cash
raised from capital markets and cash within special funding for
special purposes or special account management funding such as
government special financial funds (including bank deposits and
bonds with high liquidity), is not sufficient to pay the cash dividends
within two months from the date of general meeting approving the
profit distribution; (3) execution of the established dividend policy
will render it impossible for the material investment projects and
material transactions approved by the general meeting or the Board
to be implemented according to established transaction plans; (4)
the Board has reasonable grounds to believe that execution of the
established dividend policy will have a material adverse impact on the
continuing operation and profitability of the Company.
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Dividend Policy (Continued)

(X)  Mechanism for supervision and restraint on cash dividend

1.

The Board of Supervisors shall supervise the implementation of the
Company’s dividend distribution policy and shareholders’ returns
plan by the Board and the management, and the decision-making
procedures thereof;

The Board and the general meeting of the Company shall, in the
decision-making and substantiation process in respect of the
profit distribution policy, fully consider the opinions of independent
Directors and minority shareholders. When considering the specific
plan on cash dividend distribution in the general meeting, active
communication and exchange with shareholders, especially minority
shareholders, shall be conducted via different channels, including but
not limited to telephone, facsimile, e-mails, letters and the Internet,
to thoroughly listen to the views and needs of minority shareholders,
and reply to questions concerned by minority shareholders shall also
be made in a timely manner;

If profit is recorded but the Board of the Company does not put
forth a cash dividend distribution proposal, reasons therefor and
the capital retained by the Company that may otherwise be used as
dividends shall be disclosed in its periodic report, and independent
non-executive Directors shall express explicit independent opinions
thereon;

The Company shall fully disclose the formulation and execution
of the cash distribution policy in its periodic reports. The report
shall explain: whether the profit distribution is in compliance with
the Company’s Articles of Association or with the general meeting
resolution; whether the standard and proportion of profit distribution
is precise and clear; whether the decision-making procedures and
mechanisms are adequate; whether the independent Directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities and played their role; whether
the minority shareholders have the opportunity to fully express their
views and needs; whether the legitimate rights and interests of
minority shareholders are fully protected and so forth. In the event
that adjustment or change of the cash distribution policy is carried
out, full explanation shall also be given as to whether the conditions
and procedures for the adjustment or change are compliant and
transparent.
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Board of Supervisors
Composition of the Board of Supervisors

As of the date of this annual report, the Board of Supervisors was composed of
seven members, four of whom were nominated by the shareholders and three
were nominated by the employees. The Supervisors are appointed for a term of
three years, upon the expiry of which they may be re-elected.

As at the end of the Review Period, the members of the Board of Supervisors
were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong,
Mr. Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan Shaochong.

As of the date of this annual report, the members of the Board of Supervisors
were Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Zhang Yonglong,
Mr. Zhang Minglin, Mr. Bao Xueliang and Mr. Cui Zonglin.

The list and biographies of the Supervisors of the Company are set out under
the section “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in that section, there is no other material relationship
among members of the Board of Supervisors.

Duties of the Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors shall be accountable to the general meetings and
exercise the following duties and powers in accordance with law:

e reviewing regular corporate reports prepared by the Board and submitting
written opinions regarding the same;

e examining the financial affairs of the Company;

e monitoring the performance of duties of Directors and senior management,
and proposing the dismissal of Directors and senior management who
have violated laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association
or resolutions of the general meetings;

e demanding for remedy in the event of any damage to the interests of the
Company caused by the Directors or senior management;

e proposing the convening of extraordinary general meetings, and convening
and chairing general meetings in the event that the Board fails to perform
its duties to convene and chair the general meeting pursuant to the
Company Law;

e proposing motions to general meetings;
e ljaising with the Directors on behalf of the Company or instituting legal

proceedings against the Directors and senior management pursuant to the
provisions of Article 151 of the Company Law;
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Board of Supervisors (Continued)
Duties of the Board of Supervisors (Continued)

e in case of any irregularity related to the operation of the Company
identified, to investigate; and if necessary, to engage professional
institutions such as accounting firms or law firms to assist in its work at
the expense of the Company;

e reviewing the financial information, such as financial report, operation
report and profit distribution plan, to be submitted by the Board to the
general meetings; and may, in the name of the Company, appoint a
certified public accountant or a qualified auditor to re-examine such
documents if a suspicious item is identified;

e exercising other duties and powers specified in the Articles of Association.

During the Review Period, the Board of Supervisors held five meetings in total.
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EEEHRES

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities and Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacturing of comprehensive
coal mining and excavating equipment. Details of the principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the financial statements. During the
Review Period, the Group was engaged in two principal businesses, namely,
coal mining machinery and auto parts.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the Review Period, to the knowledge of the Company, the Group
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that had a material impact on
the business of the Group in all material aspects and there were no material
breaches of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavours to achieve long-term sustainable development in the
environment and community where it operates. The Group actively gives back
to society and engages in public welfare activities in addition to striving for good
performance, with an aim to foster credibility and build a good corporate image.
Besides, the Group acts in an environmentally responsible way and strives
to comply with the relevant environmental laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group also adopts effective measures to achieve efficient utilisation of
resources, reduces wastage, and advocates water and electricity conservation.

Business Review

Please refer to the sections of Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis. The sections of Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis form part of this Report of the Board of
Directors.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
financial statements of this annual report.

The Board held a meeting on 26 March 2021, at which a relevant resolution
was passed, which proposed the payment of a final dividend (the “Dividend”)
of RMB2.15 per 10 shares for the year ended 31 December 2020, totalling
approximately RMB372,481,344.55. If the proposal in relation to the profit
distribution is approved by the shareholders at the 2020 annual general meeting
to be held on 4 June 2021 (the “2020 Annual General Meeting”),the final
Dividend for H Shares of the Company will be distributed on or before 30 July
2021.
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Results and Dividends (Continued)

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (2 #E A R 3L AN
B #PAT1S56%) and its implementation regulations (the “EIT Law”), the
tax rate of enterprise income tax applicable to the income of a non-resident
enterprise deriving from the PRC is 10%. In this regard, any H Shares registered
under the name of a non-individual enterprise, including under the name of
HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees or trustees, or other organisations
and entities, shall be deemed as shares held by non-resident enterprise
shareholders (as defined under the “EIT Law”). The Company will distribute
the final Dividend to those non-resident enterprise shareholders subject to a
deduction of 10% enterprise income tax withheld and paid by the Company on
their behalf.

Any resident enterprise (as defined under the “EIT Law”) which is legally
incorporated in the PRC or established pursuant to the laws of foreign countries
(regions) but has its effective administrative entity located in the PRC and whose
name appears on the Company’s H Share register of members should deliver
a legal opinion ascertaining its status as a resident enterprise furnished by a
practicing PRC lawyer (with the official chop of the law firm affixed thereon) and
relevant documents to Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited in
due course, if the enterprise does not wish to have the 10% enterprise income
tax withheld and paid on their behalf by the Company.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Issues on Levy of Individual Income Tax after the
Abolishment of Circular SAT No. [1993]045 (B85 B 75 2% [1993]04555 X {4+
& IH 1 B REAFTS TEE MR RVEAN)) (the “Notice”) issued by the
State Taxation Administration on 28 June 2011, the dividend to be distributed
by a domestic non-foreign invested enterprise, which has issued shares in
Hong Kong, to overseas resident individual shareholders is subject to individual
income tax at a tax rate of 10% in general. However, the tax rates for respective
overseas resident individual shareholders may vary, depending on the relevant
tax agreements between the countries of their residence and Mainland China.
Accordingly, 10% individual income tax will be withheld from the final Dividend
upon such Dividend payment to any individual shareholders of H Shares whose
names appear on the H Share register of members of the Company on the
record date, unless otherwise stated in the relevant taxation regulations, taxation
agreements or the Notice.

The Company will not be liable for any claim arising from any delay in, or
inaccurate determination of the identity of shareholders or any disputes over the
mechanism of withholding.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or agreed to waive
any dividends.
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Profit Distribution to Investors of Northbound Trading

For investors of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (including enterprises and
individuals) investing in the A Shares of the Company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (the “Northbound Trading”), their dividends will be distributed
in RMB by the Company through the Shanghai Branch of China Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited to the account of the nominal
holder holding such shares. The Company will withhold and pay income taxes
at the rate of 10% on behalf of those investors and will report to the competent
tax authorities for the withholding. For investors of the Northbound Trading who
are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend income tax rate of lower
than 10%, those enterprises or individuals may apply to the competent tax
authorities of the Company for the entitiement of the rate under such tax treaty
or may entrust a withholding agent to do so. Upon approval by the competent
tax authorities, the paid tax amount in excess of the tax payable based on the
tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Northbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of A Shares of the Company.

Profit Distribution to Investors of Southbound Trading

For investors of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (including enterprises and individuals) investing in the H Shares of
the Company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Southbound
Trading”), the Company has entered into the Agreement on Distribution of
Cash Dividends of H Shares for the Southbound Trading ( € R% 3@ H A% A%
ZIR AT AR 3 5% ) ) with China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited, pursuant to which, China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited or its branches, as the nominal investors of H
Shares for the Southbound Trading, will receive cash dividends distributed by
the Company and distribute the cash dividends to relevant investors of H Shares
of the Southbound Trading through its depository and clearing system.

Cash dividends for the investors of H Shares of the Southbound Trading will
be paid in RMB. Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Notice on
the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect (Cai Shui No. [2014]81) K B JEBIRETIH 5 G Ht 5
37 I 554 2 7 B R M R R Y 3@ &0 (B 412014181 55% ) ) and the Notice
on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Programme of the Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui No. [2016]127) K B /FBRETIH X 5
B 3 i ) 4 A A M B 5 3 0 (B R [2016]127 %% ) ), for
dividends received by domestic individual investors from investing in H Shares
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the companies of
such H Shares shall withhold individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf
of the investors. For dividends received by domestic securities investment
funds from investing in shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect, the tax payable shall be the same as that for individual investors. The
companies of such H Shares will not withhold the income tax of dividends for
domestic enterprise investors and such investors shall report and pay relevant
tax by themselves.

The record date and the date of distribution of cash dividends and other
arrangements for the investors of the Southbound Trading will be the same as
those for the holders of H Shares of the Company.
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Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering on the
Stock Exchange

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on 5
December 2012 and the net proceeds were HK$2,155.55 million after
deducting relevant expenses. During the Review Period, save as described in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2014 in relation to the
update on the use of proceeds and the announcement dated 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering,
the use of proceeds was in line with the usage disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company.

Regarding the use of proceeds raised from H Share offering of the Company
for 2020, the banking charge, deposit interest income received and foreign
exchange loss amounted to RMB1,153.95, RMB957.52 and RMB2,530,867.10
respectively. As of 31 December 2020, the balance of proceeds raised from the
H Share offering amounted to approximately RMB39,344,424.92.

For the unused funds raised from H Share offering, it is expected that the
Company would continue to apply it to the acquisition of high-quality assets
in the auto parts industry according to the announcement on 23 May 2017 in
relation to the proposed change to the use of proceeds from H Share offering.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statements of
changes in equity and note 50 to the financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions on pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
and the laws of the PRC which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Share Option Incentive Scheme

In order to implement the national policies on deepening the reform of state-
owned enterprises and documents such as the Notice by the State Council of
Issuing the Plan for Reforming the State-owned Capital Authorized Operation
System (Guo Fa [2019] No.9) (KRARAENZE 2L B A & AR I AT & RE
JTEREEN) (F3£[2019]95%) ) and the Notice by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council on Issuing the
‘Double-Hundred” Work Plan for the Reform of State-owned Enterprises (Guo Zi
Fa Yan Jiu [2018] No.70) (B ENZE R P2 E (£ H178] TIEH &R
BN B & ZEAT T [2018]7055), further improve the corporate governance
structure of the Company, promote the establishment and perfection of the
distribution mechanism that combines incentives and restraints, fully mobilize
the Directors, senior management, core management and core technicians
and key business personnel of the Company, effectively align the interests of
shareholders and the Company with the personal interests of the management,
facilitate the Company in releasing new vitality in sustainable development as
well as promote the sustainable development of the Company, the establishment
of the A Share Option Incentive Scheme was approved by shareholders at the
Second Extraordinary General Meeting of 2019, the First A Shareholders Class
Meeting of 2019 and the First H Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 held on
21 October 2019.

In accordance with the Share Option Incentive Scheme, the Company will grant
a number of options to the qualified participants who are entitled to purchase A
Shares of the Company. The number of share options proposed to be granted
to the participants under the Share Option Incentive Scheme is no more than
16,030,000, amounting to 0.93% of the total share capital of the Company
(i.e. 1,732,471,370 shares) as at the date of this report. The total number
of shares of the Company granted to any participant under the Share Option
Incentive Scheme within the validity periods of all equity incentive schemes of
the Company shall in aggregate not exceed 1% of the Company’s total share
capital and 1% of the Company’s total issued A Share capital at the date on
which the scheme was approved at the general meetings. The total number of
A Shares in respect of all equity incentive schemes of the Company in effect
shall in aggregate not exceed 10% of the Company’s total share capital and
10% of the Company’s total issued A Share capital at the date on which the
scheme was approved at the general meetings. Under the scheme, options
granted to participants are only vested if certain performance standards are
met. Participation in the scheme is at the Board’s discretion and no individual
has a contractual right to participate in the scheme or to receive any guaranteed
benefits.

The implementation of the Share Option Incentive Scheme will not cause the
shareholding structure of the Company to be unable to comply with the listing
requirements.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of the
Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options remain
exercisable for a period of 12 months.
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Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)

In 2019, the Company granted 16,030,000 share options to 333 participants
under the Share Option Incentive Scheme. The date of grant was 4 November

2019. The breakdown of allocation is as follows:

Name

HH

Jia Hao
H

B4
Fu Zugang
NN

Fu Qi
bk

Zhang Haibin
R

Huang Hua

g

Bt

Li Weiping
FET

Position

LS

Vice Chairman and General Manager
BEER - g

Executive Director
WITES
Deputy General Manager

ElEERCS L

Secretary to the Board
E=gnE

Chief Financial Officer
B aR s

Deputy General Manager
Bl asig

Core management and core personnel of the Company’s headquarters and
relevant business segments (327 people in total)
RARBE RAMAEERBIZOEEAS - O BE(H27A)

Total

At
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Percentage of the
Percentage of the total share capital
Number of share number of the  of the Company

options granted share options as at the date
(0°000) under this grant of this report
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70 4.37% 0.04%

60 3.74% 0.03%

35 2.18% 0.02%

35 2.18% 0.02%

35 2.18% 0.02%

35 2.18% 0.02%

1,333 83.16% 0.77%

1,603 100.00% 0.93%
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Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued) B EHA BT &l ()

2020 2019
b g 2323 —T-NF

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options

FHKRE BHKRE

HRERY AR
T EE HEEE 17 E RSN E

As at 1 January n—H—H 5.98 16,030,000 -
Granted during the year REREH - 5.98 16,030,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE - -
Forfeited during the year REF AR UL - -
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 5.795 16,030,000 5.98 16,030,000
Vested and exercisable ®w+—-—A=+—H = = - -

at 31 December BB RA FIT{E

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry dates RERMAITENRZHEAEE A TEEE RITHEE -

and exercise prices:

Share options
Exercise [RejNILTHT T

Share options
31 December

Grant Date Expiry date price 2020 2019

PR =R REARE

—s-2f L IE

+=AH +=A

& A Z|H8 R TfEE =+—H =+—H

4 November 2019 19 December 2022 5.795 5,289,900 5,289,900
—E-NF+—AMA “ZE-F+=ZA+AhH

4 November 2019 19 December 2023 5.795 5,289,900 5,289,900
—ZT—hs+—AMA —Z==%+-A+hA

4 November 2019 19 December 2024 5.795 5,450,200 5,450,200
—T-hF+—HAmMmA “Z-NFE+=A+ANA

Total 16,030,000 16,030,000

#Et
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the period 2.51 years 3.52 years
FREAZR I AR T ER R A N 39 82 T & R R R 2515 3.524F

The Company provided RMB10,136,000 (2019: RMB1,601,000) as expenses

in 2020.

ARARRZEZEFFHHEARY10,136,000 (= — N
& ARH1,601,0007T)1EFIST ©



Share Option Incentive Scheme (Continued)
Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value of options granted at the date of grant during the
year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB0.49 per share. The fair value at the
date of grant is independently determined using an adjusted form of the Black
Scholes Model which includes a Monte Carlo simulation model that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution (where
material), the share price at the date of grant and expected price volatility of
the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the risk-free interest rate
for the term of the option and the correlations and volatilities of the peer group
companies.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31 December 2020
included:

(@) options are granted for no consideration and vest based on Company’s
ranking within a peer group of 20 selected companies over a three-year
period. Vested options are exercisable for a period of two years after
vesting

(b) exercise price: RMB5.98 (the exercise price changed to RMB5.795 per
share in 2020)

(c) date of grant: 4 November 2019

(d) expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023, 19 December 2024

() share price at the date of grant: RMB6.05 per share
(f)  expected price volatility of the Company’s shares:

30.38% for the first phase
F—FEER30.38%

(g expected dividend yield: Nil
(h) risk-free interest rate:

2.8219% for two years
M4F2.8219%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility due to publicly available information.

29.93% for the second phase
2 & E%29.93%

2.9280% for three years
=%52.9280%
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40.83% for the third phase
% = PEER40.83%

O TEHR SN m
0 WERFIE :

3.0197% for four years
PO4E3.0197%
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Major Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 23.82% of the
Group’s total sales, while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 9.83% of the Group’s total sales. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 21.06% of the Group’s total
purchases, while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 7.53% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or
substantial shareholders who were interested in more than 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company has any equity interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers.

The Group maintains ongoing and steady relationship with each of the
customers and suppliers. The business of the Group does not rely on any
individual customer or supplier which may cause any material impact on the
Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

For the year ended 31 December 2020, details of movements in property,
plant and equipment during the year are set out in notes 17 to the financial
statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Shares of the
Company

During the Review Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed shares of the Company.

Equity-Linked Agreement

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries
neither entered into any agreement in relation to equity-linked products nor
participated in any arrangement to subscribe for equity-linked financial products.

Material Related Party Transactions

For details of the related party transactions under relevant accounting
standards, please refer to note 42 of this report. The Company confirms that the
related-party transactions were not categorised as the “connected transactions”
or the “continuing connected transactions” as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules (as the case may be), and were in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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Directors and Supervisors

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors and the
Supervisors were as follows:

Directors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Directors were:

From 1 January 2020 to 4 June 2020:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director
and Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu Zugang (Executive
Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Wang Bin (Executive Director),
Liu Yao (Independent Non-executive Director), Li Xudong (Independent Non-
executive Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-executive Director) and Cheng
Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 5 June 2020 to 31 March 2021:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director
and Vice Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive Director), Fu Zugang (Executive
Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Wang Bin (Executive Director), Li
Xudong (Independent Non-executive Director), Jiang Hua (Independent Non-
executive Director) and Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director)

From 31 March 2021 to the date of this report:

Jiao Chengyao (Executive Director and Chairman), Xiang Jiayu (Executive
Director and Vice Chairman), Jia Hao (Executive Director and Employee Director),
Fu Zugang (Executive Director), Wang Xinying (Executive Director), Mr. Cui Kai
(Non-executive Director), Mr. Yang Dongsheng (Non-executive Director), Mr.
Cheng Jinglei (Independent Non-executive Director), Mr. Ji Feng (Independent
Non-executive Director), Ms. Guo Wenging (Independent Non-executive Director)
and Mr. Fang Yuan (Independent Non-executive Director).

Supervisors:

During the Review Period and as of the date of this report, the Supervisors were:

From 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021:

Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Cui Leilei, Mr. Ni Wei, Mr. Zhou Rong, Mr.
Zhang Yichen and Mr. Yuan Shaochong

From 31 March 2021 to the date of this report:

Mr. Liu Qiang, Mr. Cheng Xiangdong, Mr. Wang Yue, Mr. Zhang Yonglong, Mr.
Zhang Minglin, Mr. Bao Xueliang and Mr. Cui Zonglin

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Contracts

During the Review Period, none of the Directors or Supervisors entered into or
proposed to enter into any service agreement with any member of the Group,
other than agreements expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (excluding statutory compensation).
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors

The Company has taken out valid insurance for the Directors.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Material
Contracts

No contracts of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange) in which a Director or a Supervisor is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

During the Review Period, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business in which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any subsidiary of its holding company was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor is or was materially interested in any way, directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the period.

No contracts or proposed contracts with the Company in relation to its business
and in which a Director or a Supervisor was materially interested in any way,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during the Review Period.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, the Company
hereby discloses that none of the Directors had any interest in any business (other
than the business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

At no time during the Review Period were there rights to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or Supervisors or their respective spouses or minor children, or any
such rights exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or the Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities of the
Company and its Associated Corporations

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company had interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) of Hong Kong) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFQ); or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under relevant provisions of the SFO); or were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
under the Listing Rules, which are stated as follows:
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HARBAR KRS S R ROAR

BEERMA R-Z-ZFT-_A=1t—H A2A%
BF  BEELRARFRSTHRABRANRAIHELME
BoEE (& REE(ES MAEEID((BHFRAERK
B DR ~ AR RESFFER TAREGES M
HIE GO EXVERET R F 87 B AR MG AR B KB 2 P
s SRR (BRERB(ESLREEIDNER G
X E (EXAR e A iR MR B) - IRB(EF R
HIE 1601 ) SR 30216 A B AR I DI i 69 B FE T A M 2 e
KA (BRERE(GEZRARERIDNERGEXMKE
TESREE AR FORR) - SRBE LR ARLE
SRS AR R KB X TR s SORB AR

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of

Director/ the relevant the total  Long position/

Supervisor/ Capacity/ Class of Number of class of number of  Short position/
Name Chief executive  Nature of interest ~ shares shares capital % shares % Lending pool

165

B B2 BAERN  EROEEN TR KRS
e BRTHRARE 56 REzEtE  ROER RBEE BAEs%  BREsL%  AEEHNRG
Jiao Chengyao  Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,901,964 0.19 0.17  Long position
j =3 E=x EnlEBA ARR e
Xiang Jiayu Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,120 0.13 0.11  Long position
BESH 5% EnlEBA ARR e
Fu Zugang Director Beneficial owner A Share 2,526,720 0.17 0.15  Long position
1R 5% EnlBA ARR R

Interest of spouse A Share 200,000 0.01 0.01  Long position
flBr i AR HAE

Wang Xinying  Director Beneficial owner A Share 1,895,040 0.13 0.11  Long position
FEg E=x EnlEBA ARR e
Liu Qiang Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 11,500 0.00 0.00  Long position
Bl EF EnlEBA ARR e
Zhou Rong Supervisor Beneficial owner A Share 40,000 0.00 0.00  Long position

i

ZES E= ESHAA AR

u

e
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EEgREE
Interests in Underlying Shares HERGOER
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Number of the relevant the total number
Name of Directors Nature of interest Class of shares share options held class of capital % of shares %
R B AR HRBEH
EElR ERME B2 5l FrisiE IR EE B MBI E D% WA B D%
Jia Hao Beneficial owner A Share 700,000 0.05 0.04
B EmfEAA A%
Fu Zugang Beneficial owner A Share 600,000 0.04 0.03
gl EmEA A A B&

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (as defined in the SFO of Hong Kong) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were deemed to have); or were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Structure and Number of Shareholders

Details of the shareholders recorded in the register of members of the Company
as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

B EXFTHBEN  RZZTZTFF+_A=+—H &K
RABEE  BEFEXARBRSTHRABHERAAF
AT REAE (&R B E(ER RARRE)) HAK
- HEROHEST - BEEMREGES ARG
FI)SEXVERERT & B8 ) BB B ANE AN A A R R PO i
FARE (BREERSEANEDIORE) » IRE(E
5 R HIE (GM))FE 36216 /A B AL IR0 Pt 0 & FC M 42
HIOKR - HRBE T ETARYNRETRIZENE R
NAIBER AR SORR

BREREBRBRAR

R-IZ-_TFE+-_A=+—8  AQRKREAMATEE
IR BT

Holders of A Shares AR RS ER 43,424
Holders of H Shares HAR LR 64
Total number of shareholders IR 4B E 43,488




Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short

Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the

Company

To the knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2020, the following
shareholders (other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executives) had (F=E
interests or short positions in any shares and the underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register of members

kept by the Company:

Name

i

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Henan
Provincial People’s Government(

AREARBRBEEE

LRI R B @)

Henan Machinery Investment
Group Co., Ltd.™

AEENEERERE
BREFAFN

PRIME CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
COMPANY LIMITED
BeAEERABRAR

Morgan Stanley®

BRI

Note:

Capacity/
Nature of interest

51/ EEME

Beneficial owner

puiss
Bk
=
af
>

Beneficial owner

/ﬂﬂfh}

EREBA

Investment manager
REKE

Beneficial owner

BRBEAA

Beneficial owner

BRBEAA

Class of
shares

igng il

A Share

Al

A Share

Al

H Share
A

H Share
A

H Share
A

BHEEEHEERAERAT 0058 35
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EFERRNAEQATAERS - HERS
ZHEBERRR

m

Number of
shares

ROEE

521,087,800

521,087,800

36,793,311

12,783,542

199

BEERMA

Approximate
percentage of
the relevant
class of
capital %
HHE
BRI
BABD L%

34.99

34.99

16.13

5.25

0.00

GEE

(1) Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. directly held 521,087,800 A Shares 0]
of the Company. Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Henan Provincial People’s Government. By virtue of the SFO, State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s
Government is deemed to own 521,087,800 A Shares of the Company which were

in the same block directly held by Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.

Approximate
percentage of
the total
number of
shares %

ERDBEEN
BRED %

30.08

30.08

2.12

0.74

0.00

RIZ-ZFE+-A=+—H  TIIER
EERESTTHABBRINRAR BN EMAR
KAEER T - A RBGES RAEED)EXVERE2

K3DEAMEARRNEREIAR - FRB(GES LY
MMM%%%MM£A$ AEFHE M AR REOR

Long position/
Short position/
Lending pool

iy V8" Ve
RESEEE

Long position

Long position

HE

Long position
55)

Long position
55)

Short position
KE

TR BN EEEARE T AR EERF521,087,800

AR A A RIARR ©

MEARBEEEEEE
RIEFE 5 R E &Y
WA R EEMEARAEREREE

BEEg

AEEMEERARBEREER ﬁ?’%ﬂ
S EEZEE2EMNER

EIEES) Aﬁﬁflﬁééﬁt**’:

DRI EERE AR —H521,087 800A% A A FIARY ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

@

Morgan Stanley has a total interest of 12,783,542 (long position) and 199 (short
position) of H Shares in our Company by virtue of its relationship with a number of
corporation. According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by Morgan Stanley
with a relevant event date of 26 August 2020, the following interest in H Shares
were held by Morgan Stanley:

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling person
SEHEEER EEALER
Morgan Stanley International Holdings Inc. Morgan Stanley

EEAR LS
Morgan Stanley International Limited Morgan Stanley International Holdings Inc.
Morgan Stanley Investments (UK) Morgan Stanley International Limited
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc Morgan Stanley Investments (UK)
Morgan Stanley Capital Management, LLC Morgan Stanley

RS
Morgan Stanley Domestic Holdings, Inc. Morgan Stanley Capital Management, LLC
Morgan Stanley Capital Services LLC Morgan Stanley Domestic Holdings, Inc.

Additionally, 3 (long position) and 199 (short position) of H Shares were held through
a cash settled unlisted derivative.

FERRAXRDFMERS - HERS
ZERRRE &)

Bt - ()

@ ERTAFNBAHESTIENBERARRZEEEE
12,783,542 (47 &) R 1998% OX B OHRR 2 o IRIREEAR 4
FARZOEZBANGGEEEHBEHA-Z =24 N\A
ZARNEDFEE - A TR RS R AR RS

Direct
% control interest (Y/N) Number of shares
HiEER
2HEAME  (R/B) RHEHE
10000 N Long position 12,783,542
ES e
Short position 3
R
10000 N Long position 12,783,542
ES e
Short position 3
R
10000 N Long position 12,783,542
E we
Short position 3
R
100.00 Y Long position 12,783,542
Z HE
Short position 3
24)
10000 N Short position 196
S R
10000 N Short position 196
ES 24)
10000 Y Short position 196
2 R

s EE— AR S EE R IE LT ITAE T A AIM
(458 R 199AR OB HRAR



Public Float

Based on the public information available to and the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company had maintained sufficient
public float as required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC are covered by a defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the government, and are entitled
to a monthly pension from the date of retirement. The PRC government is
responsible to perform the pension obligation for these retired employees. The
Group is required to make annual contributions to the retirement scheme at a
rate of 20% of employees’ basic salaries, which are charged as an expense
when the employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions
and when the contributions are due. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
a total contribution of RMB66.44 million made by the Group to the retirement
scheme was charged to the statement of income.

Corporate Governance Code

During the Review Period, the Company complied with the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the financial year and as of the date of this annual report, the Company
had in force indemnity provisions as permitted under relevant regulations for
the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors) of the Company or
its associated companies. Such permitted indemnity provisions are set out in
the Liability Insurance maintained by the Company for its Directors and chief
executives, in respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against such Directors.

Subsequent Events

Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. proposed to transfer 277,195,419
A shares of the Company (representing 16.00% of the total share capital of the
Company) it held under agreement through public solicitation of transferees,
and signed the Share Transfer Agreement Regarding Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited with Hong Yi Investment Management
(Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“‘Hong Yi Investment”), the
transferee determined under public solicitation procedures on 8 January 2021
(the “Share Transfer”). On 26 February 2021, the Company received the
Confirmation of Transfer Registration issued by China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited from Henan Machinery Investment Group
Co., Ltd. that the transfer and registration of the shares of the Company from
Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. to Hong Yi Investment had been
completed. After the completion of the share transfer, Hong Yi Investment holds
16% of the total share capital of the Company, while Henan Asset Management
Co., Ltd., its party acting in concert, holds 69,209,157 shares of the Company,
representing 3.99% of the total share capital of the Company. Hong Yi
Investment and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. hold 19.99% of shares
of the Company in aggregate. According to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement
entered into by Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd.
and the governance structure of Hong Yi Investment, after the completion of the
transaction, Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. have
become the controlling shareholders of the Company, and the Company does
not have a de facto controller.
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Subsequent Events (continued)

The Company has received the Notice of Buy-back issued by China Renaissance
Capital Investment Inc., (“CRCI”) and Chizhou Zhongan Zhaoshang Equity
Investment LLP (Limited Partnership) (‘Zhongan Zhaoshang”), which requires
the Company to acquire the equity interests held by CRCI and Zhongan
Zhaoshang in Zhengzhou Shengji as agreed under the Investment Agreement.
Based on the Investment Agreement and upon negotiation between the
Company and CRCI and Zhongan Zhaoshang, the Company has agreed to buy
back the equity interests held by CRCI and Zhongan Zhaoshang in Zhengzhou
Shengji. On 15 March 2021, the Company and Zhongan Zhaoshang signed
the Equity Transfer Agreement with the consideration determined to be
RMB794,301,000 for the transfer. On 15 March 2021, the Company and CRClI
signed the Equity Transfer Agreement with the consideration determined to be
EUR81,567,000 for the transfer.

Closure of the Register of Members

The 2020 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Friday, 4
June 2021. In order to determine the H Shareholders’ entitlement to attend the
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 1 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021 (both days inclusive), during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the H Shareholders of the
Company who wish to attend the 2020 Annual General Meeting but are not yet
registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 May 2021.

If the resolution in relation to declaration of dividends is approved at the 2020
Annual General Meeting, the H Share dividends will be paid to H Shareholders
whose names appear on the Company’s H Share register of members after the
close of trading on Monday, 12 July 2021. The Company’s register of members
will be closed from Wednesday, 7 July 2021 to Monday, 12 July 2021 (both
days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be registered. For the
H Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive the final Dividend but
are not yet registered, all transfer documents accompanied by relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 July 2021.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited annual consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 with the management and the external
auditor.

By order of the Board
Jiao Chengyao
Chairman

Zhengzhou, the People’s Republic of China
26 March 2021
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2020

2020FEESEE TEHRE

During 2020, in accordance with the power conferred and duties imposed by
relevant requirements of the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Articles of Association of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company
Limited and the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Supervisors of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited, and in the principle of being
accountable to the Company and all its shareholders, the Board of Supervisors
of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited commenced its
supervision according to law, diligently performed its authority and obligations,
and duly exercised its supervisory function over the Directors and senior
management of the Company, playing a positive role in the standardized
operation and development of the Company. The 2020 report of the Board of
Supervisors is set out below:

I. Basic Evaluation on Operation Behavior of the
Board of Directors and the Management and the
Performance Achieved in 2020

Through its supervision over the Directors and senior management
of the Company, the Board of Supervisors considered that the Board
of the Company was able to strictly comply with the requirements of
the Company Law, the Articles of Association and other relevant laws,
regulations and systems, and operated in accordance with the laws. All
major operation decisions of the Company were rational and the decision-
making process was lawful and valid. The Company has established
and enhanced its internal management system and internal control
mechanism. The Directors and senior management of the Company
conscientiously executed their respective duties in accordance with the
national laws, regulations, the Articles of Association, and the resolutions
of the general meetings and the Board meetings. None of the Directors or
senior management of the Company were found to have violated any laws,
regulations or the Articles of Association in discharging their duties for the
Company or engaged in any acts which contravened the interests of the
Company or its shareholders.

Facing the complex and ever-changing internal and external environment in
2020, ZMJ worked closely in line with its development strategies of “international
strategic positioning, market-based corporate governance, diversified industry
layout and global human resources” to drive its industry transformation and
upgrade, strengthen independent innovation, develop high-end and intelligent
manufacturing, and continuously improve various indicators of production
and operation, striving to create a world-class enterprise with international
competitiveness.
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2020

(1)

Composition of the Board of Supervisors

Upon election at the Company’s general meeting and at the employee
representative meeting, the Company elected the fourth session
of the Board of Supervisors in February 2018, which comprised
four shareholder representative Supervisors and three employee
representative Supervisors. Among them, shareholder representative
Supervisors are Liu Qiang, Wang Yue, Cui Leilei and Ni Wei; and
employee representative Supervisors are Zhou Rong, Zhang Yichen
and Yuan Shaochong. Liu Qiang chairs the Board of Supervisors.
Employee representative Supervisors account for no less than
one third of the Board of Supervisors, which complies with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations

Overview of the Meetings of the Board of
Supervisors Convened in 2020

During the reporting period, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
convened a total of five meetings at which 20 resolutions were
considered and approved in accordance with the Company Law, the
Articles of Association and other relevant regulations. Details are set
out as follows:

T 20200 EEEE ISR

(- EEEEMNX

BNTIRERASEBEMBTRRASESE A
AIR2018F2AEAFNEESS - A4BIRE
REEFERIEBINRRESER & - &
BRREShS: Ble TR BT 58
BIRKREESL A% KHR - b &
FRIBAEESEF - BIRREZSMNLAT

BER=n2— BEFENBRTABRRERE
FRRE e

(D)2020F EEFEERARBR

BEHA - RAEZFRR(AFE) (A7
BROMBMMATE  HARREZESSH -

FIBIBEASR - FABRAOT

No. Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting

FH E2RRE 2REX SRERBENER

1 27 March 2020 Fourteenth Meeting of the Fourth ~ The Proposal on the 2019 Report of the Board of Supervisors of the
202093 A27H Session of the Board of Company

Supervisors
FENEEEEFETTIAEH

(BRARR0IFEEFETERENER)

The Proposal on the 2019 Audited Domestic and Overseas Financial
Report of the Company
CRAR A R0 9F LT RPIR AN B ERHER)

The Proposal on the 2019 Annual Report and Summary thereof of the
Company
(FARRRR0IFFERERBENRE)

The Proposal on the 2019 Assurance Report on the Deposit and Use
of Proceeds of the Company
(ERRBINVFESRETFRETABREERSE D

EEY

The Proposal on the Special Audit Notes on the Occupation of Funds
by the Controlling Shareholders and Other Related Parties
(ER<ZERBRRERAMER S IERESBRNEIEEH
BA>HESR)
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2020

2020FEESEETERSE
Il. Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in T 2020 FEEEE TEER )
2020 (Continued)
(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of (Z)2020F EEEE 2R A RIBL@E
Supervisors Gonvened in 2020 (Continued)
No. Time Session Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting

Fi BN BHRER EREREBNER

The Proposal on the 2019 Social Responsibility Report and
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(BAR<N0I9FEHEETERE HERERARS>H

EEY

The Proposal on the 2019 Assessment Report on Internal Control of
the Company
(AR ARR019FEAEIEHFHERSESNZER)

The Proposal on the 2019 Audit Report on Internal Control of the
Company
CRARY A RI20195F E A EME S BT I E R )

The Proposal on the 2019 Profit Distribution Plan
CRER20195F EFE D BL 7 RAIER)

The Proposal on Confirming the Provision Amount of 2019 Super
Profit Incentive Payment
CRARTER2019F ERF M B e MRS EHEER)

The Proposal on the Appointment of External Audit Institution and
Internal Control Audit Institution for 2020
(R I 1E2020F R OB | AT HE ~ A EBIE BRI S At B R

EEY

The Proposal on Provision for Goodwill Impairment Loss and
Capitalized Development Expenditure Impairment Loss
CRARFHER B RERINE MR HRERXESR)

The Proposal on the Daily Connected Transactions of the Company
in 2019 and the Expected Daily Connected Transactions of the
Company in 2020

CRAR A FI2019F 2 B BRI S 150 K 20205 E a5t B %
BB A S BB S )

The Proposal on the Use of Idle Funds to Invest in Financial Wealth
Management Products
(ARERAREESRECRIEMEMNRR)

The Proposal on Amending the Articles of Association and the
Procedural Rules for Shareholders’ General Meetings
CRARMERT<RRIEE>M<BREAGHFRASNRR)
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Work Overview of the Board of Supervisors in
2020 (Continued)

(2) Overview of the Meetings of the Board of

Supervisors Convened in 2020 (Continued)

Session
BEX

No. Time
FiE SRR

200 FEEEEETEER )

(D)2020F EEEEERAMBER @

Proposals Considered and Approved at the Meeting
SRERBENER

2 28 April 2020
202054 A28H

Fifteenth Meeting of the Fourth
Session of the Board of
Supervisors

ENEEFEETLAER

3 31 July 2020
2020F7 A31H

Sixteenth Meeting of the Fourth
Session of the Board of
Supervisors

ENEEEEETNAER

4 28 August 2020
202098 A28H

Seventeenth Meeting of the
Fourth Session of the Board of
Supervisors

FUEEEEETLAEH

5 28 October 2020
2020410 A28 H

Eighteenth Meeting of the Fourth
Session of the Board of
Supervisors

FENEEEEFET/UAEHE

Over the past year, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
strengthened its supervision over the Board of Directors and the
management, supervised and inspected the production operation
of the Company according to law, pursued standardization and
enhancement of the institutions of the Company, and worked
diligently for its development.

The Proposal on the 2020 First Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
CRARCEMNERERMRE B RO BRAFTIN00FEF—FE
WMEIHEE)

The Proposal on Adjusting Exercise Price of 2019 Share Option
Incentive Scheme of the Company
CRAR AR QA T2019F IR EHESREIET 2 TRERHESR)

The Proposal on the 2020 Half-year Report and Summary thereof,
Interim Results Announcement and Interim Report of the Company
(EARATI0FFFERERABE - FHEELETR
PR ERRR)

The Proposal on the 2020 Special Half-year Report on the Deposit
and Actual Use of Proceeds of the Company
(FARRRRFFFEERESFHEERERBEAZE
MENZER)

The Proposal on the 2020 Third Quarterly Report of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

(BB AR EBRNERAFN0FF=FE

HENHR)
—F RAEFRERENALE RS - 012
BOEE - RAEEREATNVEEEHER
ARATHEDAGHES - HAAHHRE
WA -
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2020

lll. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2020

1.

Lawful Operation of the Company

In 2020, the Supervisors of the Company were present as non-
voting delegates at or attended the Company’s Board meetings and
general meetings according to law, with rigorous supervision carried
out over the Company’s decision-making procedures as well as
the performance of duties of the Company’s Directors and senior
management. The Board of Supervisors considers that the Board of
the Company has complied with relevant requirements stipulated
in the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Rules of
Procedure of the Board of Directors, with regulated operations as well
as lawful and valid decision-making procedures. The Company has
established and improved its internal control system, under which
the Directors and senior management of the Company discharged
their duties conscientiously with no acts found in violation of laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association or prejudice to the
Company’s interests.

Inspection of Financial Status of the Company

Having reviewed the financial status of the Company, the Board
of Supervisors considers that the financial report of the Company
reflects the actual state of its financial position and operation results,
and that the audit report is truthful and reasonable and enables
shareholders to correctly understand the financial and operational
status of the Company. The 2020 Annual Report prepared by the
Board of the Company reflects the Company’s position in a truthful,
accurate and complete manner, without any false record, misleading
statement or material omissions.

Inspection of the Utilization of Proceeds

The Board of Supervisors has inspected the utilization of the
Company’s proceeds. The Company, with a system established
to manage its proceeds, was proper in utilizing its proceeds and
executing its management procedures, with no breach of regulations
found in respect of the proceeds.

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by the Company

There was no material acquisition or disposal of assets by the
Company in 2020. Nor was there any prejudice to shareholders’
interests or dissipation of the Company’s assets.
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lil. Opinion of the Board of Supervisors on the
Company’s Relevant Issues in 2020 (Continued)

5.

Connected Transactions of the Company

The connected transactions of the Company in 2020 took place in
strict compliance with the Articles of Association and the relevant
connected transaction agreements, and the transactions were fair
and reasonable. Such connected transactions were conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with the statutory approval process performed
and no act prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Internal Control of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2020 self-assessment
report on the Company’s internal control prepared by the Board as
well as the establishment and operation of the Company’s internal
control system, and considers that the Company has established a
robust internal control system that enables effective execution. The
self-assessment report on the Company’s internal control reflects
the establishment and operation of such system in the Company in a
truthful and objective manner.

Opinions of the Board of Supervisors on the Review
of the 2020 Annual Report of the Company

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the Company’s 2020 Annual
Report and summary thereof, and considers that the preparation and
review procedures of the 2020 Annual Report of the Company comply
with relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
as well as the requirements under the internal control system of the
Company; that the content and format thereof are in line with all the
relevant requirements of China Securities Regulatory Commission and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange; and that the information contained
therein gives a true, accurate and complete view of the actual
situation of the Company in various aspects and does not give rise to
any detriment to the interests of the shareholders of the Company. No
staff engaged in the preparation, review or information disclosure of
the 2020 Annual Report of the Company was found to have violated
the confidentiality requirement during the course of his/her work.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2020

IV. Work Plan of the Board of Supervisors in 2021

In 2021, the Board of Supervisors of the Company will continue to
strictly comply with the requirements of the Company Law, the Articles
of Association and the relevant regulations and policies of the country,
perform its duties faithfully, and further facilitate regulated operations of
the Company.

(1) Comply with Laws and Regulations and Discharge
Duties Conscientiously

In 2021, the Board of Supervisors will strictly implement the relevant
requirements of the Company Law and the Articles of Association,
supervise the Board and the management in performing the obligation
in accordance with law, and facilitate the Company to further improve
corporate governance structure and raise its governance standards.

(2) Strengthen Supervision and Inspection to Avert
Operational Risks

Firstly, the Board of Supervisors will focus on financial supervision,
and monitor and inspect the financial position of the Company
according to law. Secondly, the Board of Supervisors will maintain
communication and liaison with the internal auditors and external
accounting firms, so as to make full use of internal and external audit
information to keep abreast of relevant situations. Thirdly, the Board
of Supervisors will pay particular attention to high risk areas of the
Company and carry out inspections on critical aspects such as major
investments, proceeds management, connected transactions and
external guarantees.

(3) Bolster Professional Capabilities through Greater
Self-improvement

Members of the Board of Supervisors will constantly broaden their
professional knowledge and improve their professional capabilities
by receiving more training in banking, finance, law, auditing and
securities, so as to enhance the supervisory role, actively explore
innovative ways of supervision, and better perform the supervisory
function of the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors of
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited

26 March 2021
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To the Shareholders of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 105 to 255, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables

e |mpairment assessment of goodwill
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETTSEE

Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
BT E S ERGIENEERE

Refer to notes 2, 3, 4 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
receivables were RMB5,716 million for which a loss allowance of
RMB560 million was provided.

Management assesses the loss allowance for trade receivables on a
periodical basis. Loss allowances for trade receivables are calculated
based on management’s estimates of the lifetime expected credit
losses, which is determined by taking into account: a) the customers’
repayment history, aging profile of their overdue balances, their current
financial positions and other relevant circumstances; and b) forecasts of
future economic conditions.

We identified the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables
as a key audit matter because the expected credit loss is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to
the expected credit loss is considered significant due to the complexity
of the models, subjectivity of significant assumptions used, and the
significant judgements and estimates involved in the process.

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEEERENSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
assessment when determining the loss allowance for trade receivables:

e \We obtained an understanding and evaluated management’s
design and tested the key controls which management adopted
for the determination of loss allowance for trade receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.

e We assessed the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management to
form such judgements and estimates, including:

i) Evaluated the customer’s repayment history by checking the
settlement evidence of the trade receivables to cash receipt
and testing the aging profile of trade receivables to sales
invoices and other relevant documents, on a sample basis;

i) On customers having a higher risk of default:

e Understood management’s process in identifying
customers having a higher risk of default;

e (btained and reviewed those customers’ background
information and their current financial position provided
by management;

e Reviewed transactions with those customers and their
respective collection patterns in the past, and discussed
with management to understand the circumstances
applicable to relevant customers; and

iii)  Evaluated whether the historical loss rates were appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information by making reference to market data.

e \We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to the loss
allowance for trade receivables in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

e \We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting
the models, significant assumptions and data would give rise to
indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the risk assessment
of determination of loss allowance for trade receivables remained
appropriate and we found the judgement and estimates adopted by
management in determining the determination of loss allowance for
trade receivables are supported by available evidence.



Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
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Determination of loss allowance for trade receivables (Continued)
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BERENE

Refer to notes 2, 4, and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the Group held goodwill amounted to RMB520
million, against which a provision of RMB165 million was made to
certain cash generating units (“CGUS”).

Goodwill was being allocated to CGUs for the goodwill impairment
assessment. Management has engaged an external valuer to assist with
the annual impairment assessment. The recoverable amounts of the
CGUs were determined based on the value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections, which involved using key assumptions such as
annual revenue growth rate, gross profit rate, and discount rate.

We focused on this area due to (a) the magnitude of the carrying amount
of goodwill; and (b) the estimation of recoverable amount is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to
the impairment assessment of goodwill is considered significant due
to the complexity of the models, subjectivity of significant assumptions
used, and significant judgements involved in the goodwill impairment
assessment process.

BRRETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAWETNFAREERENSE

We performed the following procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of goodwill:

e We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of goodwill impairment and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.

e \We evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of the
goodwill to assess the effectiveness of the management’s
estimation process.

e We evaluated and tested the key controls over the impairment of
goodwill.

e We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports issued by the
external valuer, and evaluated its independence, competence and
objectivity.

e We evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation models and
management’s key assumptions used, with the involvement of our
internal valuation experts and performed the following procedures:

i) Compared the annual revenue growth rate and gross profit
rate with the Group’s historical results and the Group’s
approved business plan, taking into consideration market
trends;

i) Assessed the discount rates used by benchmarking the
discount rates against external market data;

iii)  Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions used, to ascertain the extent to which adverse
changes would result in goodwill being impaired.

e We tested the accuracy of the calculations applied in the valuation
models for the calculation of impairment provisions.

e \We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to goodwill
impairment in the context of the applicable financial reporting
framework.

e We also considered whether the judgements made in selecting
the models, significant assumptions and data would give rise to
indicators of possible management bias.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that the risk
assessment of goodwill impairment remained appropriate and
management’s judgement in the impairment assessments is supported
by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
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Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the chairman’s
statement (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Board of
Directors, and Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2020, which are expected
to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management, Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Board of
Directors, and Report of the Board of Supervisors for 2020, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal
rights and obligations.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e  Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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B ZEAMRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lee Chung Bor.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBEaRkHEMEZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—B-FF —TNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T AREETTT
Revenue WA 5 26,519,393 25,721,417
Cost of sales SHERAR 12 (19,874,033) (20,923,902)
Gross profit ER 6,645,360 4,797,515
Other income E g A 7 262,823 225,180
Other gains and losses HbUezss R EsiE 8 (393,012) (418,404)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R X 12 (1,135,191) (1,020,635)
Administrative expenses THAX 12 (1,289,831) (994,626)
Research and development expenses s A 12 (1,224,426) (1,015,026
Restructuring costs E-FEID %N 9,12 (646,954) -
Net impairment losses on financial and ERMEREERERIEFEE
contract assets (339) 157,875
Share of profit of associates it A =YNG vl 22 12,007 38,013
Share of profit of joint ventures JE(LEEBESET 23 9,617 3,716
Finance costs, net BYERAFEE 10 (300,160) (243,532)
Profit before tax MR BRI Vs A 1,939,894 1,530,076
Income tax expense FriSHifs 11 (561,113) (390,166)
Profit for the year FARAF 1,378,781 1,139,910
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ALEEFERNGF
Owners of the Company ZIN/NET ) 1,239,149 1,040,253
Non-controlling interests AR R 139,632 99,657

1,378,781 1,139,910
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEBREREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARETT ARETIT
Other comprehensive income: Hp 2 mEE -
Items that will not be reclassified TERAEEEH S
subsequently to profit or loss: FEmAIEE -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit EFFrERKENET
obligations 21,078 4,818
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair JA X (EEHE A @& AHME
value through other comprehensive income ElENSEEATES (941) (1,606)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: — AJEE R H B R 1B pyEE -

Exchange differences arising on translation BREEEMERZHE (119,890) (17,440)
Cash flow hedging WE R (4,961) 514

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of R E M2 ERISL © FIR ISR

income tax (104,714) (13,714)
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2ENHEAEE 1,274,067 1,126,196
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATELHFAZmIKRELATE

attributable to:

Owners of the Company ViN/NGL 35S 1,134,435 1,026,539

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR FE RS 139,632 99,657

1,274,067 1,126,196
EARNINGS PER SHARE SRR ZEF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARESD) 16 71.52 60.04

— Diluted (RMB cents) —#HHE(ARES) 16 71.45 60.04




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR ER

SR KRR A SR B AR 19 B R A F) 20205 3%

As at 31 December 2020 R —E-ZTF+—-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2020 2019
—B-FF —TNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKRE 17 4,641,837 4,841,820
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 1,268,668 1,171,066
Investment properties (8- /ES 19 387,226 175,335
Goodwill eSS 20 520,431 677,221
Intangible assets EEE 21 1,513,961 1,505,901
Investments in associates REE N R E 22 297,460 285,453
Investments in joint ventures REETENKRE 23 81,339 71,722
Financial assets at fair value through other AT ETE B EE ST AEM
comprehensive income FHREHNESHEE 24 28,993 29,934
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 25 429,507 419,390
Finance lease receivables & TH & e EOE 26 15,497 23,348
Long-term receivables RHEEW B 27 165,531 263,231
Loans receivable from associates and a joint g NI
venture —HEERENER 29 = 6,500
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIELENEE 1,922 -
9,352,372 9,470,921
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Finance lease receivables, current portion RETHEREIWEIE - REED 26 122,834 26,084
Long-term receivables, current portion RHEWEE  REED 27 156,944 239,513
Loans receivable from associates and a joint FEUER E N T &
venture —HEETEMNER 29 6,500 10,000
Inventories FE 30 4,531,794 3,631,699
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EW IR 31 6,991,913 5,836,197
Transferred trade receivables DEENE 5 EROE 36 830,941 158,762
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTE B EEE
profit or loss FTABGENSREE 24 2,857,305 1,394,296
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFTE B EEE
other comprehensive income SFAEMEERENSREE 24 3,780,065 4,246,819
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA 24 40,405 13,946
Tax recoverable A Y e A 34,701 38,581
Contract related assets, current portion ARMAEE  RENID 28 8,804 30,457
Bank deposits RITIFK 32 2,763,289 858,141
Cash and cash equivalents HeRASEEY 32 2,978,727 3,863,435
25,104,222 20,347,930
Total assets WEE 34,456,594 29,818,851
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mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2020 A —Z-—ZTF+_-HA=+—H

As at 31 December

At+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—Bo%F —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Borrowings 3= 34 3,624,892 1,741,881
Lease liabilities HEAR 18 690,226 551,705
Deferred tax liabilities BT EE 25 263,567 292,778
Contract liabilities ARAE 28 10,312 -
Redemption liabilities fEOAafE 44 - 567,404
Provisions B 35 136,148 197,740
Employee benefit obligations EERFEMR 37 707,321 378,430
Other non-current liabilities HibIEmeasE 161,318 124,138
5,594,284 3,854,076
CURRENT LIABILITIES i Z=R i
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M ENIE 33 8,523,817 8,005,539
Contract liabilities aRAaE 28 1,625,444 1,699,335
Income tax liabilities SR a’E 231,896 156,371
Borrowings =% 34 974,003 1,395,606
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 114,980 140,143
Redemption liabilities BE&E 44 1,420,875 720,000
Provisions B 35 1,092,793 543,141
Liabilities associated with transferred HEZENE S
trade receivables FEWRIBERHNAE 36 830,941 158,762
Derivative financial instruments THESRIE 24 13,730 3,632
14,828,479 12,822,529
Total liabilities e E 20,422,763 16,676,605
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

n‘l_\élﬁ\ji%;iﬁsﬂli
As at 31 December 2020 R —ZE -—ZTF+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—H

2020 2019
—B-FF —TNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bf=E AR¥T ARETTT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARF#E
Share capital f& 7 38 1,732,471 1,732,471
Share premium f& 10 m B 4,199,421 4,199,421
Reserves & 7,131,903 6,307,839
Equity attributable to owners of the Company PN Ty 13,063,795 12,239,731
Non-controlling interests FEIEASRE RS 40 970,036 902,515
Total equity ERAR 14,033,831 13,142,246
Total equity and liabilities EENEEATE 34,456,594 29,818,851

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 255 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Jiao Chengyao
DIRECTOR
3

HINE1052 256 B RS M BREN T =—F=A
ZHANBEETEEREETIE - WA TIALRE
FE

Jia Hao
=0
DIRECTOR
3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARRRE(R
Statutory ~ Currency  Cash flow Non-
Share Share  Revaluation surplus ~ translation ~ hedging (Other  Retained controlling
capital ~ premium TESEve reserve ISeVe  [GSGrVES  FEsemves earnings Totll interests
U (T #28
B& | Bfti fiff EXRG WIRE HbBR  REEA 3 B
RAB000 ‘ RMBOOD  RWB0O0  RWBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBO00 RIB'000
ARKTE  ARMTR T T ARETL ARSFR i
ey
At 31 Decamber 2019 and RIF-NETZAZT
at 1 January 2020 RhZ5%5-A-A 173241 4199421 (55,531 790,994 (25,900) 279 07877 5497606 12209731 902515 13,142,246
Proft for the year Efgi| - - = = = = - 1200149 1230149 139632 1378781
Othercomprehensheincome.—~—— FAEHRERR(RR)
(ewmense) for the year - - 0137 - (1198%) (4.961) - - (104714) - (10471
Totd comprehensieincome - ERZERH(FR) 4%
(expense) for the year - - 20,137 - (119.890) (4.91) - 1239149 1134435 139632 1,214,067
Trangter ot ) £&(lh) - - - 1A% - - - (%5 - - -
Shere-based payment R BERIAR = = - - - - - 1016 1013 - 101%
Contrbuton o equiy &L = = = = - S - > = 2,000 2000
Dividends (Note 15) & (Kizs) - - = = = = - (30507 (3080  (7ait1)  (394618)
131 December 2020 RoB-EFT-R=+-0 1782411 4199421 (35,394) 1026520  (145,79%0) (2,168) 97877 6190858 13063795 970,036 14,033,831
At January 2019 R-E-7E-A-H 17241 4199421 (08743 633784 (8460) 2209 07817 488581 11467210 833634 1220084
Proft for the year Efgi| - - - - - - - 1000253 1,040,263 967 1139910
Other comprehensheincome. SRR HAEUE(RR)
(ewmense) for the year - - 322 - (17440 h14 - - (13714 - (13714

Tota comprehensive income ER2ENG(HY) 88

(exnense) for the year - - 3 - (T4 54 - 100253 102653 9657 112619
Trngtr ot ) ERlh) - - - 150 - - - (s - - -
Share-based peyment WRHBERARH - - - - - - - 1,601 1,601 - 1601
Transacton vith associates By - - - - - - - 6,080 6,080 - 6,080
Transacton vith minorty interest ﬁi@\%ﬁﬂ&%ﬁém% - - - - - - - (491) (491) (1,987) 2478)
Dividends (Note 15) e (fskta) - - - - - - - (518 (B8 (28789 (279,997
At 31 December 2019 RoE-AETZR=+-0 173471 4199421 @531 70994 (25,900 219 o781 GA9TE06 12230731 92515 13142246

Note a: In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the Articles of Association Mitka : REBFBERREURARRRT REE R H BKLH
of the Company and all subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Company and WBARMARIER  AARIRZENBAREZH
these subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the BRA 18 5 A 'J%é‘tljm%i/%:ﬁ%%’%ﬁ?w‘ - EEfFEDET
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. MEARS0%A1E - HiEBRFEEETER VAR BT
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity BADRIRBRIHELT o 75T RERREHA] AR F LA AT
holders. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ FENEE BErxrRELENIEARRRARZENE
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into additional capital of the NFIREEINEA o
Company and these subsidiaries.

Note b: The cash flow hedging reserve presents the cumulative effective portion of gains Wakh : R REH P REBIERRSRE LW uT_LEI’JiT EFIE
and losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into E’q’&i@&éﬂ?iﬁ’ﬂ fm&Eﬁ BRFHEREH D
for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gains and losses arising on changes in RensfnHEERERARIFANERTANA $TE§&
fair value of the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated under BEL MR E&E TE EE;T/EPIE BREBEaR
the cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the GEMHHAEER  NEt AP BE RIEE NFE
hedged item affects the profit or loss, or is included as an adjustment to the non — A e

financial hedged item.

Note c: The other reserves mainly represent the contribution from the State-owned fistc - AR BIEARRMRLEST A EE ARBE
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Henan Provincial People’s EEELEETEZEEMNHE  UHRALAT
Government, the ultimate controlling party of the Company, and is recognised as SAERI L E -

contribution from the ultimate controlling party of the Company.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
“E-EF —TNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TR
Profit before tax R 8 B o A 1,939,894 1,530,076
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Finance costs ELE=ND®N 300,160 243,532
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REEUGENRE
receivables and finance lease receivables FE R IENF WA (88,811) (68,221)
Share of profit associates FEERE L A TR A (12,007) (38,013)
Share of profit of joint ventures EhEEERR (9,617) (3,716)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BENMERENER 19,756 2,192
Gain on disposal of associates ST E A RIS - (16,257)
Dividend from financial assets at fair value AT ER 2 BEZB)R A A
through other comprehensive income FHEWENCREEMERE (2,022) (2,897)
Net fair value (gain)/loss of derivative THESMTAATE
financial instruments (Wezs), /B8 F5E (2,107) 55,998
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMRIETE 716,105 804,589
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENE 9,493 7,061
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EHE 234,916 188,398
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENTE 158,275 152,494
Reversal of net impairment losses on financial SRR EREBERBESIEFREER
and contract assets 339 (157,875)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment V¥ - B KERERE 109,987 -
Impairment of goodwill [EESERE 164,714 174,086
Impairment of intangible assets BmEEERE 30,049 246,731
Share-based payment AR D BT R 10,136 1,601
Accrual of inventory provision st E RS 23,763 38,248
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXFEHHTE 133,828 (41,896)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEECEPINEERSRE
working capital 3,736,851 3,116,131
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM,SE (921,111) 290,897
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables B NhEMEWTIEGEN),F (2,034,082) 455,403
Decrease/(increase) in notes receivable EURZEE R A, (1 h0) 397,927 (291,532)
Decrease in long-term receivables and £ AR MGRIE Ik B & TH B P R IR R
finance lease receivables 113,023 60,404
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REAMEREE M, ) 1,419,291 (235,721)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities ARBECHD), &M (63,579) 268,671
Cash generated from operations IR IR SIS 2,648,320 3,664,253
Income tax paid [=ERIEST (524,913) (406,847)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING e TEBRBRSFEHE
ACTIVITIES 2,123,407 3,257,406
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mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+T—HLEE

2020 2019
“EZEF —ZT-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term RITER - REBEWHIBERME
receivables and finance lease receivables THE W FIESNF SMA 88,811 68,221
Government grants related to assets received hE 2 WER Y ER T R B 46,308 52,800
Dividends received from associates BB R R B = 10,200
Dividends from financial assets at fair value AATERZ B Z8E AZEk=Ea
through comprehensive income SREENRE 2,022 2,897
Proceeds on disposal of associates B R RIFTSRR 64,057 123,512
Payments on purchase of financial assets at fair value B & LA A F(E+ 8 B HE &)
through other comprehensive income ATAHM PRGNS REENNR (112,000) -
Proceeds on disposal of derivative financial instruments & 474 4 b T A5 208 (4,961) 514
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&E %% « ME MR EATSIE 41,733 45,299
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEMK (1,020,670) (879,074)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMEREE (261,248) (365,931)
Payments for structured deposits ST EBIET R (2,744,009) (1,393,000)
Proceeds from structured deposits HERMEE RS E 1,393,000 354,243
Payments for loans receivable from a joint venture FEU—FE& S hEERNMNRK = (6,500)
Repayment of loans receivable from a jointventure  FEIN—RI& B2 EHHIER 10,000 9,750
Payments for business combination, net of ERESOONT - NBFrkEERS
cash acquired - (50,834)
Payments for establishment of an associate B2 —FE & R R 3R = (29,400)
Payments for establishment of a joint venture R — A S ENK = (28,000)
Transaction with minority interests HAOBR RSN S = (2,478
Contribution from non-controlling interests SHERERHE 2,000 -
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity FHRRE A =@ A E8RITER
over three months (1,789,743) (31,270)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity IR EEAE = {6 A A _E&IERTTIF R
over three months and restricted cash REZEHIRE 31,270 30,590
Payment of pledged bank deposits TREEMRITER (973,546) (826,871)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits BB FRITER 826,871 853,890
Net fair value gain/(loss) of derivative financial TEERTARTERE (BR)FHE
instruments 54,572 (97,090)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEEAR e E5E (4,345,533) (2,158,532)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE

Proceeds received from the equipment leasing BUEAEEE AR TS 508 (M5E36)
companies (Note 36) 813,973 257,329

Proceeds from new borrowings raised FESEEMGRIE 1,961,522 2,857,487
Repayment of borrowings EEER (561,439) (2,587,827)
Interests paid SRS (152,093) (104,267)
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders SRR NG (320,507) (251,208)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [SEREIE 2 i ds) (74,111) (28,789)
Principal elements of lease payments HEFEMNEAS IS (163,963) (161,356)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BEEE TS (FrA)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Note 45) 1R & R EA (Mf5E45) 1,503,382 (18,631)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASHAND CASH R&E&RBREZBYWORL) ENELE

EQUIVALENTS (718,744) 1,080,243
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES P& Ry 5 & (165,964) 37,154
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BNERERBELEEY 3,863,435 2,746,038
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER A+ —HA=+—HBWEBEELRRLZEY

represented by cash and cash equivalents (Note 32)  #830& R I8 & =@ (M :E32) 2,978,727 3,863,435
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1

General information

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 28 December 2008 as a joint stock company with limited liability
under the Company Law of the PRC after a reorganisation of Zhengzhou
Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise in the
PRC. On October 28 2015, 32.14% of the Company’s total issued share
capital held by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Henan Provincial People’s Government (“Henan SASAC”)
were transferred to Henan Machinery Investment Group, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Henan SASAC. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
upon completion of the share transfer, the parent of the Company was
Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. and its ultimate controlling
party was Henan SASAC of the PRC Government.

On 3 August 2010, the Company completed its initial public offering and
listing of 140,000,000 A shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange under
the stock code 601717.SS. The Company was listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock
code: 00564) on 5 December 2012.

On 9 March 2017, the Company issued 93,220,338 ordinary shares
to ASIMCO (China) Limited. On 22 March 2017, the Company issued
18,129,032 ordinary shares to Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited — the first phase of ESOP, Bridge Trust Co., Ltd., Jinxiu
Zhonghe (Beijing) Capital Management Co., Ltd. — Jinxiu Tianyou No. 106
Private Investment Fund, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— HANG TANG WEALTH, Tianhong Asset Management — Bank of Ningbo
— No. 2 Wealth Management Plan of Tianhong Dashu Dingzengbao and
Anhui Railway Development Funds Co., Ltd. After the issuance, Henan
Machinery Investment Group held 30.08% of the Company’s total issued
share capital.

On 26 February 2021, Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
transferred 277,195,419 A shares of the Company to Hong Yi Investment
Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership). After the transfer,
Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. holds 14.08% of the
Company’s total issued share capital and Hong Yi Investment Management
(Henan) Partnership (Limited Partnership) holds 16% of the Company’s
total issued share capital.

The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are mainly engaged in manufacturing of coal mining machinery
and auto parts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

@

(ii)

Compliance with IFRSs

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies ordinance Cap. 622.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 below.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instruments) — measured at fair value, and

e defined benefit pension plans — plan assets measured at
fair value.

2 FESTHHREE

RESSVBHRRMERNIESTREHIINT
3o BB RIREARSN - A EBERERERR 2R
BEE - WEBRRAAEE(BREARRLENE
RNAD TR

21 IRBIEAE
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ARG TR TR -

IR 3R S R R B R R B IR R
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

New standards, amendments and interpretation adopted
by the Group in 2020

A number of new standards, amendments and interpretation
became applicable for the current reporting period and the
Group changed its accounting policies and make adjustments
as a result of adopting these new standards, amendments and
interpretation set out below:

Definition of Material — amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

e Definition of Business —amendments to IFRS 3

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

e Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments
early:

e (Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions — amendments to
IFRS 16

The standards, amendments and interpretation listed above
are either currently not relevant to the Group or had no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Impact of new standards and amendments issued but
not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standard and amendments have
been published but are not mandatory for 31 December 2020
reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These new standards and amendments are not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements
when they become effective.

2 FESTHEHME R
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(iv)
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

22 FESFTHR
AN R RS RE
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

©

@

Joint arrangements

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)

@

@

Equity accounting (Continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in
“Impairment of non-financial assets” below.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognized in
profit or loss. Amounts classified as equity is not re-measured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognized in
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the historical financial information of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency
is RMB as its key activities and transactions are denominated in
RMB. The Group’s presentation currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis
within “other gains and losses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESEHEK @)

Foreign currency translation (Continued) IMEBE (5B)
(c)  Group companies © ZEEHIA

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognized in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified into profit or
loss, as part of “other gains and losses”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Property, plant and equipment

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

The above items of property, plant and equipment except for
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%
Plant and machinery 9.00%-18.00%
Motor vehicles 18.00%-19.00%
Other equipment 18.00%-19.00%

Property, plant and equipment arising from business acquisition is
depreciated over the remaining useful life.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, and are recognized in “Other gains and losses”
in the profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses.

Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis, taking
into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Land use right

Buildings 2.71%-3.17%

Intangible assets

@  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the aggregate purchase consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes at the operating segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)  Trademarks, patents and customer relationship

©

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks, patents and customer relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Development cost

Costs associated with project development are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible
assets when the following criteria are met:

e tis technically feasible to complete the technology so that
it will be available for use

e management intends to complete the technology and use
or sell it

e there is an ability to use or sell the technology

et can be demonstrated how the technology will generate
probable future economic benefits

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
technology are available, and

e the expenditure attributable to the technology during its
development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
technology include employee costs and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as development
costs in intangible assets and would be transferred to completed
development projects or patents, and amortised from the point
at which the asset is ready for use over its estimated use life.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(d)  Research and development

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do
not meet the criteria in (c) above are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

(e)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following period:

Trademark 10 years
Software 4-5 years
Development costs 4 years
Patent right 5-10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets
such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group)
are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal
group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other
liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been
disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of
business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, development cost not yet ready for use and intangible assets
that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets

@

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(OCI). For investments in debt instruments, this will depend
on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flow from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)
22 EEESETER (@)
SMEEE)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

©) Measurement © &=

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains and losses together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESEHEK @)

Financial assets (Continued) SREEE)
(©) Measurement (Continued) © ir=ZE(E)
Debt instruments (Continued) EBTE(E)
e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual . NHEFTE B HEBAREMEE

cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the Hﬁzm WA A E B BAIES R

assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through QOCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains and losses. Interest
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income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains

and losses and impairment expenses are presented as Hib Wz REE 25 - mRERSZE
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. BmxPEYAEIIESE -

AFEFEAEEH ARG T
ﬁ/\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁz$&u ?fﬁﬁzﬂ,\ﬁ
Eﬂuﬂkﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁl SIRIFEVEETIIA

NFEFELEEEHTABGEAE -
Faig AN ER 2 B A B R ABR
MEBHREN RS EEREESH
MR HER - WM N
B LUFEZS

e  FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised .
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains and losses in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments AT H

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair AEEBEREAFEFAEMERTEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(@ Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Group has certain types of financial assets that are subject
to IFRS 9’s ECL model. Please refer to Note 3 for details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as
either:

e hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a
firm commitment (fair value hedges), or

e hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of
recognised assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

At the inception of the hedging, the Group documents the economic
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of
hedged items. The Group documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge
relationships are disclosed in Note 24. Movements in the hedging
reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in Note 24. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability when
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

(@@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss within other gains and losses.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group designates only the intrinsic value of the options as
the hedging instrument. The Group classified foreign currency
options and commodity option as held-for-trading derivatives
and accounted for them at FVPL.

Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change
in intrinsic value of the options are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of
the options that relate to the hedged item (‘aligned time value’)
are recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)
22 EEESETER (@)
FTETAREHEE(E)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)

(@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued) @ TR IEENE S REL W (E)

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions,
the Group generally designates only the change in fair value
of the forward contract related to the spot component as the
hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating to the effective
portion of the change in the spot component of the forward
contracts are recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve within
equity. The change in the forward element of the contract
that relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is
recognised within OCI in the costs of hedging reserve within
equity. In some cases, the Group may designate the full change
in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points)
as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains or losses
relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the
entire forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, as follows:

e \Where the hedged item subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (such as inventory),
both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the
deferred time value of the option contracts or deferred
forward points, if any, are included within the initial cost of
the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised
in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for
example through cost of sales).

e The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the
interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within finance cost at the same
time as the interest expense on the hedged borrowings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
(@@ Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting (Continued)

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred
costs of hedging in equity at that time remains in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the recognition
of a non-financial asset such as inventory. When the forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in
equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss and are included in
other gains and losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within a year and therefore are all
classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 31 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Note 3 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is
not due 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade payables and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the income tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

@

)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the areas where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Gurrent and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
joint ventures and associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from
the joint ventures and associates’ undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits provided in various forms of consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees or compensations for
the termination of employment relationship.

(@  Short-term obligations

Short-term employee benefits include employee wages or
salaries, bonus, allowances and subsidies, staff welfare,
premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance, housing funds, short-
term paid absences, labour union running costs and employee
education costs, etc. The short-term employee benefit liabilities
are recognised in the accounting period in which the service is
rendered by the employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension schemes, including both
defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group’s legal or
constructive obligation for the plan is limited to the contributions.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Pension obligations (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government
bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense, except
where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settiements.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the profit or loss.
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2 FESTHEHSE )

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

©

@

®

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide other post-retirement benefits
to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting methodology
as used for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

22 TESEBOR (®)
EEEF(E)

©

@

)

H M BERL B 1T

AT RERRRERANEEREEMRKE
B TRUFEN —RARBEEDR
TREFERATIDER & B Se AR IR AR5 A A 1
o LSRR R TRHIA AN AR B S E AR A
BATFTEERNBREEIENE - 2
REMRG - KRARLBEBRKNES
FREERRE R RBIREEL R AR
HAn 2 E WS s MRt A o EF
BEEGFHBIAEREEMGE -

BEBLET
BERBAEA BN ERRIRA BRI
EREESEREEX A REAARIUL

ERMFHXN - ARBEENTRE A Y
BAERHEREREN - (B A EETEE
SRE L SRR B LR - R(b)E BEE
MBI & E 2RI 375k S B ) BAEERK
A R A BERAE AR o S ENER
EFRERMBLOBRT « BEBENREY
BEXBHNREABGTE - EREHRR
HBiB12{8 A R A ERGR EHE -

D E RIEAT T &)
REFIREE T HERARBBERE R
MR AT EOIEAL MG MY TR A
BEEFEY - EEAREESIBEEDSIE
HEEER - NEE SRR -

141



142

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E PSR AR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
() Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(@) Share-based payments — expense recognition and grant date

Share-based payment expenses should be recognised over
the period during which the employees provide the relevant
services. This period may commence prior to the grant date. In
this situation, the entity estimates the grant date fair value of the
equity instruments for the purposes of recognising the services
received during the period between service commencement
date and grant date. Once the grant date has been established,
the entity revises the earlier estimate so that the amounts
recognised for services received is ultimately based on the grant
date fair value of the equity instruments.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via
the A share Option Incentive Scheme (the “Employee Option Plan”),
the executive short-term incentive scheme and share appreciation.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in Note 39.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FTESFEKR @)
Share-based payments (Continued) DRBAERNNSRE)
Employee options S
The fair value of options granted under the Employee Option Plan is RIEEE R ENAEN A TEER R
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding EERFIFS - WAREE IR - NEBEILR
increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by P B R A T EEE & AEE -

reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g. the entity’s — BEAATSEERR(FIINEERE)
share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market — TEEFEMRSELRIETSERTBEG
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth (B - HEEREER 1@%54\
targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified —BREBTHERNEAER ) NTE

time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the — BEEAEHEBEGG(PINEEEER —
requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a specific B EREREBSEERD ) T E -
period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the @Y N RBHNER - BIFAFTaIRRNER
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be BIEHFEAR - SHIRARE - ERReBREIED
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates 55 B R RGeS E R TR T HEN
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the Bk A - ERRA MG (AN ERAINE
non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact SRR - WHERERERE -

of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The Employee Option Plan is administered by Employee Share Trust, EEHEGEREESRNELER - WRE
which is consolidated in accordance with the principles in “Principles [GHRAIRERSHEEQMWB AR MRE
of consolidation and equity accounting (a) Subsidiaries”. When the i&ﬁ B o EEAREETTER - EEREEEE
options are exercised, the trust transfers the appropriate number EEEE RN o WERIFTSFIER R M
of shares to employee. The proceeds received net of any directly HEBOR PN EEET Ak o

attributable transaction costs are credited directly to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Provision

Provisions for warranty are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

The Group recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace for
assurance type — warranty. This provision is calculated based on
historical experience of the level of repairs and replacements.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

If an entity has an onerous contract (the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it), the present obligation under the
contract is recognised as a provision.

A restructuring provision is recognised only when the general
recognition criteria for provision are met. The obligation for a
restructuring is often constructive. A constructive restructuring
obligation arises only when there is: (a) a detailed formal plan
identifying the main features of the restructuring; and (b) a valid
expectation in those affected that the entity will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected.

A restructuring plan does not create a present obligation at the
balance sheet date if it is announced after that date, even if it is
announced before the financial statements are approved. A sale
or termination of a business might fall under the definition of a
restructuring. No obligation arises in respect of restructuring costs
associated with the sale of an operation until the entity is committed
to the sale (that is, there is a binding sale agreement).

Restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not those associated with the entity’s
ongoing activities. Any expected gains on the sale of assets are not
considered in measuring a restructuring provision.

2 FESTHEHME R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sale of coal mining machinery, spare parts, auto
parts and rendering of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Sales are presented, net of value-added tax, rebates and
discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group also assesses its role as an agent or principal for each
transaction and in an agency arrangement the amounts collected
on behalf of the principal are excluded from revenue. The Group
recognises revenue when the specific criteria have been met for each
of the activities, as described below.

Sales of products

The Group manufactures and sells a range of coal mining machineries
and auto parts to its customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied. The retention receivables which will be settled by
customers after warranty period, is included in trade receivables.

The Group does not recognise the warranty service as a separate
performance obligation in a single contract as the warranty service is
assurance type, and the Group’s obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the warranty terms is recognised as a provision, see
Note 35.

Transportation and handling cost

As the transportation and handling activities occur before the
customer obtains control of related products, they are not separate
performance obligation, therefore, related costs are fulfilment costs
which are recognised as assets. The assets are amortised on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or service to which the assets relate. Due to the short
period of transportation, related assets are not material at the
balance sheet date.

2 FESTHEHSE )
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEHME R

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESEHEK @)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WAER(E)
Significant financing component FABES S
Where the contract contains a financing component which provides WERBEERERY  AEPIREERBER
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 miraE12E A - B AR R T 2 (@R B
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount BRI RALIE R IR 2 EIGGIRRER
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected = - MABWARIRERFEEZEBRE - I
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest [l HAPR — A% &1.5E254F -

income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Normally, the collection period would be from 1.5 to 5 years.

Rendering of service sy,
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting IR RIS TS WA RIR IR 7S 2 & 71 B 1
period in which the services are rendered. The service provided by R NEBIRMEMRS T BEEEIRIFER -

the Group is mainly related to the service for repairing service.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with EIEEFZ EIRE R G R EER B &

customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires the BRI TSR RIS RET P MW A RE

presentation of any unconditional rights to consideration as a A A ZSRASE AT R IR B R 2

receivable separately from contract assets. The Group has therefore YABINEREENEKREIE - AL - A&

reclassified its contract assets and contact liabilities upon adoption of E R BRI R S R 165k e ER 1A

IFRS 15. EAREERARARE -

Contract liabilities are recognised as follow: ERBERRAT

e (Contract liabilities recognised in relation to advance received o FEAAIEUES RUWENR R F 2R AT ER R
from customers for non-cancellable contracts. cRBE-

e Contract liabilities recognised in relation to R&D reimbursements o FHfZHERANGRAG - XEER
— The Group recognises the related reimbursement payment HREEFPHEBHEREERRERE
from customer as contract liabilities and recognises the amount & @ WERARRBEGZANIBER MR
as revenue over the expected production to customer in future FAETRRIAEEMWA - BEMEKRAE
period. The related R&D costs are capitalised as contract MMeR/ERBRKA - WIERIHEKARH
fulfilment cost are amortised to profit or loss on a systematic —HoBRERAEFPEREETEMNER
basis consistent with the pattern of the transfer of the products RRGEENERETPEE - (U8 EKE
under production to the customer as part of cost of sales. Any RISk B B A E IR R R P AR T TR O T
R&D cost which is not recoverable or when related production BR AR EZ RN BEP M o F A
is not proceeded by the customer is written off to profit or loss SHAKAS o

directly. There is no cost written off during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group also has the contract related assets, recognised in relation
to nomination fee. Nomination fee represents the fee paid by the
Group to the customers to participate in the tendering process, and
the fee is not refundable once the customer’s contract is secured.
Such payment to customer is capitalised as an asset and thus
amortised to deduct against the revenue over the contract life.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as other income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.

Government grants

Government grants are obtained free from the government in the
form of monetary assets, including tax refunds and/or financial
subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions. If the grant is in the form
of monetary assets, it is measured by the amount received or
receivable.

W AR (E)
BINEESZ A FIHBNEERE E(#)

BENERREEBHANESRBHEEE - 2%
BIEASEALERERFMARPXNNE
Be-RBFAR—BESE  ZERATIRE -
MEPINNBEZEENMLA—TBEE
LR S A A R F HAR A AR Bk -

FEWA

MEBWARFEEHERNEERANEREE
MREAE  ERRBEEEERENSREE
BRoN o BELEEERENSREEMS @ BR
MEEANEREENREFECNREER
) o

68 EBEERRANBBAFERSEER
@ BRI B A 2SI REAMIA -

BUF 8D

BF#BRA SR EER A NBNES 81
BB BB

RERREB WS B B AR SRE 85 P HT
HIRENBERT - HRBTHE - WERE
BEENTA @ BliRC WS 2 -



148

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E PSR AR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to assets are government grants which
are obtained by the enterprise for the construction or formation
of other long-term assets. Government grants related to income
refer to the grants other than those related to assets. Government
grants related to assets are recognised as deferred income, equally
recorded in profit or loss of corresponding period over the life of the
relevant assets.

Government grants related to income used as compensation for
business expenses or losses in subsequent periods, are recognised
as deferred income, and recorded in profit or loss when the expenses
are recognised; those obtained as compensation for business
expenses or losses that have occurred are recorded directly in current
profit or loss.

Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

2 FESTHEHME R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEME®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FEZFTER#E)

Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEEHBEHRE®

(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued) 22 FESEHEK @)

Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Group entities use
that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing
rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2 The principal accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is amortised over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for
the right-of-use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the statement of financial
position based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders, where
appropriate.
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3 Financial risk factors

3 EmEAMEZE

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include loans receivable
from associates and joint ventures, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, finance lease receivables, long-term receivables, debt investment,
trade and other receivables, derivative financial instruments, pledged bank
deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables, borrowings,
redemption liabilities, transferred trade receivables and liabilities associated
with transferred trade receivables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

AEEXZEREENRERRRUBERBIRE
BEEEFR  UAFEAEBAEEHFABENS
BEE  ANFEAEAEREHAARMEE KRS
MEMEE  BREHERYGE  REEEGIA -
BRE  BHREMERFIE - ITESRBTA
SHEMRITER - REMBITHES  EHRHEME
3R - 68  BOaE  CEBENE SRR
MECEENEZEMFEERNEE - ZELR
TAHBREMERE - FEZSRTANERR
NI R FRR BRI T - BIEEEIE
WEARZ TR - RN R EI6EE 15 E o

manner.

(@ Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to currency risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk and price risk. There has been no change in the b3
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages

and measures the risks.

(i) Currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various non-functional currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial

transactions, recognised assets and liabilities.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group therefore is
primarily with respect to non-functional currency bank balances,
and receivables (collectively “Non-Functional Currency ltems”).

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging certain foreign currency exposure by using

foreign exchange forward contracts when the need arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-functional currency

items at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

(a) TR bR

AEBEBEETIZAZTEERR - FIXE
CRBESRBIERRR - NEBERZH
ZERBRERMFERRN D AGEEED -

() E¥ERE

AEENERBRIEET - WEAZZEIED
REEHRRAINER R - SNERKR B R
HERS  CHREEMBEESL -

BRIt 7SR [ S ) E R N R B X 22K
B IR B’ BV IR T A R K B R IE (7
fEFea®mEa D) -

B EEEIMNERR - W EEE B

REBINES R EHhETINERE

REMERR - NEBESENREERIAR K
REENAT -

31 December 2020
—B-EE+-A=+-H

31 December 2019
“TNEFET-A=t—H

UsD EUR HKD usb EUR HKD

ESH |E BT e BT BT

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARWTRT ARETT ENGGSEVUN: SN

Assets BE 688,682 163,391 39,344 684,245 38,704 41,875
Liabilities BE (62,902) (1,381,556) - (62,962)  (650,277) -

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk

between USD/RMB, EUR/RMB and HKD/RMB.

AEEEEAERTHARKE  BUTHEA
REERETTHLARBEOINERLR
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3 SEERBEZE®
(@) TIZEEE )

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@ Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥ERE)
Sensitivity analysis R T

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the relevant foreign currencies
against RMB. The rate of 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates but does not consider the effect of derivative
financial instruments. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit for the year and a negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit for the year where the
relevant foreign currencies change 5% against RMB.

31 December 2020
—E-EF+-A=+—H

TR AEEHERIINE L ARETHE
K2 ES% I BURE 1T © 5%M LR R A
T2EEABNI2MINERRNGURE
e WREREEBHER SRR EE )
B - SUREDITERIBEASNETIER
HMASNEREIRR @ W& HEHRIAE
REBSRIFE N FHE - T RITES
BMTANTE - TIIRBRBBINEEAR
HEEERRFHER - ERRTRERNRHR
BBEFIEN - BB RFRBNRD -

31 December 2019
T hET-A=+-8

usD EUR HKD Usb EUR HKD
ES 5o BT %7 BT AT
RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT BN SwN:: NS

If the currency strengthens  fil &% i,
against RMB ARBHE 25,176 (46,609) 1,672 26,051 (22,880) 1,780

If the currency weakens HEEH
against RMB ARBEE (25,176) 46,609 (1,672) (26,051) 22,880 (1,780)
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3 eEEREE®)
(@) iz e
(i) FIEER

AEET BER (FHIE2 R34 R
RenENERmE - BAT - NEBEWL BT
ERRERENERER - HEREREY

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@ Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see Note 34 for details). Currently,
the Group does not have a specific policy to manage its interest

rate risk, but management will closely monitor interest rate
exposures and consider hedging significant interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for long-term borrowing
at variable-rate at the end of each reporting period and the
excepted changes in interest rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year and being held constant throughout the
reporting period.

If the interest rates on long-term variable-rate borrowings had

been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have decreased by:

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year

F AR A

BENXRRIHEEFTEREBLHEKR
R

INTBBEES T HRIEZERBEERS
HEEIRAIF R R A M SR EE IR
MR RIEH B B (R ER S BT E)
EE °

sl )% 2. EE@FEH’J*'JIJ:ﬂ'SOfIﬁEﬁ i
FiE E S - BIFARTIE T
A

2020 2019
=t —Z2NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

(17,524) (9,583)

The post-tax profit for the year would have increased by the
same amount as mentioned above if the interest rates on
variable-rate borrowings had been 50 basis points lower and all
other variables were held constant.

% SEEMMEXTR0EEE - MAE
E@ AR - BIFARRIREOEN R
AR E R0
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@ Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the balance
sheet either as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) (Note 24) or at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) (Note 24). To manage its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.

The majority of the Group’s equity investments are publicly
traded and are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The remaining part is unlisted
companies.

With the 10% change of the price of those equity securities
including both listed companies and unlisted companies, the
Group’s other comprehensive income and profit before tax
would increase or decrease by RMB2.9 million and RMB11.3
million respectively (2019: the other comprehensive income and
profit before tax would increase or decrease by RMB3.0 million
and RMBO0.1 million respectively).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables, long-term receivables, structured deposits, derivative
assets, loans receivable from associates and a joint venture, bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents.

To manage the risk with respect to bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits and derivative assets, the Group
placed them in or entered into the contract with the banks with high
reputation.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an appropriate financial
strength, credit history and an appropriate percentage of down
payments. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

3 emAKEZR®
(@) TIZEEE )
(i) EERRR

REBAZEFEREMEENRAE S
ERAR  YNEERBERIB/URF
Bt 8 B EE & A2 m e (T
24)RARNTEE B HEB BRI
ite4) - REREBRAFFREMELN
EBRRER  AEEREREBESGZHRE
A& Z AR 15 AN 5 B RR 32 A0 IR
T

REBNRBOBETAKERDRARS
YREEBEXZMBRARER LT
BRTED B/ARLETAR °

Mz SR AFHERLIR10%E S (BIE
FHRRANALETAR)  REBWHM
2 U S B B B AT 5 I Bl & 43 Bl 0 sk
MO ARE20B BTN ARKI13EET
(ZZ—NF « b2 mEmUEs MBS
MEopEinsRd ARE308 BT KR
ANRBEOIFETT) ©

b) EER

EEERKEE S REMEBKTOR - BEHE
FEMFOR - REIEWEOR - ERIEFR - IT4E
BE  BURBERAR N —MaELEER R
TER RERREEEY -

REBERITER R LREFEY &8
MERRTEEERBNRR - AEEGEZE
BEGFENBEERIFHRITREZFIRITAI L
AF o
REBEHIEBRERMNBEEREERII - A
BEEVHE N MRS RHE S B HIET
TEEPEITHE o AEREINHE 4 BT
Fr - WEOREREN BRAE #5 pp U5 [0l 380 HR 7S -
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3 SRERBREER®
b) EERRE®

3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation of credit
limits to individual customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In respect of the business
of manufacture of coal mining machinery, the Group generally
receives advances in the form of notes receivable or cash from
customers (which approximate 30% of the contract price) before
delivery of its product and allows a credit period of 180 days to its
customers for the remaining contract price. In respect of auto parts,
normally a credit period of 0 to 90 days is granted to its customers.

During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with
full recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk
of the default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low
because all endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 1 to 5 years and
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparties’ ability to meet its
obligations

e Qactual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of counterparties

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of counterparties

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of counterparties, including changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in the operating results
of the counterparties.

AN - AREEREHE T ENEFEFPNEER
B RS ERE S USRI A B S5 - DARE
RLEEN @ FIRET R R SR EEE - BEE
RIERW RTINS - ARE— RN EEMA
AEFPREREERELRE AN (RE
RERBRL30%) - WLtk TERERRE
FRTIBOREEM - sAEZTEHHME - &
P—RERIEIRNEEHR -

RAFE - $EIE“$&%¢ RETREK
RE - NEHEAREERENE S REMEN
HE - ARAREERR  ARMACBERIK
SEEABERFHODBEIRTE B KR HER
BRNESERREENRBRTA

REEERBR S HEREERHELN AR R
REREPHNEERR ST RERELM -
RAHEEERRELTBEIRN  AEEKEE
RERE B E N ER RN TSR B Bz
HRBEITHLE - BREEEERENBE
ESFMBEEEERELERE - WIFHHAR
A RBR &R P 458 I WS ORBE N R
R=ZEEANAIRMLER - REEITRE BRI &
BHARBEBARIEER  UTERXLERE
MAZBEE

o 2R MHALENAERIEHLRE
RAMEE - BRKEHEFHELEE
HIRERE

o HFIREXEERAEBMHRAEAR
E2)

o HFIMHMEBTANEERMBEEE
on

o HFHEHBRARITA/LREAES
ﬁ$%lmﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm“ﬁﬁﬂi
Eﬁ(« A% %Z—‘E inﬁ °
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3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SREREE®
(o) Credit risk (Continued) b) EERB @
The Group has the receivables from different customers and debtors AEEEWHFERETRTENERLLEE
operate in different industries. In the meantime, customer portfolio A o B REEEMEIR  BNEFEEE
basis are also different between China and other countries. Thus, the BAR - Bt - AEEG EREESEID AT
Group classified the above assets into below categories: *ERl
e Category 1: trade receivables — coal mining machinery group o FERN : BEBZEUGIE - BRI EE
e (Category 2: trade receivables — ASIMCO group o ERI2 : EBZEUNGUE - HEIEE
e Category 3: trade receivables — SEG Automotive Germany o 73 : E 5 FEUFKIE — SEG Automotive
GmbH (“SEG”) and its subsidiaries (“SEG group”) Germany GmbHEE B ([SEG)) R EI B A A
([SEGE = 1)
e Category 4: notes receivables — commercial notes o fERI4: EINEE -HERR
e Category 5: notes receivables — bank accepted notes o fBRI5 : EUERE —RITA LRI
e Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables o KRG : mbETHE EUGRIE K&K HAE YK
18
e Category 7: loans receivable from associates and joint ventures o BAI7: EUEEARIREEDERR
e Category 8: other receivables o fERI8 : EfhpEUEIA

e Category 9: transferred account receivables o FBRI9: BEEAEUIRR
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over a period of 12 to 36 month before 31 December
2020 or 31 December 2019 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the China coal price index and GDP to be the most
relevant factors for coal mining machinery group and PPl and
GDP of the countries in which it sells its goods and services
to be the most relevant factors for auto parts group, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
and the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with
the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

3 SRERBREER®

(b)

N

15 Z Ny
LA

@

B 5 RWFIR

R e A B R B IS S AR RSB 9SR AL
Ik RBEEFERNERERRETE
P B SIEMGRIRMTRHIE EEE - Bt
BEMEEEE  BSEREGUACRER
REERBREFHLEHADHE -

FEHEERRESIR - -_TFE+_A
=t —HxXZE-NFF+ZA=1+—HAH
1222 361 A EAf 8 & AU SR IE I e AN HARE
ALRMAREBTEERENE - BAE
BRELFARURMEETERFEEME
URERIB AL Y R B s R 2 00 & B I ATIE
MER - AEEDERPEE R ERER
Ko Bl A A FE 4R B A R TR A AR 5 B A9 B AR
HEx - MEHEESERERBHERMEE
EHOEESLBENEERELABETEMH
SEMNSEEREZ - WREZERENE
BB AR BT BIEEX -

BIRYGSAERAREENES TR
W Bl - BAIRTEE RN EIN TR B
EEPER)EBABEENEBERE

KEtE o

B S RYANR A REENRERBERE
SR 25 AR EREFE - KR
SR MEHRFORRIFE AR —IAR -
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(o) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables of different

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

categories as at 31 December 2020 are listed as follows:

Category 1: Coal mining machinery group

3 EREAREZR®)
b) EERRE@
B 5 EWERE ()

@

FEHT - R

RIB-ZBF+-_RA=+—HBTREEHE

SRMGRIRRNFEREEBENT -

Over Over Over Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2 years
Within ~ butwithin  butwithin  butwithin  but within Over
90days 180 days 1 year 2years 3years Jyears Total
BBOX HBBIOX HBE-F BEREF
P0XA B180kAw  B-FR  EmER  EZFR  BBZF -
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR 5T ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables B S EkE
At 31 December 2020 33
+ZRA=1+-H
Expected loss rate kil spp 0% 2% 5% 15% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  BREAE(TRIEE
receivables assessed individually) — ERIFFEHIEYFUE) 869,267 995,340 805,130 342,283 36,224 156,632 3,204,876
Loss allowance provision EEEE - 19,907 40,256 51,342 18,112 156,632 286,249
Individually impaired receivables (AR EREYEE - - - - 34213 17283 207,107
Total loss allowance provision i8R EMA%E - 19,907 40,256 51,342 52,385 320466 493,356
Trade receivables EREKTE
At 31 December 2019 RIE-hE
TZA=t-H
Expected loss rate kil =ppe 0% 2% 5% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carying amount (excluding ~ EEZE(TAEE
receivables assessed individually) — ERIFEEEEMFIE) 761,776 404,172 501,920 101,935 63,519 188,000 2,021,322
Loss allowance provision EiREG - 8,083 25,09 20,387 31,759 188,000 213,325
Individually impaired receivables (B3I E U EUE - 487 836 62,206 34,028 186,281 283,838
Total loss allowance provision ~ FEREAE - 8,570 25,932 82,593 65,787 374,281 557,163
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3 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 SRERBREER®
(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERB @)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) BIEWREE)
Category 2: ASIMCO group 2ER2 - BHTFIEE

Over Over Over

90 days 180 days 1 year
Within but within but within but within Over
90 days 180 days 1 year 2 years 2 years

BBOX BBEIBR BB-F
WEA  E1e0kR  B-FA  BRFR  BEWF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Trade receivables g5 RWE
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF
+=A=t+-H
Expected loss rate EHERE 0% 2% 30% 80% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  BRE 4 (& (TR HEIE
receivables assessed individually) 1 RIFT/& A0 U FRIE) 639,557 319,756 31,561 3379 10,301 1,004,554

Loss allowance provision EERE - 6,395 9,465 2,688 10,301 28,849

Individually impaired receivables & RI5i(E U FIE - - - 926 3,259 4,185

Total loss allowance provision g4 - 6,395 9,465 3,614 13,560 33,034

Trade receivables g5 EWE

At 31 December 2019 R-B-NE

+TZA=t+-H
Expected loss rate EHEEEX 0% 2% 30% 86% 100%
Gross carrying amount (excluding  ES T 48 (E (TR HEjE
receivables assessed individually) {E RIIFTAE H0E L ER B ) 797,833 55,421 18,996 5,629 8,181 886,060

Loss allowance provision EERE - 1,108 5,696 4,824 8,181 19,809

Individually impaired receivables 1515 (E FE U F IR - - 963 1,099 2,233 4295

Total loss allowance provision 181 545 - 1,108 6,659 5923 10,414 24,104
Category 3: SEG group and contract related assets 2853 - SEGE R & AR & &=
The account receivable balance of SEG group and contract SEGEE KA RIIEM A E R BRI EREE
related assets are mainly related with SEG group’s customers, FTEHESCEENTEFER - HARIKA
who are the global OEMs in auto industry. The Group assessed HITENRBREBERER - AEEKA
the credit losses of account receivable balance of SEG group b A ESEGER KRR RHBENEEE
individually using simplified approach. As at 31 December BETENTE  RZE_ZTF+_-A
2020, RMB34 million (2019: RMB31 million) has been provided =+—8 " pREUERRETCEETESR
as life time loss allowance for account receivables. MEEREAARBUMEET(ZZE—N

F:ARBINEET) -



SR KRR A SR B AR 19 B R A F) 20205 3%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

3 EREBEZEE

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes receivables
Category 4. notes receivables — commercial notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
commercial notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2020, RMBO0.6 million (2019: RMB15
million) were provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes
receivables — commercial notes.

Category 5. notes receivables — bank accepted notes

The Group assesses the credit losses of notes receivables —
bank accepted notes individually using three-stage approach.
As at 31 December 2020, RMB1.1 million (2019:Nil) were
provided as 12 months loss allowance for notes receivables-
bank accepted notes.

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables
Category 6: finance lease receivables and long-term receivables

Finance lease receivables and long-term receivables are mainly
due from the customers of coal mining machinery group. The
Group has provided financial leasing or long term payment plan
to certain customers because these customers are mainly state
owned companies or guaranteed by third parties with special
credit profile. The Group has granted a relatively long repayment
plan to the customers based on the credit assessment. The
Group assesses the credit losses of finance lease receivables
and long-term receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2020, RMB111 million (2019:
RMB102 million) were provided as life time loss allowance for
finance lease receivables and long-term receivables.

Loans receivable from associates and joint ventures
Category 7: Loans receivable from associates and joint ventures

Loans receivable are due from the Group’s associates and
joint ventures. The Group assesses the credit losses of related
balances individually using three-stage approach. As at 31
December 2020, RMB64 million (2019: RMB64 million) were
provided as loss allowance for loans receivable from associate
and joint ventures.

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

SERE
(i) EWEE
54 FENEE — B E

AEERAZREAHBEREE -HEE
BENEEHBETERFE - RZE=F
F+-A=+—8 CREKREE-B%
ZENRENEABEREARBIES
TT(ZZE—NF : ARBISEETL) °

KR ¢ JEW IR — IRTTAHEIL R

REBERA=ZHEBOEH BKRRE —RITA
AEBNEEERETEMNFE R=F
TEESFA=+—H  AEEREKE
- RITAL R 128 A B REBA
REIIBET(ZE—NF &) -

BMERERWFRR REEKRE
256 : BETHE BRI IER RAEWHE

BEE R TE R REUWEIEE E AR
BEEREERTF  -HRETEPETEARE
rESHEABHAEERIHE=ZFER &
AEEEMZERPREREHEIRAMNK
T8 - AREEREEEHGEARZEFLZ LAY
BRMENTE - AEERAMLEEHMER
ERWIER R ARRGIEETEEEER
FE e R—T_TF+-_A=+—8 CHE
ERERBGIER K ARWGIEHREATE
HEERBEARBIMEBET(ZE—NAF : A
RE102BE8TT) -

BRBEATRAELRER
B B EATRAEDEER

JERBEFAREAEEBE AT RAEDE -
AEERA =B EHAREHRNEEERE
TEBFHE - RZZEZEF+=A=+—1"
AEBEBREKE A AR KA ECERNGHE
BEREBEARBUMEETL(ZE—NF : AR
Be4EETT) °
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(v) Other receivables
Category 8: Other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-stage approach to measure
expected credit loss (“ECL”). Other receivables comprise:
advances to staff, deposit and others. Since the credit risk
of other receivables are considered not significantly increase
since initial recognition, therefore the impairment provision
is determined as 12 months ECL. As at 31 December 2020,
RMB113 million (2019: RMB114 million) were provided as loss
allowance for other receivables.

(vi) Transferred account receivables
Category 9: Transferred account receivables

Please refer to Note 36 for the detailed description of transferred
account receivables. The Group assesses the credit loss of
transferred account receivables individually using simplified
approach. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
the related loss allowance was immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilization of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group is required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

3 SRERBREER®

(b)

©)

=ER %)
(V) EiEREE
ABRIS : BN I

NG [ pE A B IR B TS S MR R B9k AR E
M =FEEEUFrETEREEHB([TE8E
EEE])  c AMERZIERE  mEIR
o mE REAM o HREMEYRIBRE
ERERESE A B TSRS EEE L
e BAREREEERI2EAESREE
EiE - RZZEZEF+ZA=1+—H "B
PLE A FEUGRIERH IR BT IR B AR 113
BET(ZZE—NF : AREN48ET) -

(vi) BEEAEWERR
FEF9 - BB FEN AR
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36 - ANEEEEAMLAR D B YR
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3 Financial risk factors (continued)

Weighted
average

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

3 SREREE®
€ mEEERR @

On demand
or less than

3 months 1year

Total

2years  undiscounted

Garrying

The Group *EE interest rate 3 months to1 year to2 years to 5 years cashflows amount
REXT )
METHIHE  HWNMER  MEREIE 1552% UEESE RETBAE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETR
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-ZF+-f=1-H
Non-derivative financial libilties FiTEeRaE
Trade and other payables 28 REMENTUR - 7500973 1,022,344 - - B5RIT 8,523,817
Liabilties associated with transferred ~ BAREZRE 5
frade receivables EUsIEEENERE = 8,073 822,868 = = 830,941 830941
Borrowings EE 241 443,639 640,202 857452 2,881,030 4822413 4,598,895
Lease liabilties HEBR 3n 36,317 93,229 131,248 704,874 965,667 805,206
Redemption iailties (Note 44) RS () 10 142087 - - - 140815 1420875
Dervative financial liablties EcRakE
Designated as hedging instruments £ E AR TE - 4,238 1,925 - - 6,163 6,163
Not designated as hedging instruments e E AL TE - 6,925 642 - - 7567 7567
- 9421040 2,581,800 988,700 3585003 16,577,443 16,193,464
As at 31 Deoember 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=T-H
Non-Gerivative financial liabilties HiepaE
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTE - TN 830,628 - - 8005539 8005539
Liabilties associated with transferred ~ EAR 2B 5
irade reosivables U EARENER - 39,412 119,350 - - 158,762 158,762
Borrowings E& 281 427185 1,063,182 834,342 914,232 3,238,941 3137487
Lease liabilties HEaE 37 43879 127,885 135,730 522,226 829,720 691,848
Redemption iaites (Note 44) EBEARE(MEM) 10 720,000 - 623,404 - 133404 1287404
Designated as hedging instruments ~ #EF ASHRIA - 664 1,925 - - 2,589 2,589
Not designated as hedging instruments Mg AR T E - 401 642 - - 1,043 1083
- 8,406,452 2,143,612 1,593 476 1436458 13579998 13,284,672

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

In addition to the above, the Group is also exposed to liquidity risk
in the next one year from each reporting date in relation to the
maximum loss and cash outflows that may result from the Group’s
endorsed notes receivable with full recourse should the issuing banks
of these notes fail to honour their obligations, please refer to Note 43

for details.

i B = IR E REE BRI AR BZE
£ Al EdrHTEERBETHNETAS

A TR -

B EXFTESL

AREE B SIS A HEARK

—FARRBESER  FRAKEAER
HERENCEEREERERLZERRZ
RITREBITEHEENBER TAIRELRNRA
EBERERERL - FI5F2HME3 -
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at 31 December 2020
R-EB-ZF+-A=1+-AZA¥HE

Financial instruments

SWMIR

Financial assets at Listed equity securities in Hong Kong
fair valug through — Coal industry RMB28,993,000
0Cl, non-current (2019: RMB29,934,000)

NATEGEAEEETA REBHLHREES

Ef 2 ERENSHE —BIRITE AR H28,993,0007C
B ERD (Z2—N%F : AR¥29,934,0007T)
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract designated
instruments as hedging instruments
THESRMTA —Nil (2019: RMB3,042,000)

EE AT ANEIINESR
~Z(ZZT—N%F  ARH3,042,0007T)

3 emEABREZE®
0 eRIAEZA¥EF=

UHR A B T BT S RS RAER S
BEBEATEZEN -

rEESREERERABEZ A HERELS
MEERATERE -

TRAGETED IR FEIIFOS BT
B FRBMEEMT :

FR WERTSEESR T AN A A
MAREENITTETARBRAES)RIRERE
HIRFTRmEME - NEEFSmMEEMRA
MM ERERNEAE - ZFTAIAS
14

Eof% - WINERMSEEM SR T A (fIIn
EBAMTET R)AFEDNFBHEREET
ZEETEEENRBEM SR E 8
WO BB EMTRIERE - WEtEITAAT
BEFRERMAEEAE AR AT EREE - A
FZTEYIAE2R

FE3  M—IBHZAE R ABBALIERE
AERETIZEIRME « AR TA AR
a3k EMRAES) ©

AEEFNEREERERABRSHEHR
BAVERE - TRABEHNSAZESRE
EREBABERFEZEESA(LEZMA
ZEEDERBARE) -

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

AFEER EEFEREAGABE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

F1 RERTSMBR,ENE

Level 2 Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is
EpE hased on forward exchange rate (from observable forward

exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

ERBRERE - AARASRENEENERELE
R(RERSABERENTRERREX)RARA
EERE - BIRA RS F AN EERRAL R
I o
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3 SREREE®

3 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)
Financial instruments Fair value as at 31 December 2020
SRMIA R-B-BF+-A=+-AZATHE
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract not
instruments designated as hedging instruments
TEERMIA - RMB40,405,000 (2019: RMB10,904,000)
MEFERE P TARRIINESF
— AR40,405,000L(ZF— 1.5 -
AR#10,904,0007T)
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract designated
instruments as hedging instruments
fTEERMIA - RMBG6,163,000 (2019: RMB2,589,000)
EEAEPIANERINESR
— AR 6,163,000 (ZS—NEF
AR #2,589,0007T )
Derivative financial Forward foreign exchange contract not
instruments designated as hedging instruments
TEERIA - RMB7,567,000 (2019: RMB1,043,000)

TEEBEP T AMREINEAR
— ARE7 567,000 ( —E—NE
ARH1,043,0007T)

Financial assets at fair value Other financial assets
through profit or loss - RMB634,009,000 (2019: ni)
WATEZEAAE Hit e pEE
FTAEEREREE — AR 634,009,007t ( —Z— N
%)

d *@T Az AFE=w®@)

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DFESR

Level 2
EVE

Level 2
EVE

Level 2
EVE

Level 2
EVE

HEREREABARE

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

EHBERENE - KRR MENGENREEHE
ROREGEBROIBRZBEE) RS FizHH
& BRIRMEFHOEERBOLELR -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

EHBERENE - KRR MENGENRERIE
R(REGEBROIBRZBEE) RS FzHH
& BRAIRMETFHOEERBOLELR -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on forward exchange rate (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting date) and
contracted forward rate, discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of the counterparty.

EHBERENE - AR MENBENREEHE
R(REGEBROIBRZBEE) RS FzHH
& BRIRMEFHOEERBOLEMLR -

Fair values of collective investment schemes, debt securities,
base, ferrous and precious metals futures and options
contracts have been determined based on quotes from
market makers, funds administrators or alternative
pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most
significant inputs are market interest rates, market prices
of metals, net asset values and latest redemption prices or
transaction prices of the respective collective investment
schemes.

ERREHE - BRES EALE  RE2ERE
PENERIRSRA ATEREETSHE - &
SEERASENBEG S B A0 ER
RENREET  ARREZNHATRATAN
X pRMGER SEREREHEINEEFE
REFBEERKRHEE -
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3 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)
Financial instruments Fair value as at 31 December 2020
SMIR R-ZE-EF+-A=+-HZAYE
Financial assets at fair Structured deposit
value through profit or loss -RMB1,310,000,000
DATEFEREZS (2019: RMB1,393,000,000)

HABEMEREE HEEMEER
— AE#1,310,000,00070( ZE— 11
£ AR#1,393,000,0007T)

Financial assets at fair value QOther financial assets
through profit or loss — RMB800,000,000 (2019: ni)
DATEFEEEZS HttemEE
FABENEREE — AR 800,000,007 (= F—NE
T)
Financial assets at fair Notes receivables
value through OCl —RMB3,780,065,000

DATESEREESA (2019 RMB4,246,819,000)
Hin2AREmeBmEE RBUEE
— AR#3,780,065,0007( —E— 11
F 0 NR¥4,246,819,0007T)

Financial assets at fair value Equity interest in unlisted company with
through profit or loss no open market price quote
AAFEFEEEZE: A —RMB113,296,000 (2019: RMB1,296,000)
BaNeREE TEAFTISRENE LHRE
AR
— AR#113296,000( ZF—NE ¢
AR#1,296,0007T)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of current financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

3

SEEBEZE®)
) EITAEzAEFTE@m

Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique and key input

DVESS

Level 3
ERE

Level 3
ERE

Level 3
ERE

Level 3
ERE

HEREREXBARE

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that
reflects the expected return rates ranged from 2.6% to
5.4%. The higher the expected return rate, the higher the
fair value.

EAMRRENE - ARRERENBENEEER
8 - BRURMEBERENLE(NT26%E
5.4%)EE3E - EHIRBEMS - AT EMS -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate that
reflects the expected return rates ranged from 4.1% to
5.4%. The higher the expected return rate, the higher the
fair value.

EAMRRENE - ARRERENBENEEER
8 - BRURMEBERENLE(NT41%E
5.4%)EE3R - EHIRBEMS - ATEMS -

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on the contractual amount, discounted at a rate of 3.00%.
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.

CHRALRE - ARRERENBENRESRSE
% - BR00%MLRANE - AR RS - A TE
IR

Discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flow is based
on expected volatility, discount for lack of marketability
(“DLOM”), and discount rate. The higher the expected
volatility, the lower the fair value. The higher the DLOM,
the lower the fair value. The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.

ERHRRENE - KRB RENBEHEEEH
BB (R T imnB AR ([RE s
BI))RMBRE - BERSMA - ATEBE -
hEmERRRREES  ATEWE - BREY
B ATEME -

FRBVREFE 2 2 PR g -

EERR - RNREMBRRAREHERATIR 2R
HEMEERTRABNRABEEENHERS -
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward — looking estimates at the
balance sheet date. In making the judgement, management considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such
as actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
customers, actual or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting date the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount of goodwill at
31 December 2020 was RMB520,431,000 (2019: RMB677,221,000).
Further details are set out in Note 20.

4 BEASFHHAERMATTREEZENE

BERIR

REMBRRART GEHES  MEFHEFREE
BER HEREFHERERAR - ERERE
AAKE & BRI ATTE A -

AR R A SR EETE o W B RBEELLR
REMAZGE - BEABEAREMBEERE
BRI MEREREFEMNARREFHTE -

B REEE(RTO  TIERABARESE
ERERNSHEFBRRTHMEL - AHBB®RE
R SRR EATE -

B 5 WS IR A ETRE

REBKIBRE KR K TR HIE 18 = (FRE3) RIEM
REREFLRE -  AEEREBELEEES - BA
MR RAEE BRRTRE IR EFHZERRE
BIRER H A A BUREE R HIE o RFD HE
- EEEEEEPKERENERIFAREAR
B - FBEREPHMBGINNERSEREARTFE
PEASAEGRAELER - REWMER - A&
BEEECEHNELBRENE RO G
HH -

BERE

ErEERORERGIEIEEENESELE
(RS ELEMDNEREE - FREENES
AEBGIRSEAEMNBHELENRRESR
2 WAEREREAZNMEER - {ERAK
RenELRIEH - RITEESIBEXRERSE - 1
—ZE-EF+-A=+—HB HENEREAAR
520,431,000 (ZZ — 1L F : ARME677,221,000
TT) o #E—EHIFE NI FE20 ¢
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

The management considers the potential impairment based on the
recoverable amount. The intangible assets with finite useful lives are
reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that would indicate
potential impairment may include, but are not limited to, the significant
change in technology associated with the intangible assets. Determining
whether intangible assets is impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs to which intangible assets belong. The
recoverable amount of CGUs at the end of the reporting period is based on
the value in use calculation which requires the management of the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property
and plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for its items of property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the management’s experience of the actual useful
lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and actions of its competitors. The management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are less than previously estimated.

Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of pension obligations. Details of key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 37.

4 BERSHHEREFTIRERRNE

ERR®)
EEEERE

BEEEERENKESEEBELHRE - A ER
FHERNELEENAEFABNRARLREE
AR AW BIRRETTRER - RAFEELRE
MEZAEEJ(ETRY) BRETVEERBNEXN
BiTEE - EEBRLEESLREARGHETLEE
PrEHIR S EE BN AT RS ER - RIS RN
ReErBNNr R B EREREREE
o BRAKEEREABHEREELEUE
ERARKRRERENAENRREUFERE - &
ERARRRSREDNTEY - QIR REHREARE
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REBGFHE - BB RREEBOAERFEE
NABEMEBAEER - A ENEEEHAS
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4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of provision

The Group makes provisions for product warranty (only assurance type),
onerous contracts and restructuring cost. Management estimates the
related provisions based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent that it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and that the amount can be reliably estimated.

As for onerous contracts, the Group assessed at balance sheet date
on whether unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations have
exceeded the economic benefits expected to be received, and made
provision for these onerous contracts based on the estimated least net
cost of exiting from the contracts.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid
leasehold land and land use right, right-of-use asset
and development costs

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payment for land, right-of-use assets and
development costs to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Determining whether property,
plant and equipment, and prepaid lease payment for lands, right-of-use
assets and development costs are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use of the assets and
the fair value less costs of disposal. The value-in-use calculation requires
the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of the assets and from its ultimate disposal and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing, the applicable tax rates, and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details
are set out in Note 25.
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5 Revenue
Year ended 31 December 2020
BE—ZS-—FF+_A=+—-HLEE
Manufacture
of coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SUERERE RESETIN #5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR%TF T
Sales of auto parts RETEREE - 14,914,668 14,914,668
Sales of hydraulic roof supports RIEE S ZERSH & 7,213,585 - 7,213,585
Revenue from steel and other materials #4; & = fh R K 5 &9 A
trading 2,595,289 62,994 2,658,283
Sales of spare parts for coal mining TEEHEAR B AV SH S
machinery 1,490,459 - 1,490,459
Sales of other coal mining equipment — E b FRERABAVEHE 77,054 - 77,054
Other revenue HA 118,579 46,765 165,344
11,494,966 15,024,427 26,519,393
Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_ZT-NFT-A=1T—HLEE
Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
FUEH RN, RERET Y 5T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT ARETFT
Sales of auto parts RET I REE - 16,041,025 16,041,025
Sales of hydraulic roof supports TRIEE S ZERSH & 6,269,018 - 6,269,018
Revenue from steel and other materials $4; & = fh R K 5 &9 A
trading 2,118,017 128,801 2,246,818
Sales of spare parts for coal mining IR BRI EE S
machinery 1,002,430 - 1,002,430
Sales of other coal mining equipment  EL{hEREE R AV HE 86,532 - 86,532
Other revenue HApA 75,594 - 75,594

9,551,591 16,169,826 25,721,417
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Segment information

Information reported to the chief executive of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (CODM), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group’s reportable
segments under IFRS 8 are (i) manufacture of coal mining machinery;
and (i) manufacture of auto parts. No operating segments have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

CODM primarily uses a measure of segment net profit to assess the
performance of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepares the segment
reporting for net profit excluding the impact of a) impairment of goodwill
b) interest expense of redemption liabilities. The 2 items are related to
manufacture of auto parts segment.

6

7 RRE R

FERDBER D BRRFEA AR BZRSTHAE
(BnxE% @i&ﬁﬁ%#&im%ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁé%iﬁiﬁﬁ

MEMIRGER - ABME - REBBREMBRS
ZRFEBS - AEH E’J—Iziﬁ’“*ﬁﬁ( )BLE T

W R(NRETER

AEBR 2R

BB o WEMEE N HBE GRS

TELERAREIZEA D WEN BN EF L

REB R WA T LA 2], ML FRR D40

T o REERFFBRES RS - TRIF)EHE
BEDEDAEFNERYNTE -
ERBEAET

ith2fE1E B 5
BEBIE BEORARE

Manufacture of
coal mining Manufacture of
machinery auto parts Total
SERBRE RESESIN #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBT T ARET T
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE—E2-E%
+TZA=+—HLEFE
Segment revenue D EBURA 11,494,966 15,024,427 26,519,393
Segment net profit/(loss) excluding DEENE,(E18)
impairment of goodwill, interest TREBERE
expense of redemption liabilities EEaENEMAX 2,525,301 (882,211) 1,643,090
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_FE-hAEt+=-—A=1+-—
HIEFE
Segment revenue o EBURA 9,551,591 16,169,826 25,721,417
Segment net profit/(loss) excluding DEEFE,(BE) - e
impairment of goodwill, interest EERE - BREENEH
expense of redemption liabilities 53 1,659,300 (250,909) 1,408,391
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6 Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-HA=1+T—HLFE

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Segment revenue and consolidated revenue D EBURA AR E A 26,519,393 25,721,417
Segment net profit excluding impairment of goodwill, DECFEAE  TRIEEERE - B

interest expense of redemption liabilities ma &N e 1,643,090 1,408,391

Impairment of goodwill Fﬁé@ﬂﬁ (164,714) (174,086)

Interest expense on redemption liabilities BRI aEF SR (99,595) (94,395)

Consolidated profit for the year FRLZEE A 1,378,781 1,139,910

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by AEBENEENABERY2HRELEED RS
reportable and operating segments. The Group prepares the segment T AEERBEERBEGERESF®RE - T8
reporting for total assets and liabilities excluding, the impact of a) goodwill, RO EEKEREENFE - Z2EEHHHER
and b) redemption liabilities. The 2 items are related to manufacture of ERBEZE AR

auto parts segment.

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2020 2019
—EBCERE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
SEGMENT ASSETS PHEE
Manufacture of coal mining machinery B TR 19,328,850 15,180,644
Manufacture of auto parts Bl T B T 14,607,313 13,960,986
Total segment assets BAEREE 33,936,163 29,141,630
Goodwill [EES 520,431 677,221
Consolidated assets HREEBE 34,456,594 29,818,851
SEGMENT LIABILITIES STHEE
Manufacture of coal mining machinery B IR AR 9,139,033 7,283,768
Manufacture of auto parts B R B T IR 9,862,855 8,105,433
Total segment liabilities excluding redemption liabilities &5 & E - TEIEER A& 19,001,888 15,389,201
Redemption liabilities fERaE 1,420,875 1,287,404
Consolidated liabilities meaE 20,422,763 16,676,605
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = —Z —ZHF+-A=+—HIFE
6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEHER®E
Geographical information b4 &kt
The analysis of revenue by geographical location of customers is as WARE BT
follows:

2020 2019
—E-%F —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETTT

The PRC h 18,278,394 15,417,387
Germany =k 4,240,700 4,745,898
Other countries H Az 4,000,299 5,558,132
26,519,393 25,721,417
Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial DEEEIREEHRRBRANARTE - ZEEE
statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the BB HERLEEER M EEITHOR ©

segment and the physical location of the asset.

2020
—E-EHF
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets

REEE AT R B

THEE BEEXNEER FRBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T R AR®T R

Manufacture of coal mining machinery B3 B B AR

The PRC =8 19,320,697 299,546 455,327
Germany == 3,382 - -
Other countries HbE 20,041 - 380
Manufacture of auto parts B R ET I

The PRC A [ 8,213,663 79,253 251,329
Germany = 3,025,221 - 439,787
Other countries HABBEIK 3,380,113 - 376,420
Total segment assets BoEEE 33,963,117 378,799 1,523,243
Elimination EE| (26,954)

Unallocated: KRAOHE :

Goodwill EES 520,431

Total assets as per the financial position B 7 iA 5 P = 48 & & 34,456,594
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—Z—ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE
6 Segment information (Continued) 6 oEER®
Geographical information (continued) HbI% & # )
2019
—E-NF
Investment in Additions to
Segment associates and non-current
assets joint ventures assets
NN N
NHEE BAELEMNKRE ERBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT ARKETFTT ARETIT
Manufacture of coal mining machinery &35 BEAR AR,
The PRC =8 15,055,206 284,598 298,820
Germany = 3,611 - -
Other countries HEMER 125,122 - 316
Manufacture of auto parts BUE T
The PRC H 7,806,456 72,577 316,638
Germany = 2,940,122 - 440,695
Other countries HAMBER 3,377,108 - 232,968
Total segment assets IR E 29,307,625 357,175 1,289,437
Elimination EIgE! (165,995)
Unallocated: Kok :
Goodwill SRS 677,221
Total assets as per the financial position B # ik 5% Fr R 425 &= 29,818,851
Information about major customers FEEPER

The following illustrates the revenue from customers which contributing

over 10% of the total revenue of the Group: A

2020
—EoEE

—=—=

RMB’000
ARBTT

N/A

Customer A — manufacture of auto parts segment

TERA

AT BRI B 15 AN S B AU A B 1B10%H) % P 89 4L

2019
—E-NF
RMB'000
ARETT

3,389,763

Note: No customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2020.

BE_Z-ZF+_F=+—RHILFE  TE&

HAEEBAKRARBIO%NNES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE
7 Other income 7 HA
2020 2019
b g 223 —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Government grants (Note) BT B (M9 3E) 174,012 156,959
Interest income on bank deposits, long-term receivables  $R1T173% - EHAFEUFIE K& R &M
and finance lease receivables & rE I ERTE R F B U 88,811 68,221
262,823 225,180

Note: Government grants mainly represent government grants received from the

local government for compensation of research and development expenses
incurred, and in respect of construction of the Group’s new plant, which are
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss when related expenses
incurred or over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

8 Other gains and losses 8

M BURHB E R EREEMEERERX AR

B Hy R R B 1 B 07 BUR R RIS # B - £
MR EERRAREEEN EAFHREIRTE
LN c Bkl

Hitlh s R S8

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT

Net fair value gain on financial assets at

NAHEEAHEZESE AER

fair value through profit or loss HEeMEENAFERTFH 68,823 14,011
Net fair value gain/(loss) on derivative PTESBMTAAYE
financial instruments Wzt (B518) 358 2,107 (55,998)
Dividend from financial assets at fair value through AAFEEE BEHEE S AEAM
comprehensive income ZHWENSMEEMSRE 2,022 2,897
Gain on disposal of associates (Note 22) B E B N R A UES (P RE22) = 16,257
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and ~ HEWE - BB KR EL
intangible assets MR EERNEE (19,756) (2,192)
Impairment of intangible assets (Note a) mREERAE (M) (30,049) (246,731)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Note 9)  #72¢ - /= R &R E (FI339) (109,987) -
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNEE (518 ) Was 5 58 (133,828) 41,896
Impairment of goodwill (Note 20) PR A (FI7E20) (164,714) (174,086)
Others Hih (7,630) (14,458)
(393,012) (418,404)
Note: s -
@@ During 2019, the Group upgraded the BRM technology from BRM 1.5 to @ RZT—NF - A% EEBRMEIITHBRM 1.5F B &

BRM 2.8, an advanced version of the development costs. With the change of
the components of the technology, all the current customized projects would
be transferred to BRM 2.8. The Group made an impairment on capitalized
development cost which are directly linked with BRM 1.5 with the amount of
RMB246.7 million.

BRM 2.8( FABE A A M A R AR) B BRE BT 5 -
BRATEERCTEB B EEBRM 2.8 - AL 5
BRM 1.5 E M E LR AFHEREARE
46 7TEETT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

9 Restructuring costs

In October 2020, the Company approved the global business restructuring
plan (“Plan”) of SEG group. According to the Plan, SEG group will close the
plant in Germany, downsize the business in Spain and transfer orders to
Hungary so as to enjoy the lower production cost. Therefore, SEG group
will incur the personnel restructuring costs by terminating the labour
contracts with relevant employees.

As at 31 December 2020, based on the local labour policy and regulation,
agreed compensation schemes with some employees and working
council, SEG group provided RMB397,464,000 compensation cost for
535 employees, of which RMB18,448,000 compensation was settle in
2020. Besides, based on the relevant arrangement in <Share Purchase
Agreement> between the Company and Robert Bosch Investment
Nederland B.V, the Company additional accrued compensation of
RMB249,490,000, which will be paid to Robert Bosch Investment
Nederland B.V for the estimated 428 employees who will choose to return
to Bosch among the above 535 employees.

In additional, SEG group accrued RMB109,987,000 fixed assets
impairment in accordance with the global business restructuring plan and
future usage plan.

10 Finance costs, net

10

BEAEMAK

RZZZTF+AH - ARFHASEGEBM 2K E
EAFTE([3%5TE])) - BIRZETE] - SEGEEH
RAREE TR - 48R T 2L ST BB ER
FH - AR AEMKA - EHit - SEGEEEEL L
HEBAEIMSBARMESLABSBHEMA

RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—0 BEESHL IR

FERUREZSETIR TN EmETE
SEGEE [E 5354 B T 12 fit A FE #5397,464,000 7T )
ﬁfiﬁ;%;ﬁﬁ Hrh AR18,448,000 L M EE R =
TZFFLAN o o - IRIEA A E)ERobert Bosch
Investment Nederland B.VET 5] 37 B8 A% 17 s R A9 5 28
ZHE - ANR R REINEYE A K #6249,490,000 7T K
& ZEmE K ilis3s4 8 TrihiEi2iRERobert
Bosch Investment Nederland B.VAY{f5T428% 8 T f+F
Bosch °

LEAN - SEGER ER B2 IRE B EAR B KR KRB A
ST EIE L ETE & ERE AR E109,987,0007T °

B AN R

2020 2019

— 7 - ﬁi :;ﬁ_ﬂfﬁ

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETFT

Interests on bank borrowings RITIEERE 161,547 108,600
Interests on redemption liabilities ELOaEf e 117,170 111,054
Interests on leases HMEF 2 21,443 23,878
300,160 243,532
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE
11 Income tax expense 11 SRR
2020 2019
b g 223 —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Current income tax BIHAFTIS S 611,411 406,201
(Over)/under provision in prior years — enterprise BEFE (BRERE),/
income tax BETR - EMEH (10,945) 9,971
Deferred income tax TEIEFTISHL (39,353) (26,006)
561,113 390,166
(@) PRC corporate income tax (@) PRBFEMER

The corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on the statutory
profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and the applicable
tax rate in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations, after
adjustments on certain income and expense items, which are not
assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

In accordance with the PRC tax laws, standard corporate income tax
rate is 25%. The Company and certain subsidiaries are qualified for
new/high-tech technology enterprises status and enjoyed preferential
income tax rate of 15% during 2020 and 2019.

Germany profits tax (b)

Applicable profit tax rate of Germany is 29% (2019: 29%). During the
year ended 31 December 2020, no profit tax has been provided due
to accumulated losses (2019: Nil).

EEMEH([EEMEN ) RRES BB
ERERE AP BRI E R REEE
BMERBEAERS - EREHENNA
BHmE BAFRI T AR E TR
B -

REBEHEBE - RELEAERE[25% © 1
—E_TERTNF  ARB RO ME
RANFAEBIARMERER - ZX15%NEE
PSR -

BRI

EEEANAERE R29%(ZF—NEF
20%) c BE—T-_TF+_A=T—HIHF
E - BRHERRFEE - B REHEFIG TR
HZE—NF: |-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—Z—ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE

11 FBHAZ e
() Efb

BE-_Z-_ZHF+-_A=1+—HIEFE XK
SEEMKNBRAREROFEHENT%E
34.43% 2 E( ZZE—NF + N F9%Z237.68%2
f) e

11 Income tax expense (Continued)
(c) Others

Applicable profit tax rates of the Group’s other subsidiaries are
between 9% and 34.43% for the years ended 31 December 2020
(2019: between 9% to 37.68%).

During the year of 2020, the applicable profit tax rate of SEG
Automotive India Private Limited decreased from 34.94% to
25.17% and the applicable profit tax rate of SEG Automotive Japan
Corporation decreased from 37.68% to 34.01%.

AZEZTF  RERABEHNERRAREA
RIS TR FR34.94% P& E25.17% MR B
A B AR A E AN RS EBH37.68%
% Z234.01% °

2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Profit before tax R 5 AT 5 A1) 1,939,894 1,530,076
Tax at applicable tax rate of respective entities RENERANTRTENTIE 363,866 268,380
Tax effect of share of result of associates and joint ~ fE(EEEE AT & LD
ventures RENTIBTE (3,244) (6,259)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERBIMARNDTE G2 (33,638) (4,641)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for R a] 074 5 % Ky Fi 75 2 &
tax purpose 98,661 60,820
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences  RIEZRFIBEE R
not recognised TR RS2 236,549 141,123
Utilisation of tax losses and temporary differences  Fi| F3 4& Bl R FE R T IE E5 38 %
previously not recognised = EE (123) (11,324)
Additional deduction for qualified research and A BRI E BRI
development expenses (90,013) (67,904)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BEBEE), BETR (10,945) 9,971
561,113 390,166

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in Note 25.

FRRERIAF BN HES



12 Expense by nature (including cost of sales,
selling and distribution expenses, administration
expenses, restructure costs and research and

development expenses)

Raw material costs

Employee benefits expenses (including directors)
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment

Service fee
Freight charges
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Tax and surcharges
Rental
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit service
— Audit of overseas subsidiaries
— Non-audit services
Depreciation for investment properties
Others

EIMEEEMEBR N AR AT 202055
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

[RFFFRCA
RERNFEX(BRES)
ME - BB RRETE
RIS &
5EE
BV EE#E
EREEENE
BRI INE R
ik
2 Gllien
— BRI
— BN B R BB IRTS
—IEEEIRTE
REMENE
Hit

12 ZMEE DR (BIEHERA -
SHERDHAX » THRAX  EAMK
RRHEFX)

2020 2019
= —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AERBTT

16,869,885 16,700,050
3,693,393 3,601,971
716,105 804,589
461,274 329,420
396,160 315,007
234,916 188,398
158,275 152,494
122,109 121,306
18,020 21,302
6,120 6,120
8,490 8,536
2,340 2,454
9,493 7,061
1,473,855 1,695,481

24,170,435 23,954,189
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

13 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 13 EE - BeTRAEBREEMS
remuneration
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RIEERA ETRA R ARG HENFANEE N
to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as follows: EEPET

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-BEt-A=t-HLEE
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’ Share

benefits payments  contributions fee options Total
& I8  HRBHN BNER
REMET wRE THEIfR BEEfe ERE act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETr ARMTz ARETz AR%Tr ARETR

Executive directors: HTEE -
Mr. Jiao Chengyao (Notes 1, 2) EAEEE(Z - 2) 530 720 2 - - 1,212
Mr. Jia Hao Ebyind 2,440 1,782 4 - 443 4,669
Mr. Xiang Jiayu BESpi 531 720 2 - - 1,273
Mr. Fu Zugang HER%E 532 650 2 - 319 1,583
Mr. Wang Xinying (Nofe 2) THLRE() = = = = = =
Mr. Wang Bin TERE 2,212 1,418 - - - 3,690
Sub-total NG 6,305 5,200 70 - 822 12,487
The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their i ITEENE I EEE AR R R AEEE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company MERMRENRE M
and the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-EEt-A-+-HLEFE
Salary, wages  Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’ Share

benefits payments  contributions fee options Total
H& I8 HRRHE BHER
REMER e HE 25 EZHe BRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARMTRT AR%TR ARMTR AR¥TRE ARMTR

Independent non-executive directors: BV TEE -

Ms. Liu Yao BlEut - - - 82 - 8
Mr. Jiang Hua TERE - - - 140 - 140
Mr. Li Xudong RS - - - 140 - 140
Mr. Cheng Jinglei REELE - - - 140 - 140
Sub-total et - - - 502 - 502
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were FBTIENITESME IR ERIARFINE

paid for their services as directors of the Company. EmREAREm ST -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

13 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 13 EE - BeTHRAEREEME 5
remuneration (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-BEt-A=t-HLEE
Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive benefit scheme Directors’ Share

henefits payments  contributions fee options Total
¢ I8  EREHH BIER
R AR k% SHEIfR BEfS BRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTR AR¥Tn ARETrn AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETn

Supenvisors: EZ:
Mr. Liu Qiang ZkE 553 336 2 - - 911
Mr. Cui Leilei EEEGHE 407 90 2 - - 519
Mr. Ni Wei RELE 1,573 665 4 - - 2,202
Mr. Zhou Rong e 385 524 2 - - 931
Mr. Yuan Shaochong BmEE 178 294 2 - - 494
Mr. Wang Yue (Note 2) TREA () = = = = = =
Mr. Zhang Yichen RHIREE 407 90 2 - - 519
Sub-total NGt 3,503 1,999 14 - - 5,616
Total @it 9,808 7,289 184 502 822 18,605
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-T-NEt-A=t-RILEE
Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’ Share
Denefits payments contributions fee options Total
¢ I8  HRREY EARER
RAEAfER inf%a Al B2 BEfRiE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: HITEE
M. Jiao Chengyao (Notes 1,2) EREEEG - 2) 539 720 46 - - 1,305
Mr. Jia Hao BEEE 2,442 1,782 49 - 3 4308
Mr. Xiang Jiayu ARWAE 53 720 4 - - 1,29
Mr. Fu Zugang fHERLE 549 1,075 61 - 30 1,715
Mr. Wang Xinying (Note 2) THEEE () - - - - - _
Mr. Wang Bin TERE 2,362 2,699 27 - - 5,088
Sub-total et 6,427 6,996 24 - 65 13,712
The executive directors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their FTESEMNE IR ESEE AR A RAEEER
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company KR MR AR M A -

and the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

13 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’ 13 EE - BeTRAEBREEZME )
remuneration (Continued)
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were B IFRITEEME IR ERER R FNE
paid for their services as directors of the Company. MR AR -

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BEZZ-NET-A=T-BILER

Salary, wages Performance Retirement
and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’ Share
benefits payments contributions fee options Total
¢ -T&  HRREH RINGEA
REAER e sl LR BikE &5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR

Independant non-executive directors; BV 77EE :

Ms. Liu Yao BlEat - - - 161 - 161

Mr. Jiang Hua TEEE - - - 140 - 140

Mr. Li Xudong RS - - - 140 - 140

Mr. Cheng Jinglei REELE - - - 47 - 4

Sub-total et - - - 488 - 488
The independent non-executive directors’ remuneration shown above were B IENITESNE IR EEEELRRRINE
paid for their services as directors of the Company. EMIREAARS S AT o

For the year ended 31 December 2019
2 T-NET-A=T—AILEE
Salary, wages Performance Retirement

and other incentive  benefit scheme Directors’ Share
benefits payments contributions fee options Total
e IF  ERERE RINERR
REMARF e FE 5 EESE iz @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARET:R

Supervisors: 2%

M. Liu Qiang EEa 555 336 36 - - 927
Mr. Cui Leilei EEELE 412 90 38 - - 540
Mr. Ni Wei REEE 1,581 1,170 50 - - 2,801
Mr. Zhou Rong BEEE 388 756 3b - - 1,179
Mr. Yuan Shaochong BOwEE 181 294 3b - - 510
Mr, Wang Yue (Note 2) TREE () - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Yichen RPIREE 367 80 30 - - 417
Sub-total et 3484 2726 204 - - 6,434

Total st 9.9

1 9,722 448 488 65 20,634
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

13 Directors’, chief executive’s and supervisors’

remuneration (Continued)

The supervisors’ remuneration shown above were paid for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Note 1: Mr Jiao Chengyao is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emolument for the role as chief executive is also included above.

Note 2: All or partial of these directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 were borne by the parent of the Company.

The performance incentive payment is mainly determined on the basis
of the Group’s and individual performance for years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, respectively.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors or supervisors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. None
of the directors or supervisors has waived any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

14 Employees’ remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group,
three (2019: three) were directors or supervisor of the Company whose

13

14

BEE  RETHBAEBREEMSH)

EFREFHE PRESHAATRAEBER NS
B R RF T A o

M - BEAEEETMRAARNRSTHRAE « MEE

EREHITRABNHMIFE A LR S A -

figte : B=2—T-_ZFR_FT-NEF+_ )El + EHIS
FEHMA LN %%@H@Eﬁﬁ NSIVES

=

HRIREANZE T BIRAEE R ERAB DRI
BE_ZZFR-T-AF+-_A=1+—RLF
EHRREE

BE_ZZFR-T-AF+-_A=1+—RLF
= $%@Iﬁﬁ§$%§£$iﬁ&ﬁ@ﬂﬁ (3]
HnBE s AN B F SRR E - 3E
TECRERCE-NFT A=+ -RLEFE
THEFKEFRETAHE -

BEEME
AEBARREHFALZER  ZR(ZF—NEF
E%)ﬁ$2§%$i%$'&%wwiﬁlﬁm

remuneration is included in the disclosures in Note 13 above. The EXHIFEI3HIETE c B TRE(ZZE—NF - MA)
remuneration of the remaining two individuals (2019: two) was as follows: ATHBEST

2020 2019
—_ ? — = f'E _j'l_,ﬂz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Salaries and other benefits TEREMEF 3,268 3,270
Performance related incentive payments BRIFH R IES 952 938
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIETBIHEER 47 76
Share options i 443 35
4,710 4,319
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—Z—ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE
14 Employees’ remuneration (Continued) 14 EEME @)
The number of five highest paid individuals whose remuneration fell within EN TN SBENAEZESFATHENT ¢

the following bands is as follows:

2020 2019
—E-%F —FE
0[N GTEEI No. of employees
EE#E EEHE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 7. 21,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,001,8 70 23,000,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 3,000,001 7C £5,000,00078 7T 1 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 5,000,001 7C £7,000,0007 7T 1 1
5 5

15 Dividends 15 K2

2020 2019
S8l ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
AreT . NSO

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year FNEREBD EAIIRE
— 2020 Final (RMBO0.185 per share) ——ZETFRE
(BRAR¥0.1857T) 320,507 -
— 2019 Final (RMBO0.145 per share) — T NFRH
(ZIRARE0.1457T) = 251,208

320,507 251,208

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect WEHRE ARREFEEEREBEE-_Z=ZT
of the year ended 31 December 2020 of RMB0.215 per share (2019: final F+A=1+—"HIEFERNKREKRESRAR
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of RMB0.185 Bo2157(ZE—NF  BEZZT—hF+=
per share) in an aggregated amount of RMB372,481,345 has been A=+—BLEFERNRBRE TR ARE0.185
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the J0) v 4AEE A NRHE372,481,3457T ¢ BRFIREAE
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. [EREBFEREHE - FAIEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

16 Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share 5t & & & 575 2 Fl| #) Z2 7|
(profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company)

16 ERER
(@) FIEAREF
AN TR E S GREARRFIR TREEE -

2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
(AR B FEAEF R )
1,239,149 1,040,253

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the =t& &A% E AR ZF|69L @A
purpose of basic earnings per share DnHEF 5 EL

1,732,471,370

1,732,471,370

Earnings per share (RMB cents) BRENARED)

71.52

60.04

(b) Diluted earnings per share b) BRRESERF

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one

SREERNEBRBDHTERBINETS
BUARR B ABEEEY
EITEE - AR A RABEEHEYENY

EngTapcER

category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. The BAY : BERRE o BIREERLNDEIR AL R
share options are assumed to have been converted into ordinary Bg o
shares.
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Earnings: EF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company STEEREERF TR ARNT
used in the diluted earnings % SR & A 52 )
per share calculation 1,239,149 1,040,253
Number of shares: RO :
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in HEFAGREBITETRERN
issue during the year per share calculation INFESE 58 1,732,471,370 1,732,471,370

Add: share options hn o BERRAE

1,635,599

192,913

REtEERE RN RED
BB 81T LB AN
R 8

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue and potential ordinary shares used as the
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per
share

1,734,106,969

1,732,664,283

Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) FREBERF(ARES)

71.45

60.04
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nV_\% Ejﬁ%*ﬁ% M{I.%I
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE
17 Property, plant and equipment 17 Y% - BERRE
Plant and Motor Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles Other equipment  in progress Total
BT HERESE 1] bR EEIR @3t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

CoST HA&
At1 January 2019 WZE-NF—-F-H 1,492,541 3,596,668 47,219 712,701 523,698 6,372,827
Additions NE 104,726 149979 7,207 165,420 444700 872,032
Transfer g 29,920 262,617 228 105,479 (388,244) -
Disposals e (2,260) (142,340) (9,269 (53,311) (3,738) (210,918)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 19) & = H & 1 (ME19) (48,898 - - - - (48,898
Currency exchange 38 468 (4,031) - (14,617) (7.431) (25,611)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1t—-H 1,976,497 3,852,893 45,385 915,672 568,985 6,959,432
At1 January 2020 WZZE-ZF-f-H 1,576,497 3,862,893 45,385 915,672 568,985 6,959,432
Additions NE 141,681 155,089 7842 160,082 484,226 949,120
Transfer EE 114,667 189,145 5960 60,189 (369,961) -
Disposals e (3,447) (196,963) (7,019) (166,036) (18,528) (391,989)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 19) & =R & 1 (FE19) (236,142) - - - - (236,142)
Currency exchange Sl (6,940) (12,807) 9 14,001 310 (b,445)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=1-H 1,586,516 3,987,357 52,163 983,908 665,032 7,214,976
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT ZRERAE
At1 January 2019 WZE-NE—-R-H 261,050 913,514 30,476 285,211 - 1,510,251
Providled for the year FEREE 58,195 515,234 2525 228,635 - 804,589
Elimination on disposals HERSH (1,049 (113,776) (3,893) (44,709) - (163,427
Transfer to investment properties (Note 19) & =R & 1 (FE19) (7,663) - - - - (7,663)
Currency exchange B 247 (17,837) - (8,548) - (26,138)
At 31 December 2019 W_E-NE+-R=1—H 330,780 1,297,135 29,108 460,589 - 2,117,612
At 1 January 2020 W-E-F4-f-H 330,780 1,297,135 29,108 460,589 - 2,117,612
Providled for the year FREME 62,682 395,712 4242 263,469 - 716,105
Impairment Loss for the year FRRESE - 72,505 140 6,286 31,066 109,987
Elimination on disposals HERSH (2,597) (158,407) (5,981) (153,963) - (320,948
Transfer to investment properties (Note 19) & Z R &M% (FzH19) (14,758) - - - - (14,758)
Currency exchange BEiS 1134 9,311 - 15,949 (1,293) 25,141
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FF+-F=1-H 377,241 1,616,256 27,509 582,330 29,803 2,633,139
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=-A=1—H 1,245,117 2,095,758 16,277 455,083 568,985 4,841,820

At 31 December 2020 R=Z-FF+-fA=t+-H 1,209.275 2,371,101 24,654 401,678 635,229 4,641,837
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~ e R AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

17 Property, plant and equipment (ontinued) 17 ¥ - BERRZE®

The Group was in process of obtaining the relevant property ownership
certificates for buildings with a net book value of RMB31,364,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB55,073,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the relevant property ownership certificates can be
obtained in due time without incurring significant costs.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of approximately RMB194,408,900 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: RMB309,815,900) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

AEBNBERR-_Z-_TF+-_A=+—8K
HFEAAREKS,364000T( ZE—NF : AR
55,073,0007C ) MIEFRBAMEM B #EE - ARAEE
ERAEENISHAEYEREGES  mTEgEL
BARMA o

AT _TF+_A=+—H AEBECEHE

AL AR 194,408,900 (- E—NE+ = A
=+—H : AR#309,8159007T) W%  BEE
B BAEEERKRITEVE I -

18 Leases 18 HE

() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

() REEREBEXRERNTEE
BEAEERIITU TEAEEHOLE

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
i .
ue=VER Rl +—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Right-of-use assets FEREEE

Buildings Ty 712,507 602,633

Land of use rights + b {3 FA A 483,876 487,214

Machines s 7,094 6,062

Office and operating equipment I /NEY S ] 3,892 1,262

Others Hih 61,299 73,895
1,268,668 1,171,066

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current BNHR 114,980 140,143

Non-current JEBNER 690,226 551,705

805,206 691,848

187
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e BHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE
18 Leases (Continued) 18 &)
() Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (ontinued) ) REEEGERERNSRE @)
The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China AEEEPERMBA A LA ERE
government.
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial year RZZE—_ZEFUBRFENEREEERESR
was RMB306,132,000 (2019: RMB104,134,000), of which nil (2019: AR #306,132,000c(ZE —NF : AR
RMB58,995,000) were transferred from investment properties. 104,134,0007T) * B W ESEE(ZT—LF ¢
AR #558,995,0007T) B & W) EEHE -
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or (i) RiEm&kEAM KSR ERD
loss and other comprehensive income TR
The profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: BaRINRATHREEREENESE

2020 2019
—R_%"F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FHAREEERERY

Buildings gt 121,896 118,506
Land use rights + i P A 12,547 12,744
Machines JiS e 1,031 1,031
Office and operating equipment PRE REERE 2,893 1,074
Others Hih 19,908 19,139
158,275 152,494
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FERS (FIARERKA) 21,401 23,878
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in 5SS EAEEMRERS (FIAEE
cost of goods sold and administrative expenses) AN R1TEEI S ) 1,345 4,815

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KRR EXF AR EEED
that are not shown above as short-term leases EEEEERERBAY

(included in administrative expenses) (BIAFTEFIS) 11,641 12,536
Expense relating to variable lease payments RIAEGENEEE
not included in lease liabilities (included in HIBMBEEY (P ATHES)
administrative expenses) 1,322 3,951
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was RMB163,963,000 RZZE_ZEZFHENBEERHETEAA
(2019: RMB161,356,000). RE163963000 L ( —FE—HF : AR

161,356,0007T,) ©
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e MBEmRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE
19 Investment properties 19 REYE
leasehold land
and land
Buildings use rights Total
HELHE
BF T b fE FARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBT T ARETTT
cosT A
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZTE—hF—HA—H 158,155 77,200 235,355
Additions NE 6,336 - 6,336
Transfer in from property, plant and B WEREREEA
equipment (Note 17) (FF5E17) 48,898 - 48,898
Transfer out to right of use assets EHE(FRAREEE - (69,679) (69,679)
At 31 December 2019 R_E—NF+_A=+—H 213,389 7,521 220,910
Additions NE - - -
Transfer in from property, plant and BWE - BB REREEA
equipment (Note 17) (M$5E17) 236,142 - 236,142
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TF+-_A=+—H 449,531 7,521 457,052
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H 31,371 10,164 41,535
Transfer in from property, plant and B - BE REEEA
equipment (Note 17) (HEE17) 7,663 - 7,663
Transfer out to right of use assets EH P REELE - (10,684) (10,684)
Provided for the year FE RN 5,774 1,287 7,061
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-—A=+—H 44,808 767 45,575
Transfer in from property, plantand B ¥% - BiE RELEE A
equipment (Note 17) (FsE17) 14,758 - 14,758
Provided for the year FREE 9,226 267 9,493
At 31 December 2020 N-E-EF+-_HA=1+—H 68,792 1,034 69,826
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+—A=+—H 168,581 6,754 175,335
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_EF+_A=+—H 380,739 6,487 387,226
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

19 Investment properties (Continued) 19 REWE»)

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was RMB649,562,000 (2019: RMB318,019,000). The
fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by the
management of the Company. The fair value was determined based on
the direct comparison approach, which the directors of the Company are
of the view that it is the best estimate of the fair value of these investment
properties. The direct comparison approach reflects recent transaction
prices or current asking prices for similar properties. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about the fair
value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

\_2_7¢+ A=+—8 REEEEYED
NFEEAREG49,562,0007T(—E—1F : AR
#318,019,0007T) - ZAFERREARBEERE
EHMHERE - ZAFERBREBEEELESAGE
B AREEETRAMRIMERENENRTE
WREGHE - EENBARBRBUDENTOIR S
BN ERARE - NEEDENQFER - HIR
BRRAEEERS REENAR -

+-A=+—B  KEEGRENE
S HEEEDT

X
)
S
H A
ﬁ?-FH

Fair value as at
31 December

2020

N-B_FF

+=—B=+—H

F3IW WATE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARMT T

Investment properties located in PRC (A SealeilnEe st ES 649,562 649,562
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FAR R A S 34 -

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis,
taking into account their residual value, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.00%-7.92%
Land use right 2%

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised rental
income with the amount of RMB20,081,000 (2019: RMB21,936,000).

All the buildings recorded as investment properties are located in the PRC.
The Group had not obtained the relevant property certificates for buildings
with a net book value of RMB29,267,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB31,890,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the relevant property ownership certificates can be obtained in due time
without incurring significant costs.

LA EREYE R REFGREERUELEN
& HANFERNOT

¥ 2.00%%7.92%
T AR 2%

HE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILtFE  A£ERE
RS UWAAREE20,081,000L(ZZE—HF : AR
#21,936,0007T) °

DR AT EMENMEEFIMNPRERA - K
SEHNAERR-_ZE_TF+_A=+—HKA
FEAARY29267,000L(ZF—NF : AR
31,890,0007T) M IEFHHBAME TG HERE « AQFIE
ERA  AENERAEEEMEREEM TN ERE
KA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

20 Goodwill

The Group carries out its annual impairment test on goodwill by comparing
the recoverable amounts of cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of a CGU was determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations used pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period with a terminal value related to the future cash flows
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below beyond
the five-year period. The accuracy and reliability of the information is

20 B8

AEEEBEBReELEM(REELEN]H
AR E SRR MR E - SR BETFERER
ReELEUMNAIRESEREEREENEE
E o % EFEEAREEIEE AR EDFH
R BIEEFENREARSRETRA - %
ARREREBBANREEERIER T XMIAF
HIRR M ARHE R TS - ZE O ERE N5
FEBAEEFENEERE R LIEFREFE

191

FEERE - EEEERTRENEETELSR
WRRIBERIR LR EH AR RERS B NS HRE
HOTERRTR T IROM o

reasonably assured by the appropriate budgeting, forecast and control
process established by the Group. The management leveraged their
extensive experiences in the industries and provided forecast based on
past performance and their expectation of future business plans and
market developments.

BENEEASEDBRINREELSEM - TXR
ERSELBUNEHEORHE

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUS)
identified. The following is a summary of goodwill allocation for each CGUs:

Gurrency
translation
Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing
£9 B HE EXREER £X
Year ended 31 December 2020 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BE-R-BET-AST-HLEFE ARBTR ARETT ARBTR

ARET T

ARMTT

ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. TEHTRIBREE (L)

(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi") BB AR EHMEILA]) 104,516 - - - 104,516
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) — EI=# R ERETER

Co., Ltd. ("ASIMCO Shuanghuan’) BREAR([SHRIEE]) 88,283 - - - 88,283

Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co,, Ltd. BB EAEERERAR

(*Super Electric’) ([18%]) 29,120 - (29,120) - -

SEG group SEGEE 455,302 - (135,594) 7,924 321,632

677,221 - (164,714) 7,924 520,431

Currency
franslation

Opening Addition Impairment difference Closing

3] nE HE ERREER £X

Year ended 31 December 2019 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

BE-B-AET-A=+-HLEE AREFT ARETT AREFTL ARETT AREFT
ASIMCO International Casting Co., Ltd. DERIBIEREE (L)

(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi") BRAR(EHEILA] 104,516 - - - 104,516
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizheng) B HRIEIREER

Co., Ltd. ("ASIMCO Shuanghuan’) BRAR([SHRIEE]) 88,283 - - - 88,283

Hubei Super Electric Auto Motor Co,, Ltd. M MESEERAR A
(“Super Electric”) ([18%]) 43,844 - (14,724) - 29,120
SEG group SEGEE 617,165 - (159,362) (2,501) 455,302

853,808 - (174,086) 2.501) 677,221
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

20 Goodwill (Continued) 20 BE )

Impairment review on the goodwill of the Group has been conducted
by management as at 31 December 2019 and 2020, according to IAS
36 “Impairment of assets”. For the purposes of impairment review, the
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections
based on business plan for the purpose of impairment reviews covering a
5 or 6-year period. After taking into consideration the competition in the
market of the products of SEG group and Super Electric, the Group has
adjusted down the forecast and their cash flow projection. Accordingly,
an impairment of RMB164,714,000 (2019: RMB174,086,000) has been
provided for the goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the significant CGU value-
in-use calculations are as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

EEEN-_ZE-—NER-ZE-_ZFF+-_A=+—H
RIE B G s R SE365E BERE I HAEEME
EITRER - BRRERFME @ BENATRES
FIREFEAEEAEET - sURER ST HMM
BERME - FAEETEERAENERTED
WERETED o L5 RSECEBMMENERT S
BE o ASECHEIRERSRETEATA - &
It BERBEZEZEF A=+ —HLEFER
BRI E A R#164,714,0007T ( —Z— N 4F ¢
ANER#174,086,0007T) °

EXREELFEMERBEMNETABRRR
REIREMAT -

R-ZB-ZBHE+-A=+—H

Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WAZRE EFIE
(%) (%) BiRIBER =
ASIMCO Shanxi EEE g 0%-3% 24%-25% 15.56%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TRl IR 0%-6% 38%-39% 15.45%
Super Electric HE 0%-9% 20%-22% 15.56%
SEG group SEGEE (2%)-6% 15%-24% 15.72%
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=-A=+—H
Revenue Gross
growth rate profit rate Pre-tax
(%) (%) discount rate
WAERE ERER
(%) (%) BRI &
ASIMCO Shanxi EERhLP 0%-5% 21%-22% 15.88%
ASIMCO Shuanghuan TR 0%-6% 38%-39% 15.51%
Super Electric 1HE (3%)-0% 23%-24% 15.51%
SEG group SEGEE 0%-9% 15%-19% 15.83%

The budgeted gross margins used in the goodwill impairment testing,
were determined by management based on past performance and its
expectation for market development. The expected revenue growth rate
and gross profit rates are following the business plan approved by the
Company. Discount rates reflect market assessments of the time value and
the specific risks relating to the industry.

AREEREIANEEEN XA EEEREBE
RRLEHTISEROEHETE - BHRAERE
REMREBEAR R ANKEE] - BRE R
HESEEERTER TR TS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

21 Intangible assets BREE
Development Patent Customer

Trademark Software costs right relationship Total
[l Bt R V| EFBE by

CosT KA
At1 January 2019 R=Z-n5-A-H 77,860 141,111 406,437 618,331 578,416 1,822,155
Addtions RE - 23,155 341,663 1,113 - 365,931
Disposals it - (232) - - - (239)
Currency exchange =37k - 4 1,773 (1.27) (1,269) (326)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nF+-A=+-H 77,860 164,475 749,873 618,173 577,147 2,187,528
Adaitions NE - 19,697 241412 138 - 261,247
Disposals HE - (24.878) - (2,806) - (27,684)
Currency exchange gk - 4,008 22,7181 9,563 8,359 44,711
At 31 December 2020 “EF-EFE+-A=1-H 77,860 163,302 1,014,066 625,068 585,506 2,465,802

AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2019 W=Z-nE-A—-H 21,859 45,965 - 98,425 77,293 243 542
Charge for the year FRMB 15,672 37472 9,466 71,050 54,738 188,398
Disposals HE - (232) - - - (232)
Currency exchange =g - 78 90 276 192 636
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=1—H 37,531 83,283 9,556 169,751 132,223 432,344
Charge for the year FERk 15,672 43,288 51,758 68,904 56,294 234,916
Disposals HE - (15902) - (2,806) - (18,708)
Currency exchange Bk - 2,592 1,048 10,790 2,212 16,702
At 31 December 2020 ZZCZETZRA=1-H 53,203 113,261 62,362 246,639 189,789 665,204

IMPAIRMENT HE
At1 January 2019 RZE-N&E-A—H - - - - - -
Additions (Note §) RE (MiFs) - - 246,731 - - 246,731
Currency exchange Gy - - 2552 - - 2552
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N%E+=-f=1-H - - 249,283 - - 249,283
Additions (Note 8) AE (Fifss) - 334 29,291 424 - 30,049
Currency exchange SR - 6 7241 8 - 7,255
31 December 2020 o s e - 340 285,815 432 - 286,587

CARRYING VALUES RHE

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=t-H 40,329 81,192 491,034 448 422 444 924 1,505,901
31 December 2020 RZEZZF+-A=+-H 24,657 49,701 665,389 377,997 395,717 1,513,961
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

21 Intangible assets (continued)

Total research and development expense incurred during 2020 was
approximately RMB1,465,838,000 (2019: RMB1,356,689,000), among
which, RMB241,412,000 (2019: RMB341,663,000) related to auto parts
technology project have been capitalised as development costs. As at 31
December 2020, the related development projects were in progress and
were tested for impairment and no impairment was provided for these in
progress development projects according to the impairment testing result.
Besides, during 2020, the Group made an impairment on capitalized
development cost with the amount of RMB29.3 million, which belong to
the manufacture of auto parts segment.

22 Investments in associates

21

BELEE®)

—TE_TFEANANERIOAARE
1,465,838,0007T (== — J1F : AR #¥1,356,689,000
L) B BBRAESHHEMEEARE
241,412,00070( =ZF — LF © AR ¥341,663,0007T)
EERMARERAE RZTEZTF+A=1—
A BEREIER EEETADETREAR - Z
FIFEETMMEIE B WARRBERRLE RTIRA
ﬁ PO RZTZTF - AEERBEREETE

TEMF D B E M BB R A ETIRIBE A R #529.3

i —

E%E°

22 REENTINKRE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Cost of investments in unlisted associates RIEETHEEE R BIMIRE KA 213,550 213,550
Share of post-acquisition profits and DG U N S E A
other comprehensive income, FEMNE - MREUARE
net of dividends received 83,910 71,903
297,460 285,453

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had interests in the
following associates:

RIB-BFER-ZE-NF+_A=+—RH &&
BRIA TS N EIA s

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of Proportion of
Name of entity registration registered capital voting power held Principal activities
ERER L i B EMESEELA ERERRELD TEEK

2020
—=—=$

Zhengzhou Suda Industrial Machinery Service Co., Ltd. The PRC 29.82%
(Note 1) F

EME T EMRBROERAR (M)

Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd. The PRC 19.18%
(Note 2) T

EH( D) REREELBRAF(M2)

Heilongjiang Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC 47.50%

RETHERBERNERLA #

Yizheng Nahuan Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00%

BIEMEREBRAR H

2019 2020 2019
T-NF et —T-NF

29.82% 29.82% 29.82%  Aftermarket services
SRS

19.18% 19.18% 19.18%  Equity investment and
financial management
RAREREBER

47.50% 47.50% 4750%  Manufacture of
mining machinery

49.00% 49.00% 49.00%  Providing services for
auto spare parts
RETETEE MR
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

22 REENTINIRE ()

22 Investments in associates (Continued)

Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
Name of entity registration registered capital
EREH Edipich EEMEAEELH
2019
“T-NF
ZMJ Jiangxi Zongji Equipment Co., Ltd. The PRC 38.00% 38.00%
BB OISR EER AR HE
Xinjiang Kerui ZMJ Heavy Machine Co., Ltd. The PRC 35.00% 35.00%
TR hSERETERRNERAR HE
ZMJ Tezhong Duanya Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The PRC 49.00% 49.00%
PNEEHEREEERA HE
Shanghai Wangqing Automatic Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 25.00% 25.00%
HEIEBERBEERRE HE
Pingdingshan Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery The PRC 20.00% -
Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd. (Note 3) H
TRUTSERREEZREB AR (M)
Note 1:  In July 2019, Zhengzhou Suda Industrial Machinery Service Co., Ltd. HizEe -
issued 1,850,000 ordinary shares to three new shareholders and the
shares of the Company was diluted to 29.82%.
Note 2:  On 22 November 2019, the Company entered into an agreement with FiEE2 -
Shanghai Huaruan Investment Management LLP to sell 30% share of
Hua Xuan (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd with the amount
of RMB183,020,000. The Company recorded a gain of RMB11,307,000
for the disposal of the 30% shares. As at 31 December 2019, the
Company has received RMB118,963,000, and the remaining balance
RMBG64,057,000 was received in 2020.
After the disposal, the Company holds 19.18% share of Hua Xuan
(Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd and still treats the
investment as an associate.
Note 3:  On 19 November 2020, the Company’s directly held subsidiary, PFES

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd.
entered into an agreement with Pingdingshan Hengteng Trading Co.,
Ltd. to incorporate Pingdingshan Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd. Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery
Hydraulic Electrical Control Co., Ltd. will contribute capital amounted
to RMB4,000,000 for holding of 20% shares of Pingdingshan
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical Control Co.,
Ltd. while Pingdingshan Hengteng Trading Co., Ltd. will contribute
capital amounted to RMB16,000,000 for holding of the 80% shares of
Pingdingshan Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic Electrical
Control Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2020, both parties have not contributed the paid in
capital yet.

Proportion of
voting power held Principal activities
ERERAELH TEER
2019
—E-hE
38.00% 38.00%  Manufacture of
mining machinery
FERBEEM
35.00% 35.00%  Manufacture of
mining machinery
HERER
49.00% 49.00%  Manufacture of
mining machinery
HERBHER
25.00% 25.00%  Manufacture of
mining machinery
EEREEM
20.00% — Sales of hydraulic products
HERBER
RZT—NFLA - W0 RET EERRER
DBER AR =& AR E171,850,0004% % @
fg - LARA R HEEE29.82% ©

ZE-hF+—A=+=0 ARARELSE
ERRBEEEARLE(BRER)FI LK
LAA R #183,020,0007T () & FE & ()8 ) BRAER
BESBRATI0%RIRG  ANRE)HEZ30%
B A7 8515 N R#11,307,000 T Uk aE - R
—NF+ZA=+—8 ' ARRBKBARE
118,963,0007T + #:%8 AR ¥64,057,0007C IR E 7
R TFEYE

K% AARSEEE (LG RBRER
SHERAT18%IRE -+ IR ZIRE BB
N

R-Z-ZTF+—AF+NB  AAREERE
AT BB A B AR R E I B BR A R B TR
I EEEE AR ARG e - AL
FIBILTESE#BBEEIEERAR] o E/NEHK
REBEELER A B L E A RE4,000,0007T -
LEAFELTEEERBEELERAAN
20%R% 5 - mFIBILTEREEARARGE
& AR #16,000,0007T + LAREA FIEIL TSP
B EIEER A RHI80%AR -

WZZE_ZFE+_A=+—H"
BHER -

77 HREEMH
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e BHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE
22 Investments in associates (Continued) 22 REE NTINRE ®)

2020 2019
—E-%F —FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit KREBDEBBEELEERS
from continuing operations B RE 12,007 38,013
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other AEBDGEMEEWSLAEE

comprehensive income - -

Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total REEDEEMBU=ERE
comprehensive income 12,007 38,013

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in AREBRZEHENR)H
these associates R R ERRE 297,460 285,453

23 Investments in joint ventures 23 AEELENRE

2020 2019
Sl ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AruTr NS

Cost of investments in unlisted joint venture RIE LT EEDRERERKA 55,895 55,895
Share of post-acquisition profits and other DB ST R E M2
comprehensive income, net of dividends received Wz BB WIS 25,444 15,827

81,339 71,722
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

23 Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had interest in the following joint

23 REEEMKRE W
RoZ-—BEL-f=+—0  AEERAUTAL

ventures: EEEER
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of Proportion of
Name of entity registration registered capital voting power held Principal activities
ERER A hEMEREELA EEERAELA TEEH
2019 2019

“ET-NF —TNE

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing The PRC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%  Manufacture of auto-parts
(Yizheng) Co., Ltd HE EERBTHN

FERRTEHHN R e 2 REBRAR

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent Working Face The PRC 28.00%

technology Co., Ltd. w
FMERE e TERREARAF

NPR ASIMCO Powdered Metals Manufacturing (Yizheng) Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of ASIMCO Shuanghuan that was acquired by the Group in March
2017.

Zhengzhou Mining Intelligent working face technology Co., Ltd. is a joint
venture of Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. that was
incorporated by the Group in December 2018.

28.00% 28.00% 28.00%  Manufacture of
high-tech coal
and mining parts
FERNBRBRRE

FHH

<h

BIAERRTEMN RS RERR QR R RHTE
RNAEDLE  REHARENR _T—LF=AW
o

BB RS BE TR RHR A R A B A ER N BEAE A
SERNARAFNGELE  HHAKRER-F
—NFE+Z MK -

197



198

Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B BHERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

23 Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

23 REERENRE W)

2020 2019
—F- ﬁ:_ :%—ﬁ_’ﬂf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of profit from  ZN&E B S (1844 275
continuing operations B RE 9,617 3,716
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of other REENGHMEEINER4E%E
comprehensive income - -
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share of total REEDEEMBU=ERE
comprehensive income 9,617 3,716
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in =~ ANEBERZE S LR ER
these joint ventures R R ERRE 81,339 71,722

24 Financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss/Financial asset at fair value through other nﬂﬁE/ DAFEANERESBTA
comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hh2ERENEREE TESH
instruments TH

Financial assets at fair value through other NP EFFEAHEH G AHMEE
comprehensive income H& SHE LS E

24 UAFEFEBEHSEHTTABZNE

2020 2019
k- S <% 5 —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT

Non-current assets IERBEE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LRI 28,993 29,934

Current assets MENEE

Notes receivable EUREE 3,780,065 4,246,819
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e MBEmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

24 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 24 UAFEFTEBHSH T ABENS

loss/Financial asset at fair value through other EﬂﬁE/ UAFEEEHEHSHA

comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hi2ERENEREE TSR
instruments (Continued) IE #)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss NEEFEAEEETAERZNS
ﬁﬂﬂ‘iéf =3

2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREETTT

Current assets MENVAE

Other financial assets (Note b) E@ﬁ%ﬂ’éé(ﬁﬁfb) 1,434,009 -

Structured deposits EEMETTR 1,310,000 1,393,000

Unlisted equity securities (Note a) #J: M A FE S (Ffista) 113,296 1,296
2,857,305 1,394,296

Note: M -

@@ In September 2020, the Group purchased 8% of shares of Nanjing Bestway @ RZZEZZTFIA AEEURBARBI12EE
Intelligent Control Technology Co.,Ltd. with a consideration of RMB112 BB A L B B R AR B BR A B18% AR5 ©
million.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2020, the other financial assets were as following: b RZZZZEF+-RA=+—H8B HhemEENT :

2020

= ? —= q—:

RMB’000

AR¥T R

Assets management products BEEEESD 634,009
Pledged quotation repurchase trading products BIEFRELEIZER 550,000
Principal guaranteed income products IR S FEE T 250,000

1,434,009




200 Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—Z—ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE

24 Financial asset at fair value through profit or 24 LA’A¥TE+§H,H;%§JJE‘U\E§E’\J$
loss/Financial asset at fair value through other MEE VIR FPEFEEHSEHTA
comprehensive income/Derivative financial Hth2EKENESRMEE TESH
instruments (Continued) ITAuw
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMT A
Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as PTETEERREELPE A  TRRISH#MER
speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the & o AT - WHTE LA A g HRE - B3t
hedging accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for SHREAMNERIFBEER] WARAS T
accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or NHEFEREZEF ABRE o AEBEE NPT
loss below. The Group has the following derivative financial instruments: EemTE:
Derivative financial assets TTESRMEE

2020 2019
g2 d =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ArwT NSO

Not designated as hedging instruments TETAHHPTA 40,405 10,904
Designated as hedging instruments EEABHMITA - 3,042
40,405 13,946

Derivative financial liabilities

2019
— ? —%= ﬂ:‘ :g_jlfﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Not designated as hedging instruments TMEEREHTIA 7,567 1,043
Designated as hedging instruments EEAEHMTA 6,163 2,589

13,730 3,632
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RE MR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE
25 Deferred tax assets/liabilities 25 BEKBEEE AF
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial HUBREM S - BERBELERONTAT ¢

reporting purposes:

2020 2019
= —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AERBTT

Deferred tax assets to be recovered 15 F U B YR IE R IR B B
— within 12 months —12f@ A ™A 246,176 115,671
— after 12 months —12f@ A% 245,172 340,669
491,348 456,340
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled T EMNAELEHIESE
— within 12 months —12{@ AR (63,195) (41,395)
— after 12 months —12{& A& (262,213) (288,333)
(325,408) (329,728)
Deferred tax assets, net R IEE ERE 165,940 126,612
The following are the major deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised and RN EZREHBEELE BEREEHOT
movements thereon:
Property,
Trade plant and Revaluation Revaluation
receivable Accruals equipment  Intangible  on prepaid Revaluation of Property,
loss  Write-down and  Unrealized tax  assets tax lease of intangible  plant and
allowance of inventory  provision profit  difference  difference  payments assets  equipment Others Total
g5 ER ES
JEzE BB A%E HERRE MVEE EANEE EMEE  BER

FREE FEME  REH AR WEER  REER  HEER Eff RBER Afp &t
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'OOD  RWBOD0  RWBOO0

AEETT ARBTR ARMTT ARETR ARMTT ARBTL ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR AR%TR

The Group TEE
A1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-B 15773 16847 106,867 10,756 37538 41,380 (19816) (241224 (62260) 5912 100,711
(Cherge)credt o B (R /HA

proftor loss {4980 () I 3400 (166%) 8 86 R4 T 1019 26006
Curency exchange Gl ] (%9 29 - (157 4] - 81 181 28 (105
At 31 December 2019 WE-nE
+f=t-8 110845 10047 14463 WIS 76 420 (18980 (0790 (483 G270 1265612
(Cherge)credt o R (R /HA
proftor loss 195 2409 B30 27 089 @15 20t %M 6T (736 3035
Curency exchange g 501 20 0 -1 mn - By 629 - 25

At 31 December 2020 W-Z-FE+-f
B 14671 13636 199,859 16,909 12543 10 (16949 (182683 (48560) 3534 165,040




202 Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B HRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE
25 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued) 25 EEBBEE BB®
The net balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities after offsetting are as RIERIEEE R AGEREERNERFEDT
follows:
2019
—TNF
Deferred tax assets, net IREF B A E R E 429,507 419,390
Deferred tax liabilities, net BEFITE A EF5E (263,567) (292,778)
165,940 126,612

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
unrecognised unused tax losses:

Unused tax losses REBTIEEE

RIEHR - NEREE TIIRERARE BHIRE

&

2020 2019
—R_%"F —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT

3,971,616 2,621,747

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the above tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The expiry dates of the above unrecognised tax losses are as follow:

31 December 2021 —E-—F+=A
31 December 2022 —E-—F+=A
31 December 2023 —E-=F+—-A
31 December 2024 —E-NF+=A
31 December 2025 —E-RF+=A
No expiry date 7 fEim B A

R EETRIAR AR FHR - SR R BAE
BERECHAERE -

R RTER AR R & A BT

2020 2019
S8l =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ArwTr NS

+—A 4,775 4,775
+—H 1,782 1,317
+—H — -
+—H = 2,523
+—H 4,663 -

3,960,396 2,613,132

3,971,616 2,621,747
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A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

26 BMEHEEWIE

2020 2019

= —FTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Finance lease receivables due from customers RN E FrEHERIREIE 138,331 49,432
Less: Finance lease receivables due within 1 year B TN EIERAY h & FR & FE I

FKIA (122,834) (26,084)

Non-current finance lease receivables FEREFFEHE R IIE 15,497 23,348

Certain of the Group’s equipment is leased out under finance leases. All
the leases are denominated in RMB. The terms of finance leases entered

into ranged from 1.5 to 5 years.

AEEETREREVELELHE - MBEHEEUA
R¥EHE - REBEFHN 1 555 o

Minimum lease receivables

BIRAEREKRE
2020 2019
—N_%F —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Within 1 year 1R 125,247 26,870
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BIEFEDR2F 15,672 23,518
Less: unearned finance income B ARBREE AU (2,588) (936)
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable HEMAEREWFIERE 138,331 49,432

Present value of minimum
lease receivables

BRIEAEEKRERE
2020 2019
= —ThE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Within 1 year 1R 122,834 26,084
Over 1 year but less than 2 years BiB1FBDR2F 15,497 23,348
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable SIEAEREKHIBIRE 138,331 49,432
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

26 Finance lease receivables (Continued)

The interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date for
the entire lease terms. The weighted average effective interest rate is
approximately 4.71% (2019: 5.26%) per annum.

The finance lease receivable balances of RMB24,844,000 are secured by
the leased storage equipment. The finance lease receivable balances of
RMB113,487,000 are secured by bank deposits amounting to 30% value
of the leased equipment. The Group is not permitted to sell or pledge the
collateral in the absence of default by the lessee.

Please refer to Note 3 for the loss allowance of finance lease receivables.

27 Long-term receivables

26

27

mEHEEWRERE

HEMENERRARAEE  ERARNEEHEE
H o MMEFHERFERNRNAITIB(ZZT— N4
5.26%) ©

BE T E UGB A S A R 524,844,000 T AR E
FFEREERER REMERBGEEBRARE
113,487,0007C LASRI TR IR - £ FBAMHEERE
BEM30% - AEBASEEABALBELNRDE
SRR IR ©

A EAR A SR IRR IR - A RIS -
R W

2020 2019

=2-TF —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMET T

Long term receivable due from customers R P i) HA e W s 322,475 502,744
Less: Long-term receivable due within 1 year A 1F AR ER R B U GRIE (156,944) (239,513)
Long-term receivable due after 1 year 1B BB R AR I E 165,531 263,231
The amount is expected to be received as follows: FRIATE HAR A TSR R URER -
Within 1 year 1F R 161,280 247,499
Over 1 year but less than 2 years HBiB1FB DR2E 160,900 102,204
Over 2 years hut less than 5 years BB (B D ABE 4,764 167,230
Less: unearned finance income B AR BEERE AU A (4,469) (14,189)
322,475 502,744

Note: The balance represents long-term receivables from customers arising from
sales of goods. The amount is interest free, unsecured and repayable in 2
to 5 years. Deemed interest income of RMB7,941,307 calculated based
on effective interest method was recognised during current year (2019:
RMB7,275,165).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided loss allowance with the
amount of RMB56,704,000 (31 December 2019: RMB62,217,000) for the
long-term receivables.

MisE : ZAEHEREREEMEKE SN REEKE
I8 o B ARE - EIKHRAREFENE
i# o BIFRER A SATEMH BURA AR
79M 307 T ( ZE—NF : ARWET,2751657T)
RAREERER

RZZE_ZTF+_A=+—0  AEEREHEK
FUBETIRES B BHE A R#556,704,00070( —ZE—HF
+=—A=+—8: AR¥62,217,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 = —Z —ZHF+-A=+—HIFE

28 Contract related assets/Contract liabilities 28 SREMEBEE SRAR

2020 2019
—ECoEE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETTT

Contract related assets SEEBREE
Customer-related assets, current — right of exchange BEMHBRENE E — ik
(R&D sales) (WEEsHE) 8,804 30,457
Contract liabilities ERAE
Contract liabilities, current — advances from customers (@) B & R & E — P 3K (a) 1,624,762 1,691,213
Contract liabilities, current — R&D reimbursements mEARAE - B ME
from customers 682 8,122
1,625,444 1,699,335
Contract liabilities, non-current — R&D reimbursements ~ JEREN A R B & — BT E
from customers 10,312 -
(a): Advances from customers are mainly from coal mining machinery group for @ BPRREBRATAFHEE RMEEERAER
non-cancelable contracts, and normally would be recognised as revenue in — MR ZENREARNERBRA - RZTZTF
next 12 months and RMB137,407,000 (2019: RMB131,063,000) in the T A=+ BB ARKE137,407,000T(=ZF
balance on 31 December 2020 were carried forward from 2019. —NF : AR¥131,063,0007T) BE T —NLF4&

B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

29 Loans receivable from associates and a joint 29 EWRBE LT R —HeELEER
venture

2020 2019
—F- ﬁ:_ :%—ﬁ_’ﬂf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETIT

Loans receivable from an associate (Note a) FEY —E R E AT E R (MisEa) 64,000 64,000
Loans receivable from a joint venture (Note b, c) FEW—EEaL2EEF (M ¢) 6,500 16,500
70,500 80,500
Loss allowance (Note d) BB A (i ekd) (64,000) (64,000)
6,500 16,500
Analysed for the reporting purpose as: REMEWDTAOT -
Current portion mENEE D 6,500 10,000
Non-current portion IERENEL D - 6,500
6,500 16,500
Note (a): The balance represented loans receivable from an associate, Heilongjiang Mitk@) @ FZASRRIEFEUCER & A R R I RERERRE
Zhenglong Coal Mining Machinery Co., Ltd., which was unsecured and RARIMER  ZEXREERR  WIRERE
repayable on demand. The Group has provided 100% impairment for the & o REBE D BAERREHR100% BB R -
balance.
Note (b): The amount of RMB10,000,000 was repaid on 30 June 2020, and the HiEp: ERZZT_ZTFAA=Z+HEEBEARK
remaining amount of RMB6,500,000 will be repaid in 2021. 10,000,0007C R =T = — F{EEMREARE
6,500,0007T °
Note (c): The balance is unsecured, carrying interest rate of 2.08% per annum. MREQ) © RAERREIRIR - RFEFE2.08%51 8 ©

Note (d): Please refer to Note 3 for loss allowance. MizEd) : BRAESERE  F2MHMES -
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IIV_\éﬂji%ﬁéé Bﬁ-EI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 = —Z —ZHF+-A=+—HIFE
30 Inventories 0 78
2020 2019
= —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Raw materials and consumables REH B 1,275,115 1,068,750
Work in progress e 525,591 560,349
Finished goods EK 2,920,427 2,174,045
4,721,133 3,803,144
Inventory provision FERHE (189,339) (171,445)
4,531,794 3,631,699
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=+—H 171,445 148,444
Additional provision in the year FREBINE 23,763 38,248
Write off provision i SE = (15,364)
Currency exchange BEEHR (5,869) 117

At 31 December 2020

R-BE-ZZTF+-—A=+—H 189,339 171,445
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE
31 Trade and other receivables 3 EFREMEWRFIE

2020 2019
—E-%F —FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT

Trade receivables B S EWGRIE 6,275,986 5,252,011
Less: loss allowance B R (560,433) (612,367
5,715,553 4,639,644
Prepayments to suppliers (Al FE R TR R IE 497,630 372,396
Deposits HES 77,247 70,054
Other tax recoverable Eo A m] Y [0l B 78 572,583 601,272
Receivable from disposal of an associate (Note 22) & — B & A &) e U 2B (Fff 5122) - 64,057
Staff advances EERR 15,323 17,296
Others Hib 226,947 185,464
Less: loss allowance W SRR (113,370) (113,986)
1,276,360 1,196,553
Total trade and other receivables B o REMEWRIBESET 6,991,913 5,836,197
The following is the ageing analysis of trade receivables net of loss ATASREMREEZBHZEYNE S EKGIA
allowance presented based on the invoice date at the end of each B ESIE R R B ARER D AT -

reporting period:

2020 2019
S8l =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ArwF NS

Within 180 days 180K A 4,672,144 3,837,690
Over 180 days but within 1 year HBiB180AB1FR 790,972 589,284
Over 1 year but within 2 years i1 E2E RN 234,325 177,330
Over 2 years within 3 years FRIEBF(EIFN 18,112 35,340

5,715,553 4,639,644
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

31 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currencies, are
expressed in RMB as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 as

3 EZRHEMEWRIRIES

MANEHENESREMBERFBER T _ZTF
+TZ A=+ HEZZE-AF+-A=F+—HUA

follows: REZIROT
2020 2019
—EB_FE —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
EUR BT 582,752 795,054
UsD ET 292,356 323,806
INR ENEEL 153,901 127,090
BRL EREDR 75,832 72,336
ZAF EES k5 44,211 8,456
MXI BFER 28,575 20,190
JPY S| 6,341 5,313
RUB KB Em - 6,949
Others Hib - 14
1,183,968 1,359,208

Movement of loss allowance on trade and other receivables

B RAMERFENSRRESD

2020 2019
g2 d =+
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ae#T NSO

Opening balance FERR 726,353 950,462
Reversed during the year F D (9,062) (161,873)
Write off EiEic! (40,389) (55,239)
Currency exchange Bl H;m (3,099) (6,997)
Closing balance FERGERR 673,803 726,353

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had litigations against overdue
customers with trade receivable balances of RMB94,801,000. Among
those litigations, for trade receivable balance of RMB26,895,000 had
been reached settlement. Litigations relating to trade receivable of
RMB19,674,000 were on-going. Litigations relating to receivable of
RMB48,231,000 were terminated.

m_7_7¢+ A=+—H A&EEHEHE
FREFL EHBIRRREBELEBRAARE
MWWWE°ﬁ$ﬁm¢ B OB GIEES®R A
AR 26,895,000 CE I - B EBFIEAAR
#£19,674,000 7T RIFFEAIETE ST © EGRIEA A
[R#548,231,000 T KSR AAE 42 LEBAST ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE
32 Cash and cash equivalents/bank deposits R BERBELEEY RITER

2020 2019
—E-%F —FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT

Cash and cash equivalents RERRESZEEY
Cash Be 1,592 283
Bank deposits with original maturity within REHAA A =8 A A T AR TIFE
three months or less 2,977,135 3,863,152
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREZEEY 2,978,727 3,863,435
Bank deposits RITER
Pledged bank deposits B RITIFR 973,546 826,871
Bank deposits with original maturity over FRIEB A=A - 8RITIER
three months 1,770,806 31,270
Restricted cash ZRFIEE 18,937 -
2,763,289 858,141
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure bank BRI AER T IRITUERRTA L ESR
acceptance bills and letters of guarantee and are therefore classified as RREMRES  BREIEARDEE - R
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at market rates FRITFRIEM S EE  RZEZETF+=
which ranged from 0.25% to 2.10% per annum as at 31 December 2020 A=4+—H  FMENF025%E210%(=ZF—h

(2019: 1.55% to 2.94% per annum). & FFIE1.55%FE2.94%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

33 ESNRHMENRE

33 Trade and other payables

2020 2019
= —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AERBTT

Notes payable (Note a) FEISE & (M 5Ea) 1,593,690 1,621,931
Trade payable (Note a) B 5 e 308 (Mita) 5,021,579 4,733,324

6,615,269 6,355,255
Salary and bonus payables B T EHES 575,880 525,880
Deposits (Note b) HEA(LED) 84,145 60,498
Interest payable FERHFI & 25,552 15,665
Other taxes payable H A eI BIE 461,135 468,757
Factoring payable (Note c) IRERFE FIE (M REe) 128,607 -
Accruals and other payables (Note d) TE 1R M E A< R IE (B ) 633,229 579,484

8,523,817 8,005,539

Notes: N

(@ The following is an ageing analysis of notes payable and trade payables
presented based on invoice date as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

(@

WTFAER-ZZE_EFR_T—NF+=-_A=1+—H
REZAHZINENZERE SEMNFKIBRER D
#r:

2020 2019

=T=%F —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT T

Within 1 year 1FR 6,421,726 6,185,284
Over 1 year HB1F 193,543 169,971
6,615,269 6,355,255

(b)  Deposits represent the deposits received from suppliers for transportation and
other services.

(c) In 2020, a subsidiary of the Group entered into an agreement to arrange
factoring upon certain accounts receivable with a bank, and the Group
derecognised those accounts receivables due to the factoring meets the
derecognition criteria of financial assets under IFRS. The factoring payable
balance represented the cash flow received from the accounts receivable but
did not pay to the bank yet as the Group acted as an agent to collect cash
flows on behalf of the bank under the arrangement.

(d)  Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payables for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, rental payables, sales rebate and payables for
other services.

IR HERIK R E S R EMRENET S

R-ZT-2F  ARE—RMEARE—RITATL
— I BBARE TREERRREHRIE - MmN RE
NEBEBRMBREENBETNEREER LERR
% ARECKRIEERZERUIRNK - RIBENR
BHEBEARERREZZHEERERRZIRT
WHERIR & 7% & M 2 fe B BRFVKRER + B 1 R AZ IR
TXNRSRE -

ERRACENREEEQERRUMNE - B
RRBORETNE  EAES  HEEARA LR
TR 308 -
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34 Borrowings

34 EE

2020 2019
—E-%F —FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Non-current: JEBNAR -
— Bank borrowings — secured (Note a, ¢, d) —RITEE-HEB(MFa c d) 2,229,642 1,142,881
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIEE — EIE 2,030,250 900,000
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings B FERNHRE BRI BN EREE 5 (635,000) (301,000)
3,624,892 1,741,881
Current: BNES
— Bank borrowings — secured (Note b, d, e) —RITIEE —BEM (KD ~d-e) 312,230 999,167
— Bank borrowings — unsecured —RITIEE —EIKH 26,773 95,439
Add: current portion of non-current borrowings o JERNERE B R BNERIR 635,000 301,000
974,003 1,395,606
Total borrowings EE4EE 4,598,895 3,137,487
Secured Pogiiwiit 2,541,872 2,142,048
Unsecured IR 2,057,023 995,439
4,598,895 3,137,487
Fixed-rate borrowings EBEE 66,773 530,439
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE 4,532,122 2,607,048
4,598,895 3,137,487

Notes: MisE

(@ The balance of bank borrowings amounting to RMB19,000,000 (2019: @ RIZEZZEF+-A=+—0 RITEEEHRAR
RMB20,000,000) was secured by the pledged bank deposits as at 31 #£19,000,0007T(=Z—N4F + AR#20,000,0007T)
December 2020. PIRRITIF AEHIA -

(b)  The balance of bank borrowings totally amounting to RMB40,000,000 (2019: b RZZEZEF+-A=+—H0 RITEEEHEH
RMB45,000,000) were secured by the pledge of the land use rights and A R#40,000,0007T (= F — L4 : AR45,000,000
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2020. JC) B AR Y E - RE KRR EERIER

ﬁ °
© The balance of bank borrowing amounting to RMB200,625,000 © RZZEZTF+ZA=+—H0 RITEEEHAR

(EUR25,000,000) were guaranteed by the Company at 31 December 2020. #200,625,0007T (25,000,0008L 7T ) FH AN A BIVEYE(R ©
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4 B8@®

34 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@

The balance of RMB2,282,247,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB1,957,048,000) mainly represented:

SEG entered into a facility agreement of EUR 300 million with the lenders in
2019, of which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch acted as mandated
lead arranger and bookrunner. The Group has drawn down two loans under
the above mentioned facility agreement:

()  EUR 143,469,000 (equivalent to RMB1,151,342,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum, and is repayable from July
2019 to January 2023.

(i)  EUR 90,923,000 (equivalent to RMB729,655,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum is an annually revolving loan
and is repayable finally in January 2023.

In 2020, SEG entered into an amendment to the above mentioned facilitate
agreement to have an Incremental Facility in an amount of EUR 91,500,000.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has drawn down one loan of EUR
50,000,000 (equivalent to RMB401,250,000), with the effective interest rate
of Euribor+2.40% per annum is an annually revolving loan and is repayable
finally in October 2022.

All of the three loans are guaranteed by the Company and the letter of credit
issued by the Company, SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd. and
the letter of credit issued by the Company, EUR 550 million (equivalent to
RMB4,417 million), New Neckar Holdings and Operations GmbH & Co. KG,
and are secured, inter alia, by one or more of the following:

(@ Global Assignment of money trade and insurance receivables and
intra-group receivables, security assignment of all intellectual property
rights, bank account pledge over all bank accounts (including in U.S.),
but excluding the bank account held with Bank of China Stuttgart in
connection with the Existing Guarantee for the exclusive purpose of
providing cash collateral in respect of that Existing Guarantee, security
transfer in respect of all moveable assets of SEG;

(b)  Share of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda.,
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG
Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain,
S.A.U., SEG Automotive North America LLC);

st - (8%)

@

RZZF-_ZFF+_A=+—H HHARK
2,282,247,0007C (=T —JL4F : AR #1,957,048,000
TOEER

SEGH =B —NFEMRAFTLI00E BE T A E
s P RESRITHINEDITIEAREERR
BITREREERA - AEECRE LAREHRIR
HMEEX :

() 143,469,000 B 7t (48 & M A K %5 1,151,342,000
7T) - BEEEFI R AEuribor+2.40% - BN -
—NE+RE-_T_=F—FHRES -

(i) 90,923,000 7T (#8E M A R #729,655,0007T) -
B EFR AEuribor+2.40% * ANEEEIED
BREFRIN _ZE_=F—AEE-

M —ZT - FF - SEGHL1,500,000B THIIEERE A
B EREI Y BB c RZTTFE+ =
A=+—8 ' K&EE2 2 —%50,000,0008 7t (18
BN AR 401,250,00070) ME R - BEEFRXA
Euribor+2.40% © AREBFEENBERERIN -Z
——Ft+AEE-

“HEEFYAAR R RARRBETEI G (FER)
AR A FHEME AR K2 FINew Neckar Holdings
and Operations GmbH & Co. KGH! B & %8 A5508 & BT
(FHERARE4NTEET) M= RARERER - TH
(EREE) AT —I8 2 B TR

@ Z2REFEYESLRBEKIREAREER
FEMGHIR ~ EREATA A E RO EM - ERA
BIRITES (BEXE)WNRITHRS - ETEE
HIRBERSE T RRITHE NS D TERIT
P HEMBZREERIEHRSEMR
FASEGEV P RIS B A EE R (L IR R

b ETFHBARRKRGN(REBIESHESEER
/A 7] ~ Starters E-Components Generators Automotive
Hungary Kft. + REBIE ) THBESTRERR AT
RERTERMFER AR - REKTHEILE
BRAR)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

34 Borrowings (Continued) 34 EFE @)
Notes: (Continued) T« (88)
(@  (Continued) d (&)
(c) Bank accounts, rights and receivables (other than trade receivables) of (c)  Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft.; Kit ERTTER P ~ R R FE YR IE (B 5 FE R
RN
(@)  The credit rights arising from bank accounts and trade receivables of ) RBEEAEMMLFERARMRITEFPEEN
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U.; EERFRE SRS
(€)  Security agreement relating to bank accounts and insurance and intra- © HREKABIEARAANRITERES RIRE
group receivables of SEG Automotive North America LLC. VAR S B FE MR B B A B0 B AR h ek ©
As at 31 December 2020, the secured assets in SEG group were as RZZ_ZF+-_F=+—H  SECEENHE
follows: BEREEQT -
RMB’000
AR¥T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 227,552
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H fth FEUGRIE 1,579,645
Property, plant and equipment W - RN 90,318
Investment in subsidiaries RIBREHIRE 1,649,861
Intercompany loan NEIFEER 12,591
Others Eih 857,116
4,417,083
(6) Asat 31 December 2019, bank borrowings of RMB120,000,000 were © RZZE-—NE+ZA=1T—8 HRITEEAR
secured by the trade and accounts receivables and were repaid in March #£120,000,0007T B3 & 5 P& 4 3R I8 K B UL BR SR AE
2020. B YR F = AEE -
(f)  The balance of RMB1,957,048,000 as at 31 December 2019 mainly  MRZE-NAFTZA=+—H EHRARE
represented: 1,957,048,0007CE 2 4 :
SEG entered into a facility agreement of EUR 300 million with the lenders, of SEGE MR ART L3008 BERUTH R A tad - H
which Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch acted as mandated lead arranger PEELRRITIME S ITERBBEBERT T
and bookrunner. The Group has drawn down two loans under the above EEEEERA - ARBERE LAREHHRR
mentioned facility agreement: BMWEER
()  EUR 143,674,000 (gquivalent to RMB1,122,881,000), with the effective () 143,674,000 T (FEE R AREE1,122,881,000
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum, and is repayable from July JT) » BEREFIR BEuribor+2.40% * B
2019 to January 2023. T-NFLtRAE-ZT-_=F—AHHHE

B o
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4 B8@®

34 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

(i)

EUR 106,732,000 (equivalent to RMB834,167,000), with the effective
interest rate of Euribor+2.40% per annum is an annually revolving loan
and is repayable finally in January 2023.

Both of the loans are guaranteed by the Company and the letter of credit issued
by the Company, SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd. and the letter
of credit issued by the Company, EUR 598 million (equivalent to RMB4,670
million), New Neckar Holdings and Operations GmbH & Co. KG, and are
secured, inter alia, by one or more of the following:

@

Global Assignment of money trade and insurance receivables and
intra-group receivables, security assignment of all intellectual property
rights, bank account pledge over all bank accounts (including in U.S.),
but excluding the bank account held with Bank of China Stuttgart in
connection with the Existing Guarantee for the exclusive purpose of
providing cash collateral in respect of that Existing Guarantee, security
transfer in respect of all moveable assets of SEG;

Share of certain subsidiaries (SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda.,
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kft., SEG
Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, S.A. de C.V., SEG Automotive Spain,
S.A.U., SEG Automotive North America LLC);

Bank accounts, rights and receivables (other than trade receivables) of
Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary Kift.;

The credit rights arising from bank accounts and trade receivables of
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U.;

st - (8%)

U

(&)

(i) 106,732,000 Bt T ( # & 7 A K # 834,167,000
JT) + BERERIEK AEuribor+2.40% - BRNEEE
ENEREFIN_ZT_=F—AEE -

EFHRARAR R AR RBERERE(FE) AR
A Al A K5 AR K& 2 BINew Neckar Holdings and
Operations GmbH & Co. KGHH A & 48 A598 8 BRUT(1HE
RARB467T0E B TT) 15 AMRIERR - Wi (EP
BIE) AT —TBS Z B TR

(@ ZREBZEEESNRBREUGIANEEER
JEMGTIR - EREATA A E RO EN - ERAT
BRITEP (BEXBMRITRS - ETRE
HMIRBERSE T BRRITHE NS D TERIT
P HEMBZREERIEHRSEMR
FASEGEY P RIS B A EE R (L IR IR

b ETFHBARRKRGN(REBIESHEEER
/A 7] ~ Starters E-Components Generators Automotive
Hungary Kft. + REM TERBAETREERARF]
RERTERMFER AR - REKTHEILE
BRAR)

(c)  Starters E-Components Generators Automotive Hungary
Kt VERTTAR = - #E A I E UGN IE (B 5 FE WK
RN

O RBIE[BAMITAERABNRITESELEN
EERTNRE S EFR
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34 Borrowings (Continued) 34 EFE @)
Notes: (Continued) T« (88)
() (Continued) M (&)
(e)  Security agreement relating to bank accounts and insurance and intra- © HERBEZIFILEARQBNRITERS KRR
group receivables of SEG Automotive North America LLC. LA K 5= B PR WK IB B B O PR (R 1 o
As at 31 December 2019, the secured assets in SEG group were as RZZE—hE+=-A=+—8 SEGEENA
follows: EREENT
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 223,580
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H fth FEUGRIA 1,753,956
Property, plant and equipment L ESN e 171,225
Investment in subsidiaries RHEARRIRE 1,606,790
Intercompany loan ARIBEER 126,724
Others =i} 787,745
4,670,020
At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019

R=ZB=%F R=F—NF
T=A=1+-F e

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT

Carrying amount repayable: ER T BB EE A REE
Within one year —FER 974,003 1,395,606
More than one year, but not exceeding two years i@ — (B T IBEME 774,363 731,288
More than two years, but not exceeding five years — #B:@ 7 4B T 2@ L 4F 2,850,529 1,010,593
4,598,895 3,137,487
Less: Amounts shown under current liabilities W RBBEE RS E (974,003) (1,395,606)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERSBBEE MRS 3,624,892 1,741,881




34 Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f)  (Continued)

() (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

4 B8@®
B« (48)
M (&)

on (&

AEEEENREENA T7IE8HE -

At 31 December

At 31 December
2020 2019
2o%F R=Z—N%F
+—H +=A=+—~H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

RMB AR 2,035,218 1,180,439
usb e 555 -
EUR BT 2,563,122 1,957,048
4,598,895 3,137,487

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate per annum
Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

ot

B
oncm
oF o 2

i

Jd

AERE

EmT :

At 31 December

ENERAE(TESRARFX) &

At 31 December
2020 2019

R-B-ZF RZZT—NF

+=A=+-0 [EEECERE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
1.00%-4.35% 3.40%-4.56%
1.10%-4.33% 1.89%-4.75%
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35 Provisions 35 &E
Onerous Restructuring
Warranty Contract provision Total
wRi& BaT&RE BHERBE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETRT ARBTIT ARETT

At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 166,480 370,612 430,217 967,309
Additional provision in the year FEBINEE 78,173 235,496 19,339 333,008
Reversal/utilisation of provision BEE B AR (88,295) (188,976) (276,405) (553,676)
Currency exchange BN (238) (1,120) (4,402) (5,760)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=A
=+—H 156,120 416,012 168,749 740,881
Current portion BIEREE 156,120 242,075 144,946 543,141
Non-current portion JERNHAEL > - 173,937 23,803 197,740
156,120 416,012 168,749 740,881
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZTF—H—H 156,120 416,012 168,749 740,881
Additional provision in the year FREBINEE 127,208 65,969 628,507 821,684
Reversal/utilisation of provision B AR E (80,904) (128,912) (134,345) (344,161)
Currency exchange Bl H (1,607) (1,811) 13,955 10,537
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZTF+=A
=+—H 200,817 351,258 676,866 1,228,941
Current portion BIEREE 200,817 231,411 660,565 1,092,793
Non-current portion JEBNHAEL > - 119,847 16,301 136,148
200,817 351,258 676,866 1,228,941
The warranty provision which represents management’s best estimate of RIEBEBIEEEEREBIHEMBERPAREH
the Group’s liability under warranty periods granted to customers (who s  HAEERABE RETHHENETFPRT
purchased auto parts), based on prior experience relating to defective RSN B ERSIEMET ©

products claims.

Onerous contract provision represents management’s best estimate of the BRERBREBEEREEREBEEBSRAMNEARR -
expected contract loss, based on the forecast performance relating to the HIEHE RSB SREMET -

contract.

Restructuring provision represents the costs relating to the restructuring ﬁiﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁsm% ERREES KT LREHER
relating to the spin-off of SEG group and restructuring plant plan from the EIUREE S —EFSEGREEAEINEA

former group and the restructuring plan relating to SEG group in 2020. B ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

36 Transfers of financial assets

The Group entered into agreements with certain equipment leasing
companies and end-user customers, pursuant to which:

i) the Group sold hydraulic roof supports (which were designated to be
used by end-user customers) to the equipment leasing companies
and received the payments from leasing companies;

i) the equipment leasing companies lease the hydraulic roof supports to
the end-user customers;

iiiy  the Group are obliged to settle the unsettled leased amounts due
by the end-user customers to the leasing companies if the end
user customers defaulted on repayments to the equipment leasing
companies in the manner as specified in the agreement.

Given the substance of the transaction, the Group continues to recognise
receivables to the extent of outstanding lease obligation of the ultimate
end-users of the equipment in its consolidated statement of financial
position until full settlement of such lease obligation by the ultimate end-
users of the equipment and proceeds received from the equipment leasing
companies are recorded as financing arrangements.

36 EeMEEEE

RABEETRERE R R M &5m AP 2 R] s
=il

) AKERREEELREEREREER
um AP ER) RAEE R RUER R

iy WREMREAFTHERBIZETFRIEHAFE

i) A A P LARZ B R BR Y 73 SAE R [A1RR 7R
ERFIER  AEBERATENKRAPEN
HERRMARGNHEDH -

%EAX%E’J\EE REE LR m AP HAREET
EE%I%%EEAE?*AEM%&%%EFE%WEH& H B

RO AP2MEEZSHERE  BER
ﬁfﬂ‘f“ AIUER YR IR RS SR B B 2Bk

During the year, the Group has received approximately RMB813,973,000 FRN AEEEXFHEQLANBIBOARE
from the equipment leasing companies (2019: RMB257,329,000). The 813,973,000 T (= F — 15 : /\ R 257,329,000
transferred trade receivables and associated liabilities were offset to the JL) o RIELKRABEMNEEMNS  BEEENES
extent of the settlement by the ultimate end-users of the equipment. FEWFIE R AEBED T -
37 Employee benefit obligations 37 ERERANEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREETTT
Defined benefit pension plan (a) EERRMEREET S 207,729 165,423
Long-term super profit incentive scheme (b) £ HIFE BB 5 22 () 317,736 49,950
Other employee benefit provisions H g B FEE 181,856 163,057
707,321 378,430
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

37 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan

The Group’s post-employment benefits include defined contribution
plans and defined benefit plans. The defined benefit plans are funded
or unfunded pension systems or systems financed by insurance
premiums.

The major pension and post-retirement medical care plans are
described below. These plans are subject to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risks, interest fluctuation risks and capital market risks.

Germany

The pension scheme SEG VORSORGE plan (former Bosch VORSORGE
Plan), which was introduced on January 1, 2006, is a defined
benefit including interest with salary-based contributions. The SEG
VORSORGE Plan is partly funded via an external pension fund. The
value of the assets of the external pension fund is offset against the
pension obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method.
During the vesting period, employer and employee contributions are
added to the assets of pension fund up to the tax-allowed ceiling.
Contributions that exceed the tax-allowed ceiling are allocated to
the unfunded obligation. The benefit amount rises in line with the
performance of the pension fund. Grandfather provisions were
transferred to the former Bosch VORSORGE Plan. For a constantly
decreasing number of members of the workforce in the vesting
period, a transitional arrangement guarantees a fixed rate of return
on the defined benefit obligation. On reaching retirement, or in the
event of occupational disability or death, the earned benefits are paid
out in the form of a lump-sum payment, pension payments, or a
lifelong annuity.

India

The Gratuity Plan in India provides a lump sum benefit to employees
upon leaving for any reason. The benefit is 15 days of the final
base salary for each year of service upon retirement or termination
provided the employee has worked for the company for at least 5
years. In the case of death or disability during active employment,
there is no minimum service requirement to receive the benefit, and
the lump sum amount is 30 days of the final base salary for each
year of service plus 21 days of the final base salary for each expected
future year of service had the death or disability not occurred. There is
a benefit ceiling of one million Indian rupees except for management
employees hired before 7 May 1998 who have no benefit ceiling.

37 RERANET )
(@) EREBARIKEFTE

REBRKNEEN BRI E B ENE 8 R ERR
MEHE] o ERARA B RS HFRARIR
ERGHARBEEINES o

TRERRE MRARRERRIEZAINBERER
AT o ZEHVEEBRERR(FIMERSE
b FEIREI AR KR EARTISER) o

e

SEG VORSORGE &t # iR &k & 5T %/ ( A7 Bosch
VORSORGEZTEN R =TT F—A—B#E -
BUEBEHRK(BIER S )R ERF - SEG
VORSORGEET 2| AN BBRK S E B IR — 5
B o INBRARESESHNEEBEUERTEA
BNEATENRASETIRE - REBH
AN BEREEHERSMARKSESHNE
EEZEREHRERF LR - BHMIERF LR
TS RERERET - BASHERER
KEESRRIBLI - TBPIEXE BE =]
Bosch VORSORGE&TE! o BEHA 57 /8BRS 8 J15K
BHEERIONBRAMNE @ BEBELHHRET
FERHETHETEHE - RERKHETE
BORIR ol B R - FTBRER BB A LA — IR IS
;o ORRENRERFFEH AR -

ENEE

ENE 8RR EF 8 AR EMREBF AR B2
H—RESIER - HEBERRRARMAIE
EL5F - BHRARERIKLLEARRE IR
BEEAZREZEHHNI5EHH - Wi E e
FAEAR] & iR sk AR AR - SUEE F I S & (K
RIEFMER - M—RUENH SR AT R
BEERZRZEHH30EHH - 50
SHREREANE - AMBRREFEN 2
RIREFN21BHM - &85 LR —B8HE
EL - R~ ANANFRA L RRTERNE
BEREMSWEEN LR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

37 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@ Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is
presented in the following table:

37 EERFAERE®
(@) ERERFIR

RREaTE 8

ERENETREFENERNTRMAZY)

Impact of
minimum
Present value Present value funding
Fair value of funded of unfunded requirement/
of plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net Value
IR
SHEgE {3 FER R/ EE
ZAYE EERE EMRE tRegE FE
At January 2019 RZF-hN5—A-H 576,989 (699,910) (892) - (123,813)
Current Period: ZRHAR - 11,784 (66,415) (115) - (54,746)
Current service cost RERASHA - (62,316) (94) - (52,410)
Interest expense/(income) FEFs/ (KA) 11,784 (15,066) 21) - (3,303
Past service cost and gains and BERBKAUREE R R
losses on settlements BB - 967 - - 967
Remeasurements: EEE 91,805 (88,038) (379) - 3,388
Return on plan assets, excluding HEBEQR(ABE AN
amounts included in interestincome  EMMAKI £ %E) 91,805 - - - 91,805
Loss from change in demographic BEAODBRSEDEENEE
assumptions - 1,339 1] - 1,332
Loss from change in financial B BREISELNER
assumptions - (65,312) (291) - (65,603)
Experience gains mElEs - (24,065) (81) - (24,146)
Change in asset ceiling, excluding BELRESH(TRETA
amounts included in interest expense  FI S FIX L) - - - - -
Currency translation differences BRBEER (1,439 828 2 - (609)
Contributions: s 7,295 - - - 7,295
Employers EE 729 - - - 7,295
Plan participants HEREE - - - - -
Payments from plans: PR (65,453) 8,131 13 - 2,691
Benefit payments BN (65,453) 8,131 13 - 2,691
Settlements #E8 - - - - -
Others Hft 6,132 (6,132) an - an
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+ZA=1+—H 687,113 (851,536) (1,000) - (165,429)
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37E§Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ)
EEMERREsTE (s

37 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued) @ &

BERMNETREFENERDOTRMET

The development of the net liability of the defined benefit obligation is
presented in the following table:

Impact of
minimum
Presentvalue  Present value funding
Fair value of funded of unfunded requirement/
of plan assets obligations obligations asset ceiling Net Value
R{EHH
TEIEE it K BX/EE
ZBYE BEfRE EfHE tR2%8 RE
At 1 January 2020 “2-%5-F-H 687,113 (851,536) (1,000) - (165,423)
Current Period: Mﬁfaﬁ : 8,888 (68,735) (206) - (60,053)
Current service cost RERBRA = (58,168) (191) = (58,359)
Interest expense/(income) FERZ/ (BA) 8,388 (11,213) (15) - (2,340)
Past service cost and gains and BERBRAARLEE
losses on settlements W RkER - 646 - - 646
Remeasurements: i 29,546 (10,400) 398 - 19,544
Return on plan assets, HEBENR (ARG
excluding amounts included FARBWMARSE)
in interest income 29,546 - - - 29546 |
Loss from change in demographic EAOBRRESELNER
assumptions - - (1) - (1)
Loss from change in financial BRBRIESEENEE
assumptions - (30,814) (63) - (30,877)
Experience gains e - 20,414 462 - 20,876
Change in asset ceiling, BEFREH(TaEA
excluding amounts included FIERIMEE)
in interest expense - - - - -
Currency translation differences EBpEES 14,026 (17,254) (30) - (3,258)
Contributions: HE: (11,545) - - - (11,545)
Employers Ex (11,545) - - - (11,545)
Plan participants HEsEE - - - - -
Payments from plans: RETEINFR (46,525) 50,928 - - 13,403
Benefit payments BRRH (46,525) 59,928 - - 13,403
Settlements Fei - - - - -
Others Hith = - (397) - (397)
At 31 December 2020 B =] 681,503 (887,997) (1,235) - (207,729)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—Z-—TF+-A=+—HILFE
37 Employee benefit obligations (Continued) 37 BEEBANEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) ERERARKREFTE (@)
For the key regions, the present value of the defined benefit obligation MEHMEMS - ERENE(TAIRE ] HEE
can be reconciled to the provision as follows: BHERNT -

At 31 December 2020
R-ZE-_FBF+=-RA=+—H

Present
value of the Unrecognized
RMB’000 obligation Plan assets Other assets asset Provision
ARET T BEERE HEEE 2 HEE KEIEE B’iE
Germany = 837,286 - (647,048) - 190,238
India fE 36,883 - (33,695) - 3,188
874,169 - (680,743) - 193,426
At 31 December 2019
RZZE-NFE+=HA=+—8
Present
value of the Unrecognized

RMB’000 obligation  Plan assets  Other assets asset Provision
ARBFIT BEERE HEEE 2 HtEE REREE B
Germany = 793,120 - (644,297) - 148,823
India HE 36,790 - (34,964) - 1,826

829,910 - (679,261) - 150,649
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37 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 37 BEEBANEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) ERERARKEETE (@)
The Plan assets comprised the following components: FIEIBERENTIER ¢

As at 31 December 2020
R-ZEB-_EF+-A=+—H

Germany India

=E EE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

BOLLEF BOLLEF

Equity instruments AR T A 50% -
Debt instruments BEEIEA 35% -
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS EEY 7% -
Others Hit 8% 100%
100% 100%

As at 31 December 2019
R-_ZE—NF+=-A=+—H

Germany India

=H ENE

Percentage Percentage

figures figures

BOLET B LET

Equity instruments g AR T A 48% -
Debt instruments BEIA 42% -
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSEEY - -
Others Hit 10% 100%

100% 100%
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37 EERAET®
(@) ERERARKREFTE (@)

EREHBRIT

37 Employee benefit obligations (continued)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

As at 31 December 2020
R—EB-_FEF+=-HA=+—H

Germany India

=H HE

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

BoLLEF B BT

Discount factor BRI Z= 0.70% 6.00%
Projected salaries growth rate TERISET BN I R R 3.00% 10.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERRARESIERE 1.75% N/A
TiE

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERRIRNAT :

As at 31 December 2019
RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

Germany India

1= ENE

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

AN LEF Epaid &3

Discount factor BRI = 1.00% 6.90%
Projected salaries growth rate TERI T BS & X 3.00% 10.00%
Projected pension growth rate TERRR S IG R 1.75% N/A
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37 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 37 BEEBANEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) ERERARKEETE (@)

To determine the discount factor in the Euro zone, reference was AETRBTREMMREEZ 2225 H—
made to bonds rated AA by at least one rating agency. This was EF RS BARMES - WERRE B H
reviewed as of the reporting date. In all regions the discount factor KRR - AR EEIRERER 25T
was determined in accordance with I1AS 19 Employee Benefits. ARFE1957EEEFIET -
Projected salaries are future salary increases estimated on the basis TERIE BN TR IR (L AR B 48 & B AR R N AR 1y
of the economic situation and inflation, among other things. FHEYRRE BN 1R o
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FTEBRERROT
Germany =E

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-_EF+=-A=+—H

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

REEE BRI 0 BRER D

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

CE)2 2 BALLET

Discount factor BhIRE = 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 5.3 Increase by 6.2
0.518H 2 2 T#85.3 362

Projected salaries growth rate T8 B B 18 = R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1  Decrease by 0.1
0.251EH 25 2 E3Roa T#0.1

Projected pension growth rate FEAR A S ISR R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.4  Decrease by 1.2
0.251EH 25 2 tF#E1.4 T#1.2

Life expectancy TEEAS Oneyear Increase by 2.1 N/A

— EF21 TERA
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37 Employee benefit obligations (continued)

(@) Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE
37 EERAET®
(@) ERERARKREFTE (@)

India HE
As at 31 December 2020
R-B-2F+-A=+—H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
R & EEE RER D
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
ARLLEF BALEF
Discount factor BhIBE = 0.5 percentage points  Decrease by 3.9 Increase by 4.2
058 H 5 B T#3.9 £74.2
Projected salaries growth rate T8 B 1% = R 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.4  Decrease by 1.4
0.2518 5 5 B t#1.4 T#81.4
Projected pension growth rate  FEALRA S E X 0.25 percentage points = =
0.25{8 B 25 2
Life expectancy SELEEST Oneyear Increase by 0.2 N/A
—5 £0.2 FEA
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: FERERENT
Germany ==
As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption
(EEe=E) REZIE AN R
Percentage Percentage
Figures Figures
BOLET ADLET
Discount factor BhIR A 2= 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 5.2 Increase by 6.1
Y EERE T#35.2 5961
Projected salaries growth rate TERIF BT R & 0.25 percentage points Increase by 0.1 Decrease by 0.1
0.251E & 7 2 #5041 T#30.1
Projected pension growth rate TERRR IR 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.2 Decrease by 1.1
0.251E & 7 2 F#12 TE#1A
Life expectancy JEEAS S One year Increase by 1.9 N/A
—& 1.9 TEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—Z—ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE
37 Employee benefit obligations (continued) 37 BEEBANEE @)
(@) Defined benefit pension plan (continued) (@) TEREFRAKRESETE®)
India ENE

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

(EEEEY (EEel BRI

Percentage Percentage

Figures Figures

ERalnd - &2 BOLET

Discount factor ARIRE = 0.5 percentage points Decrease by 4.0 Increase by 4.2

0.5EE D2 T#4.0 Fi#4.2

Projected salaries growth rate TE ORI BIE = = 0.25 percentage points Increase by 1.5 Decrease by 1.5

0.25fE & 2 B4 15 T#15

Projected pension growth rate BRI S R & 0.25 percentage points - -

0.25ME & » 2
Life expectancy TEEAS One year Increase by 0.2 N/A
—4& £#80.2 TEA
(b) Long-term super profit incentive scheme (b) F=HEIERFEE S =R

In June 2019, the Group issued a mid to long-term super profit RZZE—NFRA  BEZZE-—NFFERRE
incentive scheme (covering 2019 till 2021) to the Group’s top and BAFEREHAER  AEERAEESER
mid-level management according to the resolution of 2019 Annual FREEEASEL P RABAENESZCHK

General Meeting. The estimated incentive to be paid is based on the BT -NFEZT——F) c IREFEES
super net profit attributable to Owners of the Company for 2019 till R BB TFIANEBIRE=_Z— 1
2021 after deducting non-recurring gains and losses in accordance FEZTZ—FARRBIREEMN t}%‘f 'J B (0
with PRC Accounting Standards. The amount of RMB317,736,000 BIEEE NS MEE)FE N ZF
was recorded as long-term employee benefits obligation as at 31 T A=+ ASGRPEERIEEARE
December 2020 (2019: RMB49,950,000). 317,736,000 T ( = Z — N F : AR #49,950,000

JL) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

38 RA

38 Share capital

Listed A Shares
EHAR

Number of
share

RHHE
000

TR

1,489,237
31 December 2020

Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARET T

1,489,237

Listed H Shares
LHER

Number of

share

RHHE

’000

T

Total

@t
Number of
share
RHHE
'000
T

Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARBT T

Amount
&8
RMB’000
ARBT T

243,234 243,234 1,732,471 1,732,471

39 Share based payments
(@ Employee Option Plan

The establishment of The A Share Option Incentive Scheme was
approved by shareholders at The Second Extraordinary General
Meeting of 2019, The First A Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019
and The First H Shareholders Class Meeting of 2019 held on 21
October 2019. In accordance with the Share Option Incentive
Scheme, the Company will grant a number of options to the qualified
participants that entitle the participants to purchase A Shares of the
Company. Under the plan, participants are granted options which only
vest if certain performance standards are met. Participation in the
plan is at the board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual
right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits.

The amount of options that will vest depends on the performance of
the Company and the individual participant. Once vested, the options
remain exercisable for a period of 12 months.

The Company provided RMB10,136,000 (2019:RMB1,601,000) as
expenses in 2020.

39 URGBR/ERENK

(a) 1EBHIHEETE

BER-_ZTE—NF+A=-+—BETHN_Z
—NFEIRBEREAE  ZE-NFE—
RARFERIR R AR E R —NFF—IXHEK
FEBIRR B & b R ST ARG S 22 B B A
£ o BIBREAEFEEE - ARFBEREE
REBEHRETZHEEE  ZSHRERER
BEARARARKREARER - RIEZETE - &
TREE RO BRREEEFA R TRBIRLER
FERE - BRGNS AT EIRER
E - BEAMAEAES S REDASEZE
Bl W BT (AT AR FI 25

5B R SR EVAR AR R REAA2EE
HRIRME - —&ERE - BREEENM20E A8
BRI FITHE

RRAFR T T F5HE AR 10,136,0007T
(ZZ—N%F : AR¥1,601,0007C) 1ERI S
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39 Share based payments (Continued)

39 SURBBERANR®)

(@) Employee Option Plan continued) (@) EBEHIEET S ()
The source of the underlying Shares of the Scheme shall be ordinary ZETEIR AR E IR AR R EERIBEE
A Shares in RMB to be directly issued by the Company to the KREITHAREAT L BARARE -
participants.
2020 2019
= ? —%= ﬂi _j-LEE
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option options option options
BHRRE HHKRE
HARERY HRRERY
T EE HEHE FHITEE HRESNE
As at 1 January R—RA—H 5.98 16,030,000 -
Granted during the year RNERFZH - 5.98 16,030,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE - -
Forfeited during the year RERLUL - -
As at 31 December W+—-_A=+—H 5.795 16,030,000 5.98 16,030,000
Vested and exercisable BW+—-—A=+—H = = - -
at 31 December B BB & 17

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following

RERMAITEABREEEF AT IS A RITE

expiry dates and exercise prices: & :
SHETGIOTOL B Share options
Exercise BEIRICIETLI@ 31 December
Grant Date Expiry date price 2020 2019
ﬁi%& REHE
et 2 —E—NEF
+=A +=A
B H A THEE Ear=[E Eqr=/g
04 November 2019  =Z—n%F+—HAFH 19 December 2022 5.795 5,289,900 5,289,900
—E-F+=ZA+ANH
04 November 2019  =Z—n&F+—HAFHH 19 December 2023 5.795 5,289,900 5,289,900
—E-=F+=ZA+NH
04 November 2019  =Z—nF+—HAFH 19 December 2024 5.795 5,450,200 5,450,200
—EZNE+ZA+TANHE
Total 45T 16,030,000 16,030,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of period 2.51 years 3.52 years
RER B ARTTE AR TR T & REH 2515 3.524F
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39 LU BEM R (s
(@) 125 8T E )
ERHBENATE

39 Share based payments (Continued)
(@ Employee Option Plan (Continued)

(i) Fair value of options granted (i)

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB0.49 per share.
The fair value at grant date is independently determined using
an adjusted form of the Black Scholes Model which includes
a Monte Carlo simulation model that takes into account the
exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution
(where material), the share price at grant date and expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend
yield, the risk free interest rate for the term of the option and
the correlations and volatilities of the peer group companies.

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31

December 2020 included:

(@) options are granted for no consideration and vest based
on Company’s ranking within a peer group of 20 selected
companies over a three year period. Vested options are

exercisable for a period of two years after vesting

(b) exercise price: RMB5.98 (the exercise price changed to
RMB5.795 per share in 2020)

(c) grant date: 4 November 2019
(d) expiry date: 19 December 2022, 19 December 2023, 19
December 2024

(e) share price at grant date: RMB6.05 per share

(f)  expected price volatility of the company’s shares:

30.38% First phase
% — & EZ30.38%

(g) expected dividend yield: Nil
(h) risk-free interest rate:

2.8219% Two years
R 2.8219%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
(based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
information.

29.93% Second phase
% & E229.93%

2.9280% Three years
=%2.9280%

REE-Z-_ZF+-F=+—HItEE
BEMHENE L ASNETHATEE
BB ARE0497T - RIEE B HI
DB T R4S TR M A7 H B A (Black
Scholes) R B BETF « ZEAIKASTHFR
Z& (Monte Carlo)f&#t)% - & et RAERTT
8 FH - BENFEWEEXN) - K
i B HARI AR (B AR R (0 RO TE BRE R
8 - TEHARR B e - B AR SRR
Fl& - R FIFEEE A B BB ROR
& o
REE-Z-ZF+-F=+—HItEE
B R HARE R IR R b A BUR B9 ¢

(@ HEREDZRTERERL  WREBEARF
FE R 2018 4&5%E R A R R RIFR R B AR
HFER=FHHRRE - CHREMER
B ME R AR T1TE

b TEE: ARS8 T(ZT T4
BRITEEE B ARKES795T)

© WLEHE: ZZ—NF+—AEA

G FHH:=—ZE=—=—F+=A+hA8 -
“E=F+ZATNE ZEZl
F+-A+AhAH

(@ MNERLEBHOKRE  SREROARKE
6.057T

0 AEROEHRERKE

40.83% Third phase
% = P¥E%40.83%

O FEBANGS &
N EREBRFE

3.0197% Four years
P943.0197%

T8 HAE AR R MR T B IR S 1R v (AR 45 1)
BB TFHAE)SE - WREQFHRA
158 R G B () 78 HA R SROR 08 1 1 38
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=—Z—ZTF+ - A=+—HIFE
40 Non-controlling interests 40 FFIERAELRS
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the TRIVRAEAHEREZHAEB I FZ2ENRB A
Group that have significant non-controlling interests: EESEIE
Place of Proportion of
establishment equity interest held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business  Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31 Year ended December 31
FERERREN
RIER RAEZEA L AREFERES N EF R FERES
i INT RS TEEENY BE+T-A=t-HLFE HBET-A=t-HLFE BET-A=t+-HLFE
2019 2019 2019
—T-NE —Z-NEF —Z-NEF
Super Electric PRC 49.00% 49,00% 27,400 26,176 288,105 305,025
BE HE
ASIMCO Shuanghuan PRC 36.46% 36.46% 43,396 28,884 377,437 357,392
DHRER HE
ASIMCO Camshaft PRC 37.00% 37.00% 15,041 7,749 117,615 102,574
R TE HE
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with N/A N/A 53,795 36,848 186,879 137,524
non-controlling interests TEH TNEH

AR SR BRI A ERNME AT

139,632 99,657 970,036 902,515




40 Non-controlling interests (Continued)

EIMEEEMEBR N AR AT 202055

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

40 FEIERRRER ()

Super Electric fRE
2020 2019
—_ ? —%= f'E :;ﬁ_ﬁ-’ﬂz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Current assets MENEE 748,051 685,086
Non-current assets SEMBEE 274,998 313,413
Current liabilities MEBE 326,482 298,953
Non-current liabilities ERHaE 37,648 39,842
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN AR R RS 370,814 354,679
Non-controlling interests FEPERRRE RS 288,105 305,025
Revenue WA 736,701 712,547
Expenses X 688,556 659,586
Profit and total comprehensive income Al e E T kC] 48,145 52,961

Profit and total comprehensive income

RARBEREARE N K 2 E U

attributable to owners of the Company feke) 20,745 26,785
Profit and total comprehensive income SR PR R RS P 5 R 2 T Uk s

attributable to the non-controlling interests FEEE 27,400 26,176
Profit and total comprehensive income A R R AR 48,145 52,961
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activites — #&&& EBINIR S (), THRAEEE (8,497) 64,509
Net cash outflow from investing activities REETHNR S RHFRE (2,215) (19,260)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BB EEAIR M F R (44,321) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Ba(rd),/ mAFE (55,033) 45,249
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40 Non-controlling interests (Continued) 40 FEIERRRER ()
ASIMCO Shuanghuan DRI IR
2020 2019
—_ 7 " $ _jlfﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current assets MENEE 800,396 691,745
Non-current assets EMBEE 556,752 558,798
Current liabilities mENaE 242,879 171,594
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 86,598 106,460
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR RS 650,255 615,097
Non-controlling interests FEERR R RS 377,437 357,392
Revenue WA 707,413 620,185
Expenses HX 588,439 540,754
Profit and total comprehensive income A & 2B R 118,974 79,431
Profit and total comprehensive income RABIRRES R R 2R
attributable to owners of the Company Fake) 75,578 50,547
Profit and total comprehensive income JEITE PR RS PR S R 2 E U S
attributable to the non-controlling interests 1ERE 43,396 28,884
Profit and total comprehensive income S R eI AAEE 118,974 79,431
Net cash inflow from operating activities LEEBRIRS RN TR 68,223 104,846
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities IR EEEHNIREMA (R ) E58 4,090 (109,799)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEEMIR SR FRE (35,111) (63,340)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WamA (R )FE 37,202 (58,293)
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40 FEIERRRER ()
a8 FT R, i

2020 2019
—E-%F —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREEF T

Current assets mENEE 232,439 157,515
Non-current assets SEMBEE 259,293 251,349
Current liabilities mENBE 155,926 117,312
Non-current liabilities IERBEE 17,899 14,326
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RN AR R RS 200,262 174,652
Non-controlling interests FEPERRRE RS 117,615 102,574
Revenue WA 267,444 199,163
Expense X 226,793 178,221
Profit and total comprehensive income Al e E T kC] 40,651 20,942

Profit and total comprehensive income

RARBEREARE N K 2 E U

attributable to owners of the Company feke) 25,610 13,193
Profit and total comprehensive income SR PR R RS P 5 R 2 T Uk s

attributable to the non-controlling interests FEEE 15,041 7,749
Profit and total comprehensive income A R R AR 40,651 20,942
Net cash inflow from operating activities KRB IR SR AFRR 40,982 14,169
Net cash outflow from investing activities REETHNR S RHFRE (30,983) (11,420)
Net cash outflow from financing activities A EEHMNR SR RE (3,178) (2,641)
Net cash inflow RERAFRE 6,821 108

41 Capital commitments N EREIE

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted for
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements

Incorporation capital of an investment
in an associate

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARKETTT

ERTOBERELSA M IMEFHR
BRENEBUEDE  BEX
RIBHEAH
478,791 350,349

PRI — RS A RIRENER 4,000 -

482,791 350,349
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42 Related party transactions

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company was Henan SASAC of the PRC government and that
the Group is subject to the control of the PRC government. In accordance
with IAS 24, entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (“PRC government related entities”) are
regarded as related parties of the Group. Due to the complex ownership
structure, the PRC government may hold indirect interests in many
companies. Some of these interests may, in themselves or when combined
with other indirect interests, be controlling interests which may not be
known to the Group.

(@ The Group and Henan SASAC

The Group has transactions with entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by Henan SASAC (“Henan SASAC related
entities”) and the transactions details are as follow:

Sales of service THE R

42

BRI XS

RRABESERR - AR BIRAIEST7 AF EBF
Jﬁéléé i AN 55 B 5 rh BB 42 ) - AR
Bfa“—‘ AHAERIE2455% - X P BIBUTIRS - KRS

FENER ([ PEBAERE E‘%?LJ)?&%EZ%K%
@E’J?ﬂ By o ENEMOBEREE  PEBFA
RERRAFEMERD - B THERAETHE
HEHMMRERS G - JHRBARERA
PRI RS

@ AEBEMITEERER

AEBEZAEEHERES - HEESIHE

%%Elﬁaﬁi‘f(mﬁélﬁémfaaﬁf VBXR
AR ZERSWFFBHT

2020 2019

—7—7$ _jlfﬁ

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

2,013 2,013

The details of outstanding balances with Henan SASAC and Henan
SASAC related entities are set as follow:

Amount due to Henan SASAC related entities

i ANPEIIR e = 1=K

FRAMERER AR ERERARERN

REBERFBHIOT -
2020 2019
- —T-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFT
ERENFIE 7

The amount due to Henan SASAC related entities was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

AR EEEZ AT R TIRAEER -
RENBRRBEFREE -
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42 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) The Group and other PRC government related

entities

Apart from the significant transactions with Henan SASAC related
entities set out above, during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Group’s transactions with other PRC government
related entities are collectively significant as a large portion of its
sales of goods, purchases of materials, most of bank deposits, and
other general banking facilities and the relevant interest income
earned and expenses incurred during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 are transacted with entities owned/controlled by the
PRC government.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions with
PRC government related entities are activities in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and entered into under normal commercial
terms and conditions, and that the dealings of the Group have not
been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and
those entities are government related. The Group has also established
its approval process for sales of goods and purchases of materials
and its financing policy for borrowings, such approval process and
financing policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government related entities or not.

The Group and its associates and joint ventures

The Group had the following significant transactions with its associates
and joint ventures

(b) AEBEAERERFREER

B EXFE A RmERERARERETNE
AREZGI REERBE_Z-_ZER-F
—NF+ZA=t+—RULEFEEELBHERA
HRERETHIRSERRBEX - HENE
ECECRERTE-AFT A=+ Et
FREOARDEMIAE - WERE - KED
T~ Bfh— &ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬂmﬁﬂ
BWARBEERIGY & ET B T
B/ ERNERETHRS

ARREFRR  ZFETERAEEERE
TTHIRR %E$EIWE%%W BiIEHREE -
WIZ— R AR AT RTSL - MASEEAETT
HER 5 W B AN B % F B R T ERE
MEZHEARKTETE - ARETHEMEE
NYRHRBBR AR - UREERERME
BR - 2 FHAZIR T KB E BORI T EURN R
SHFEEBBTHEBEER -

2019
—FNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Sales of goods and services SHE B KRS
Associates il /NG| 31,620 36,867
Joint ventures BeE 1,247 345
32,867 37,212
2020 2019
—_ 7 — f'i :?7)‘1:5'5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Purchase of goods and services Associates R E o N RISH: &R A 146,190 153,345
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42 Related party transactions (Continued)

42 BHRAERS @)

(c) The group and its associates and joint ventures (€ NEEHEEEZAR BEME
(Continued) €))
The Group had the following outstanding balances with its associates RZEZEFR=ZT-NFF+ZA=1+—8 "
and joint ventures as at 31 December 2020 and 2019: AEBEEABENRIREECERUTRER
ek
2020 2019
—BoEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Amounts due from: FEW T3 T RIER
Associates kNS 4,281 8,411
Joint Ventures ARNE 21,436 -
25,717 8,411
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Amounts dug to: FERT A& T 30R -
Associates N 74,483 74,146
Joint Ventures SETE 3,140 7,270
77,623 81,416
2020 2019
—E-TF ZE-NhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT
Loans to: M YIS FREER
Joint Ventures BEE 6,500 16,500

All amounts due from or due to associates and joint ventures are

from trade sales and purchases.

EAHERRE -

P Rk R B S R R B R IR R S
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42

(d) Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key

management were as follows:

@%Fﬁ%ﬁ)
O F2E

/~

WITEEREMTIEERABHMESMT

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Short-term benefits PSEEE 24,502 25,304
Share options A AR A 1,707 135
Post-employment benefits BRIREF 275 628
26,484 26,067

Key management represents the executive directors and other
senior management personnel disclosed in the annual report. The
remuneration of key management personnel is determined with
reference of the performance to individuals and market trends.

43 Contingent liabilities

43

Note (a): During the year, the Group has endorsed and derecognised certain
notes receivable for the settlement of trade and other payables with full
recourse. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of the
default in payment of the endorsed notes receivable is low because all
endorsed notes receivable are issued and guaranteed by reputable PRC
banks. The maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the
default of these endorsed and derecognised notes receivable at the end of

each reporting period is as follows:

TRERABEEFHRTREONTEZREMR
REEAE - TREIEABHNME IIRIBEMEARR
HHISBEERE -

HAREE
it RAER - AR ELASE RIS TR

EEM IR ﬁﬂ%ﬁLﬁ%m%%&Eﬂﬁ
NHIE - ARRERERR - ARAEEEN
WTﬁﬁéﬁEﬂm¢lﬁﬁ%ﬁ&kﬁﬁ
& BRABENEEREORRSE - RE
BEBR - AREAREARNZEEERK L
R KRR AFENSRRRAOT

2020 2019

— 7 =cZF f'E :;ﬁ—ﬂﬁf

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Outstanding endorsed notes receivable RENH R ERDEEREKER

with recourse 2,694,304 1,544,542
These endorsed and derecognised notes receivable have a maximum ZEEERKRIERNEREENSEREMARA
maturity of 1 year, and the total undiscounted cash flows of these —F 75/\_? - E‘i— B=+—8 ZS8ER

endorsed and derecognised notes receivable, representing the Group’s
maximum loss if the issuing banks fail to honor their notes and guarantees,
amounted to RMB2,694,304,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:

RMB1,544,542,000).

RIEERNERFERAURBESRBERSARE
2,694,304,00070 (= F — S © AR¥1,544,542,000
7U) - WEITIRITREELIBERBRER - AIKE
AEENREREEE -
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43 Contingent liabilities (Continued)

44

Note (b): On 28 September 2018, Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Gelin Material

Note (c):

Technology Co., Ltd. (“ZMJ Gelin Material”) signed a construction
contract with Zhengzhou Construction Engineer Group Co., Ltd. (“ZCE”) to
purchase a manufacturing project construction service. The construction
was completed on 25 December 2019. ZMJ Gelin Material was in dispute
with ZCE over the contract settlement amount. On 28 October 2020, ZCE
filed ZMJ Gelin Material through Zhengzhou Shangjie District Court on the
final settlement amount and applied for property preservation against ZMJ
Gelin Material. On 2 November 2020, Zhengzhou Shangjie District Court
froze 4 bank accounts of ZMJ Gelin Material and asked both parties to
have further negotiation. The total frozen amount was RMB10,554,000 as
at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2020, management estimated
that ZMJ Gelin Material would not likely to pay the additional settiement
amount, so no contingent liability was recognised on the financial
statements.

According to the global business restructuring plan of SEG group, the
Group estimates besides the amount provided in 2020 (Note 9), SEG
group will incur further personnel restructuring costs in Germany, Spain
and India in 2021 and 2022. Given the negotiation is ongoing with the
employees and working council, the number of employees and cost could
not be reasonably estimated as at the sign-off date of this report.

Redemption liabilities

During the acquisition of SEG group, the Group and the sellers, including
China Renaissance Capital Investment Inc., (“CRCI") and Chizhou Zhongan
Zhaoshang Equity Investment LLP (Limited Partnership) (“Zhongan
Zhaoshang”) set up limited partnership to acquire 100% of SEG. The
Group and the investors hold 69.11% and 30.89% equity interests of the
partnership, respectively. In the meantime, the Group granted the sellers
a put option to sell their 30.89% interests in the partnership (the “Option
Interest”) to the Group at the highest amount using 3 different calculation
method, including:

Scenario a) the aggregate capital contributions made by the sellers

to the Partnership, plus an interest at the rate of 10% per annum
(compounded annually) on sellers’ each capital contributions
calculated on a daily basis for period from the date of such capital
contribution to the date when the sellers issue a notice to the Group
to exercise the put option(“Put Option Notice”), minus the amount of
cash and the value of securities which have been distributed to the
sellers on or before the date of the Put Option Notice;

43

44

RABE @)
H 5 (b) —NFAAZ+NB - IR
RHRHE A R A &) ([ SRR ) S8 2
THREEREAARTHMET DEBRES
- EERETEE AR - BRARETRE
RZZ—hF+ZAZ+HBRT - BWHEEE
MM RERENZETRANEESEHREN
RZZE-TF+A-+NA  BHBRIRER
HEE S BB R AR AR L BB AR AR
MEHRRE IR A + I AR &5 L EP R A AR AR LT T
BEREZ R_ZE_ZFTF+—A=-0 BMLE
iyl A RSART R 4 B AR AT B Y 4B R 1T
RPWERE T E—SHE - RZT=FF
+=A=1+—8 - REEEEAAR10,554,000
TLeRZE_TF+-_A=+—H BEHEMH
FTERIE A MM BB (M EEINE B S SR A B
HEMN AT ERMEREPERKAE

& o

CIRIESEGREREMEMATE  ALEEN B
TEFERHMSFE(HE)I - SEGEEB
RN_TB-—FR-_T-—FHER -  ARFR
MEEAETZABEMAKAN - ERAQTIERE
HEBRISFER - NARESS B HREERR
BB ABEKAAELGBEET ©

BoasE

PULRESEGE B BRI - AL B E 5 (8 3EChina
Renaissance Capital Investment Inc.([ 2EE A |) Kt
MAZHREREREGBEE(BREZ)([HE
BRED)BRIZAEREGBEE - AAESEGH) 100% 1
= o AEEERE AN BB ZE B HER9.11%
1230.89% % o AR - AEEE TEH —ERGH
¥ LRERANT =B TRFEARNFEEHNES

SHANEE L EEHNZA B ER30.89%Em
U%%%\D ”%

BFE5E(C) -

— fBa) BEAMAREEELNETELRE I
FRZEEZ BRI EBE A AEE R LITE
Ao BB ([ R AR AN ]) B 5L BART
RESSOIERGAEENEFRR(FE
B ) A10%H A S - R R HAAE B A B Bisk
ZAENRTESNBRERELHEBESRE
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44 Redemption liabilities (Continued)

—  Scenario b) the fair market value of the Option Interest;

—  Scenario ¢) the value of the Option Interest calculated pursuant to the
formula defined in the agreement.

As at 31 December 2020, the scenario a) represent the highest amount of
3 different scenarios. Accordingly, the redemption liabilities were recorded
at the aggregate capital contributions made by the sellers plus an interest
at the rate of 10% per annum (compound annually) for CRCI and 10% per
annum for Zhongan Zhaoshang.

The put option granted to CRCI with the principle amount of
RMB481,499,000 and interest payable amount of RMB159,376,000
(31 December 2019: RMB98,475,000) is exercisable by sellers at any
time within the period commencing from the third anniversary of the
closing date. The sellers can choose and require the Company to settle
the put option by cash or issuance of new shares, however, the issuance
of new shares are still subject to applicable laws and the approval of the
Company’s board of directors and meetings of shareholders.

The put option granted to Zhongan Zhaoshang with the principle amount
of RMB600,000,000 and interest payable amount of RMB180,000,000
(31 December 2019: RMB120,000,000) is exercisable by the seller at
any time within the period commencing from the 18 months of the closing
date. As at 31 December 2020, Zhongan Zhaoshang is eligible to require
the Company to settle the put option by cash or issuance of new shares
subject to applicable laws and the approval of the Company’s board of
directors and meetings of shareholders.

4 BEREFE @)

— 1E50b) HEEEM AT TE

— 1BERe) REBHEMAEN ARG E R EER
BE-

RZZ-ZF+-_A=1+—R  BHR)R/=ETH
BRNESER - At - AEBRESELHATE
AN LRER R (FEEN0%(AEBEAMS)
REME10% (AP LZHREM =)t ENF S 278
BI&fE -

BRTITEEELANRLEBE(RSBERABARE
481,499,0007T & FE 1 F1| B & 58 & A R #6159,376,000
TI(ZE—NAE+=_RAR=+—H: AR®¥
98,475,0007T) Al R & 75 IR A2 & B B8 28 = SRt Ay
EAFI N IR T T » B BT BRA R A)E
BIRSNEITHRMAERGHRE - A - BITH
RIS ETREAEEIEARBEETE MR A
SRR o

BTITHRZHBANREHE(RSBEARARE
600,000,0007T X F& < 7| 2. & 28 & A R 180,000,000
TI(ZE—NAE+_A=+—8: ARK
120,000,0007T ) AR E 5 AR E| B B3 & 181E A 7
MR BRI NEREETE R 2T ZTF+ A
=T—H PR ERERERAQRBRRE T
ITHR M A E R HRE - A - BITHRMNBESF
HRAERIERAREFERRRASHIE - 7

AEE -
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45 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 45 REZEIFIELENEEYE

activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities and equity arising TREFMLAEENBEETBMELENEE Mg
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. ) ERERSLIEReEY - EEBMEENE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows BESIBRERES R KA RENTERIGFER
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated EMEXRPEIHIES B ARETHFAEENR
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. EMENZEEE -
Liabilities
associated with
transferred
trade Redemption Interests
Borrowings receivables liabilities payable
HEEEN
B 5 EWE
BE HENEE BEEE RIS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—A—H 2,867,827 242,879 1,177,921 11,718
Financing cash flows — net BMERESRE —FE 269,660 (257,329) - (104,267
Finance costs (Note 10) B R (BT3E10) - - 111,054 108,600
Currency exchange B - - (1,571) (386)
Others (Note) HAb (Fif3E) - 173,212 - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-A=+—H 3,137,487 158,762 1,287,404 15,665
At 1 January 2020 R-E-T4—f—0 3,137,487 158,762 1,287,404 15,665
Financing cash flows — net BMERERE —F8 1,400,083 813,973 - (152,093)
Finance costs (Note 10) B R (BT3E10) - - 117,170 161,547
Currency exchange B H % 61,325 - 16,301 433
Others (Note) EAh (B5E) - (141,794) - -
At 31 December 2020 RIEZETF
+=-A=+—H 4,598,895 830,941 1,420,875 25,552
Note: The amount of liabilities associated with transferred trade receivables ik : EBEENEZERZEEENEESERUE
represented the offset of trade receivables against liabilities associated with SEMGIEER S HENE 5 EIGIEMEEN
transferred trade receivables to the extent of the settlement by the ultimate BE  URBERmAPENERR -

end-users of the equipment.
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46 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium and
other reserves.

Management of the Company reviews the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of management, the Group will balance its overall
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio ((total liabilities netting off cash and cash equivalent)/total

equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
were as follows:

Gearing ratio BB

46 EXEBEE

AEEEEEAR - URRAEENGERIET R
EREEE - TR TS B AT R
BB AE R o AE T BBERHRBTE -

AEBENEARBREEHARRNR BB REGEHE
o BEREERA - RS E R Eb I

ARBEEEBFEHNERRRE - (FRZAEHN
Hip—1R - EREEEZEREANANBSHEERE
MR o RIFEEENES  AREREBXN

CBITH . SEHEGREEREES TE

X\_,
HEBERE -

AEER-_Z-TFE+_A=+—RAR-ZT-NF
T=-A= + AeBEaESL R (B ERRERR
ERRSEEBY) HEREFOWT

2019
—T—NF

124% 97%
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47 Financial instruments 47 €T A
Categories of financial instruments TR ITADSE

2020 2019
=2-TF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT ARBETT

Financial assets: TRIEE :
Financial assets at fair value: EATEYIERNS/REE
Financial assets at fair value through AAERT 2 B E&Z 8 A
profit or loss BENCHEE 2,857,305 1,394,296
Financial assets at fair value through AAERT 2 B E&Z 8 A
other comprehensive income Hih2EWEN /B E 3,809,058 4,276,753
Derivative financial instruments PTESHMIA 40,405 13,946
Financial assets at amortised cost: ZEER AT EC SREBE ¢
Trade and other receivables (excluding H 5 R HAMmEWFIECTBIE
prepayment, China tax recoverable) TEAT FRIE K AP B AT Y B A 18 ) 5,921,700 5,478,574
Cash and cash equivalents R MRS EEY 2,983,384 3,863,435
Bank deposits RITIFK 2,758,632 858,141
Long-term receivables RHEUGRE 322,475 502,744
Transferred trade receivables DEENE S EKE 830,941 158,762
Finance lease receivables BVERE R RIA 138,331 49,432
Loans receivable from associates and a joint
venture EUEE R T R —HEEEER 6,500 16,500
Total =t 19,668,731 16,612,583
Financial liabilities: TRIBE -
Financial liabilities at fair value: BRAFETIENSRARE
Derivative financial instruments TEemI A 13,730 3,632
Liabilities at amortised cost REHENATTENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERFIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TR emas) 7,486,802 7,010,902
Borrowings (o= 4,598,895 3,137,487
Lease liabilities HESE 805,206 691,848
Redemption liabilities EEaE 1,420,875 1,287,404

Total 5t 14,325,509 12,131,273
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48 Events after the reporting period

Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. proposed to transfer
277,195,419 A shares of the Company (representing 16.00% of the total
share capital of the Company) it held under agreement through public
solicitation of transferees, and signed the Share Transfer Agreement
Regarding Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Company Limited
with Hong Yi Investment Management (Henan) Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (“Hong Yi Investment”), the transferee determined under
public solicitation procedures on 8 January 2021 (the “Share Transfer”).
On 26 February 2021, the Company received the Confirmation of
Transfer Registration issued by China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited from Henan Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd.
that the transfer and registration of the shares of the Company from Henan
Machinery Investment Group Co., Ltd. to Hong Yi Investment had been
completed. After the completion of the share transfer, Hong Yi Investment
holds 16% of the total share capital of the Company, while Henan Asset
Management Co., Ltd., its party acting in concert, holds 69,209,157
shares of the Company, representing 3.99% of the total share capital of
the Company. Hong Yi Investment and Henan Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. hold 19.99% of shares of the Company in aggregate. According to
the Acting-in-Concert Agreement entered into by Hong Yi Investment and
Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. and the governance structure of Hong
Yi Investment, after the completion of the transaction, Hong Yi Investment
and Henan Asset Management Co., Ltd. have become the controlling
shareholders of the Company, and the Company does not have a de facto
controller.

The Company has received the Notice of Buy-back issued by China
Renaissance Capital Investment Inc., (“CRCI”) and Chizhou Zhongan
Zhaoshang Equity Investment LLP (Limited Partnership) (“Zhongan
Zhaoshang”), which requires the Company to acquire the equity interests
held by CRCI and Zhongan Zhaoshang in Zhengzhou Shengji as agreed
under the Investment Agreement. Based on the Investment Agreement
and upon negotiation between the Company and CRCI and Zhongan
Zhaoshang, the Company has agreed to buy back the equity interests held
by CRCI and Zhongan Zhaoshang in Zhengzhou Shengji. On 15 March
2021, the Company and Zhongan Zhaoshang signed the Equity Transfer
Agreement with the consideration determined to be RMB794,301,000
for the transfer. On 15 March 2021, the Company and CRCI signed
the Equity Transfer Agreement with the consideration determined to be
EUR81,567,000 for the transfer.

48 WEHEREE

MR EERESBEBREAAAERBRA
AABESXEFIN A ABEEZEERFAENR
N AE277,195, 419 IR ARR B 0 (15 A A R B A B
16.00%) * WA T =Z—F—ANBEERFABE
BFrEEHXEFAREETECIE)ARLE
(BRAR) ([BARE ) 2B BRI E RN
EBERNBRAE RO ERRZ ([ RHE
) o ARFR T —F - A= +xBKET
EEREREREEEGRET AR ZERMAFE
BEERGEEBRAETARLENCGAPZLER
) R EERESEBRETARMRELR
KREEERANRIRODETHIBFER - RGN
ERTTAE - AR E R A AR R ERAE16% -
RAEE—STHATEEEEERERAAFBBEAR
7]69,209,157 J&AR 15 - (AR B IRANHY3.99% © J8h
R B TmEETEBRARGHBEARA
19.99% AR - IRIBAL BRI ERAEEEEERER
RNABEZBOC—BITEIHAE VA RLFIE BRI
©EiE - RHTRENNBRRENTHEEEEBRA
B BAA RIRIRARAR R - NABEBBRIESIA -

Z87 B) Y EI|China Renaissance Capital Investment Inc. ([ 52
BER])RAMNPLREREREEREE(ER
A%)([FL2Rml) LA EE@EE) » 2RAR
AERNKRERBENAOTCREREEARARPLIEER
EMENEFHRKE - ERRERBENLQTE - WL
RARHEEEERRPLHEENER - AAFRE
O SEEARRP LRI E SRR - ¥
—E-—F=ZA+HH  AARHEALTHRERET
R R s - B RE(E IR E B AR 794,301,000
TLeNZEZ—F=A+HH - AARHEHEEEAR
FETREE R - EEE KT A81,567,000
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 ARAFEFEMB AR ZFHE

company

RZZEZZEFR_ZF-NAF+-_A=1+—0 AR
AIMB AR Z BT o

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
are as follows.

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
EMRYL DRTRBERE FAEEEEEER
o PNGIEE TEEK R EEE HMEAEE RAEBEDL
2019
—T-NEF
%
Directly held:
BERE -
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Hydraulic ~ Manufacture of hydraulic ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
Electrical Control Co., Ltd. products H AR #100,000,0007T
BB REEIEFRLDE] HEREE @
Zhengzhou Coal Mining machinery Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 68.89 68.89
Comprehensive Equipment Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #100,000,0007T
M BT R BBRAF HEERTEE,
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Trading of raw materials ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100.00 100.00
Group Material Trading Co., Ltd. and products H AR #100,000,0007T
SNEBEUREEMERBEERAT RHRERES
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Longwall Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 53.21 53.21
Face Machinery Co., Ltd. machinery H AR50,000,0007C
M B REERBR AT HEERTEE,
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 54.00 54.00
Group Lu An Xinjiang Co., Ltd. machinery H AR #50,000,0007T
SEBERBLTNBERMAERAR HEERTEE,
Zhengzhou Zhima Street Industrial Co., Ltd.  Hotel Managementand ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 100.00 100.00
BSMCMEBEEERAR construction service AR H100,000,0007T
R BT MR E R
Zhengzhou Coal Mine Machinery Co., Ltd. Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
PEREBERREREELF machinery HF AR H1,000,000,0007T

HESRE
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 AR TEMBARIZHFE @)

company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
ML BRTRBERE AEEREEZR
MEARERE TEXK RYEERY EMEXEE RAEADL
Directly held: (Continued)
EERE - (B)
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Aftermarket service of Russia USD100,000 100.00 100.00
Siberia Co., Ltd. mining machinery HRAEHT 100,000 7T
BREEREFDEREERF RERM S E RS
ZMJ International Trading (Hong Kong) Sale and purchase of Hong Kong USD7,500,000 100.00 100.00
Co., Ltd. mining machinery & 7,500,0003 ¢
BHEHEBRE S (FE)BERAT] HE RKERE
R
ZMJ Germany GmbH Sale and purchase of Germany EUR1,000,000 100.00 100.00
BEMEBER AR mining machinery/ =R 1,000,0008¢ 7T
research and
development of
mining products
HE KRBT,
e REER
ZMJ America, Inc. Sale and purchase of Canada CAD100 100.00 100.00
BEE(EN) BRAR mining machinery JIIEYN 100407T
HE RFKERE
R
ZMJ Australia Pty Ltd Sale and purchase of Australia USD200,000 100.00 100.00
B CRAFT) AR AT mining machinery BAFIE 200,000 7T
HE RFKERE
R
ZMJ Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd. Commercial factoring The PRC RMB100,000,000.00 100.00 100.00
A ERZBRAT HERE I AR #100,000,000.007T
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 XAREEMBARIZFE @)
company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
MR, ERTRBERE AEEREEZR
Ll NGE=E e TEER RIYLEREY SREAEE RREADL
2019
—E-NF
%
Directly held: (Continued)
EERE (B)
Zhi Kong Wang Lian Technology Software and IT services ~ The PRC RMB8,000,000 100.00 100.00
Shenzhen Co., Ltd. P LEARERE AR #8,000,0007C
BE@ERR(RIDERAF
ASIMCO (Beijing) Limited Sale and purchase of The PRC RMB1,200,000,000 100.00 100.00
DFRTERMAER)BRAR auto parts and i AR #1,200,000,0007C
components
HERRE BT
CACGLTD. I ([CACG1]) (“CACGI") Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands RMB418,970 100.00 100.00
HERETHH HEHE AR#4189707T
Zhengzhou Shengji Mechanical and Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB2,450,000,000 75.51 75.51
Electrical Equipment Company Limited ~ $H& /5B F AR #2,450,000,0007T
(“Zhengzhou Shengji”)
WHNEEREREBEERDFA(HMNES])
ZMJ Zhiding Hydraulic Company Limited Manufacture of mining ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 100.00 N/A
(“ZMJ Zhiding”) machinery H AR #50,000,0007T TER

BRRESRBEERAR([BRBER ) LEREEM
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 AR TEMBARIZHFE @)
company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
ML BRTRBERE AEEREEZR
MEARERE TEXK RYEERY EMEXEE RAEADL
Indirectly held:
A
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Zhu Duan Co., Ltd.  Sale of molding and The PRC RMB30,000,000 51.93 51.93
ENERIBIRER A A metal material F AR #30,000,0007T
RARSBMEHEE
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Sale of molding and The PRC RMB50,000,000 55.26 55.26
Gelin Material Technology Co., Ltd. metal material e AR #50,000,0007C
(“ZMJ Gelin Material”) RARSBMEHEE
BRI R R BR AR
([ EPEEHAR AR RE])
ASIMCO Camshaft (Yizheng) Co., Ltd Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB118,043,007 63.00 63.00
("ASIMCO Camshaft”) HEAETHIT F ARH5118,043,0077C
IR (L) BRAR)
(TR Eh )
ASIMCO Shuanghuan Piston Ring (Yizneng)  Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB229,703,231 63.54 63.54
Co,, Ltd (*ASIMCO Shuanghuan’) HEAETHIT F AR229,703,2317T
BIFRMEREERERAR
([FRIER])
ASIMCO International Gasting Co., Ltd. Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB420,362,000 100.00 100.00
(Shanxi) (*ASIMCO Shanxi”) HEAETHIT F AR420,362,0007T
AR EE (L) BR AR
(T FRHLA])
ASIMCO NVH Technologies Co., Ltd (Anhui)  Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB252,200,000 100.00 100.00
("ASIMCO NVH’) HEAETHIT F AR252,200,0007T

DEFRIR R EIRE R (L) BRAF
([TETFINVH])



250 Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BB RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE=—E -TF+ - A=+—HIFE

49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 XAREEMBARIZFE @)

company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
HEMRL BRTREERES AEEEERER
MEARER TEEK RYEEHE IMEREE FREEOR
2019
—E-NEF
%
Indirectly held: (Continuea)
EEfRE - (&)
Hong Kong SMG International Co., Limited Sale of auto parts The PRC EUR310,000,000 100.00 100.00
BEREEERERRAR HERETIM H 310,000,004 7T
ASIMCO International, Inc. Sale of auto parts The USA USD1 100.00 100.00
EHRERERAR HERETIM xH 1ET
SMG Acquisition Fund, L.P. Sale of auto parts Cayman Islands EUR499,999,905 100.00 100.00
HERETIM HAEHS 499,999 905 7T
SMG Acquisition Luxembourg Holdings Sale of auto parts Luxembourg EUR12,000 100.00 100.00
Sarl. HERETIM ERE 12,0008%7C
New Neckar Autoparts Holding GmbH Sale of auto parts Germany EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
HERETIM (e 25,0008X 7T
New Neckar Autoparts Holdings and Sale of auto parts Germany EUR625,000,500 100.00 100.00
Operations GmbH & Co. KG HERETIM e 625,000,500 7T
SEG Automotive Germany GmbH Sale of auto parts Germany EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
RERABEEBRATF HERETIM = 25,000817C
SEG Automotive Components Brazil Ltda. Sale of auto parts Brazil EUR50,300,715.57 99.99 99.99
RERAEDHERERAA HERETIM i) 50,300,715.57B 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE =T =—TF+-—A=+—HILFE

49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 AR TEMBARIZHFE @)

company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
MR BRTRBERE AEEREEZR
MEARER TEER RygEHE FMEREE KRB
Indirectly held: (Continued)
E#ERE - (8)
Starters E-Components Generators Sale of auto parts Hungary EUR15,050,000 100.00 100.00
Automotive Hungary Kft. HERET M ) 7 7 15,050,0008% 7T
SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd. Sale of auto parts The PRC RMB290,400,000.00 100.00 100.00
RERAEE(RE)BRAF HERET M FE AR #290,400,000.007C
SEG New Energy Automobile Technology R&D of auto parts The PRC RMB22,000,000.00 100.00 100.00
Co., Ld. HERET M F AR #22,000,000.007C
REBMERTERMERAT
SEG Automotive India Private Limited Sale of auto parts India EUR134,395.95 99.99 99.99
RERAEHEBRAT HERET M HE 134,395.95E1 7T
SEG Automotive North America LLC Sale of auto parts North America EURO 100.00 100.00
RERAEILEERAF HERET M L= 0BRT
SEG Automotive France S.A.S. Sale of auto parts France EUR50,000 100.00 100.00
RERAEERBRAT HERET M HE 50,0008%7T
SEG Automotive Japan Corporation Sale of auto parts Japan EUR736,982.46 100.00 100.00
RERAERAKAGH HERET M A& 736,982,468 7T
SEG Automotive Mexico Manufacturing, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR486,633.91 99.99 99.99
SA deCV. HERET M BRF 486,633.91 (7T

RERAERATREFRAF
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49 Particular of principal subsidiaries of the 49 XAREEMBARIZFE @)

company (Continued)

Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/  fully paid up Proportion of ownership
establishment/  share capital/ interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary Principal activity operation registered capital held by the Group
ML BRTREERES AEEEERER
HEARER TEEK RYEEHE HIMEREE RRAEEOR
2019
—E-NF
%
Indirectly held: (Continuea)
EERE - (&)
SEG Automotive Mexico Service, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR89,994.28 99.99 99.99
S.deR.L deClV. HERETIH TSy 89,994.28BX 7T
RERABEATREBRAA
SEG Automotive Mexico Sales, Sale of auto parts Mexico EUR95,008.49 99.99 99.99
S.deRL deCV. HERETIH TSy 95,008.49BX 7T
RERABEATHEBRAA
SEG Automotive Portugal, Unipessoal Lda. Sale of auto parts Portugal EUR25,000 100.00 100.00
RERAEEETARAR HERETIM BET 25,0008 75
SEG Automotive South Africa Sale of auto parts South Africa EUR59,711.7 100.00 100.00
Proprietary Limited HERETIM B3 59,711 7BT
RERABEIFARAR
SEG Automotive Korea Co. Ltd. Sale of auto parts Korea EUR36,834.26 100.00 100.00
RERAEEEERAA HERETIH BE 36,834.26BX 7T
SEG Automotive Spain, S.A.U. Sale of auto parts Spain EUR9,616,000 100.00 100.00
RBEAERITFERAT HERETIH AT 9,616,000BX 7T
SEG Automotive ltaly S.r.l. Sale of auto parts [taly EUR500,000 100.00 100.00
REBABEAMEBRAF HERETIM BEARF 500,000B%7T
Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Shuyun Providing technology The PRC RMB10,000,000 60.00 N/A
Intelligence Technology Co., Ltd. service H AR #10,000,0007T TER
MBS R B R AE RERM RS

subsidiaries are invested by PRC enterprise.

Note: Except for SEG Automotive Products (China) Co., Ltd., all other PRC

MR - BRBBAERMG(RE)BRIRIN - AEEAM
FEMNBARSHTEMREE -
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50 BEADRAMBRR KR 2EH

2020 2019
ZBECEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERE 870,144 941,525
Right of use assets FREEE 34,480 38,717
Investment properties WEWE 232,640 148,635
Intangible assets ERAE 206,038 207,545
Investments in subsidiaries R B AT ZIRE 5,840,994 5,790,994
Investments in associates REEENE 2R E 260,504 244,667
Investments in a joint venture R—EEELEZRE 31,604 28,648
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A ERTE EHEEE A
BaemEE 112,255 255
Deferred tax assets FEEFTAE E 167,065 133,756
Finance lease receivables BA MRS ERIE 15,497 23,348
Long term receivables REAFEWGRIE 175,434 182,051
Total non-current assets FRENEELEE 7,946,655 7,740,141
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =8 1,965,936 1,539,898
Loans receivable from subsidiaries BB ARIER 125,000 208,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW IR 2,759,987 1,538,268
Transferred trade receivables BEEMNE Z ERGIE 830,941 158,762
Finance lease receivables, current portion mEREREWHIE Ry 122,834 26,084
Long term receivables, current portion REAREU IR - RENER D 152,303 236,399
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AT EAE B EEE A
BalemEE 2,394,343 1,060,000
Financial assets at fair value through other AT EEBE#ESTA
comprehensive income Hit eSS EE 2,103,550 2,878,880
Bank deposits RITHER 2,535,619 727,980
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRESEEY 1,526,412 2,341,134
Total current assets HEREEE 14,516,925 10,715,405
Total assets BEE 22,463,580 18,455,546
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50 Information about the statement of financial 50 A QAR EMR AR Z2ER &)

position of the Company (Continued)

2020 2019
—E-%F —FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5N E M ENRIE 3,297,456 3,260,098
Contract liabilities ARAaE 1,528,126 1,677,584
Borrowings BE 626,800 303,500
Liabilities associated with transferred
trade receivables WP REMNESRIKEEENAE 830,941 158,762
Lease liabilities HEaRE 10,220 3,539
Total current liabilities REBEEARE 6,328,543 5,403,483
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREAE
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EnEas 103,395 77,351
Employee benefit obligations EERBMNEFE 317,736 49,950
Borrowings [=9=% 1,414,250 600,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 30,341 35,337
Total non-current liabilities FRBBERE 1,865,722 762,638
Total liabilities weEd 8,159,265 6,166,121
CAPITAL AND RESERVES I& A K 5
Share capital R& A 1,732,471 1,732,471
Share premium vl 4,199,421 4,199,421
Reserves (Note (a)) fEfE (M 5E@) 8,372,423 6,357,533
Total equity ERAE 14,304,315 12,289,425
Total equity and liabilities ERhEEHEE 22,463,580 18,455,546
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50 Information about the statement of financial 50 BREAARLQ R EMRRK 2 ER &)
position of the Company (Continued)

Note (a) M7 ()
Statutory
Surplus Other Retained
Reserve reserves earnings Total
EEBBRFEE Hitf#E REBRF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARETET ARBTT ARETET

Balance at 1 January 2019 R-EBE-NE—A—RB2&% 633,784 97,877 4,297,299 5,028,960
Profit and total comprehensive income FREFRE2E KB

for the year - - 1,572,100 1,572,100
Transfer g 157,210 - (157,210) -
Share base payment B&AD 151 - - 1,601 1,601
Transaction with associates HEEN AR S - - 6,080 6,080
Dividends (Note 15) 8 (HI3E15) - - (251,208) (251,208)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hhE+-_A=+—H

2R 790,994 97,877 5,468,662 6,357,533

Balance at 1 January 2020 RZZTZEF—A—BAZ&ER 790,994 97,877 5,468,662 6,357,533
Profit and total comprehensive income FNHEAREEB LT

for the year - - 2,325,261 2,325,261
Transfer wEE 235,526 - (235,526) -
Share base payment R&An -t R - - 10,136 10,136
Dividends (Note 15) %8 (B EE15) - - (320,507) (320,507)
Balance at 31 December 2020 NZZEZZF+—A=+—H

2 EERR 1,026,520 97,877 7,248,026 8,372,423
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Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss #RAEEREFE

Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=t—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-EF —ENF —E-)N\F —E—+F —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARBFT

Revenue WA 26,519,393 25,721,417 26,011,730 7,546,701 3,628,530
Cost of sales SHERAR 19,874,033 20,923,902 21,159,849 5,899,296 2,915,417
Profit before tax KRE AR A 1,939,894 1,530,076 1,288,738 423,026 37,384
Profit for the year FEREH 1,378,781 1,139,910 938,908 340,160 36,648

Profit for the year attributable to: A TALEIEERA

A -
Owners of the Company RARRE 1,239,149 1,040,253 832,344 284,250 61,997
Non-controlling interests JEVERS R 139,632 99,657 106,564 55,910 (25,349)

1,378,781 1,139,910 938,908 340,160 36,648

Highlights of Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ~ #& BN KRB E

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
- Sk 33 —Z-NEF —Z-N\F T+ —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ISP ARETT ARETT  AR®TRT ARETER

Non-current assets EREBEE 9,352,372 9,470,921 9,336,011 8,503,188 2,520,487
Current assets REVEE 25,104,222 20,347,930 18,672,760 10,948,141 9,407,688
Total assets s 34,456,594 29,818,851 28,008,771 19,451,329 11,928,175
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 5,594,284 3,854,076 4,013,211 2,071,202 4,750
Current liabilities SHAGE 14,828,479 12,822,529 11,704,716 5,804,820 2,164,895
Total liabilities me s 20,422,763 16,676,605 15,717,927 7,876,022 2,169,645

Equity attributable to owners of the  ZK/X AIRXER FE{GHE R

Company 13,063,795 12,239,731 11,457,210 10,800,206 9,674,173
Non-controlling interests FEEER 970,036 902,515 833,634 775,101 84,357
Total equity EREE 14,033,831 13,142,246 12,290,844 11,675,307 9,758,530

Total equity and liabilities ERREEAE 34,456,594 29,818,851 28,008,771 19,451,329 11,928,175
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